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To the Shareholders of Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi
A) Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi (“the
Bank”) and its subsidiary (together will be referred as “the Group”) which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019 and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity, consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes, comprising significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion, except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis For Qualified Opinion
section of our report, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi and its
subsidiary as at 31 December 2019, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the “Banking Regulation
and Supervision Agency (“"BRSA") Accounting and Reporting Legislation” which includes the
“Regulation on Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents”
published in the Official Gazette No. 26333 dated 1 November 2006, and other regulations
on accounting records of banks published by BRSA and circulars and interpretations
published by BRSA and requirements of Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (*TFRS") for
the matters not regulated by the aforementioned legislations.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As stated in Note 2.8.3.1 of Section Five, the accompanying consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2019 include a general provision of total of TL 44.500
thousands, of which TL 65.000 thousands was recognised as expense in prior years and TL
20.500 thousands has been reversed in the current period, which does not meet the
requirements of BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation. This general provision is
provided by the Bank management for the possible effects of the negative circumstances
which may arise in economy or market conditions. Additionally, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2019 include a deferred tax asset for
aforementioned general reserve provision of total of TL 9.790 thousands, of which TL 14.300
thousand was recognised in prior years and TL 4.510 thousands has been reversed in the
current period.



We conducted our audit in accordance with the “Regulation on Independent Audit of the Banks” ("BRSA
Auditing Regulation”) published in the Official Gazette No.29314 dated 2 April 2015 by BRSA and
Standards on Auditing which is a component of the Turkish Auditing Standards published by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority ("POA”) (“Standards on Auditing issued by
POA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We declare that we are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Ethics for Auditors issued by POA ("POA’s Code of
Ethics”) and the ethical requirements in the regulations issued by POA that are relevant to audit of
consolidated financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the POA’s Code of Ethics and other regulations. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. In addition to the matter described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section we have determined the matters described below to be the key
audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Impairment of loans measured at amortised cost

The details of accounting policies and significant estimates and assumptions for impairment of loans
measured at amortised cost are presented in Section Ill, No: VIl of the consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

As of 31 December 2019, loans measured at
amortised cost comprise 65% of the Group’s
total assets.

The Group recognizes its loans in accordance
with the Regulation on the Procedures and
Principles for Classification of Loans by Banks
and Provisions to be set aside (the “Regulation”)
published on the Official Gazette No. 29750
dated 22 June 2016 and TFRS g Financial
Instruments standard (“Standard”).

The Group applies the “expected credit loss
model” in determining the impairment of
financial assets in accordance with the
Regulation and Standard. The model which
contains significant assumptions and estimates
is reviewed by the Bank management annually.

The significant assumptions and estimates of the
Group’s management are as follows:

- significant increase in credit risk;

- incorporating the forward looking
macroeconomic information in calculation of
credit risk; and

How the matter is addressed in our audit

Our procedures for testing the impairment of
loans included below:

o We tested the design and operating
effectiveness of the controls on lending,
collateralization, collection, follow-up,

classification and impairment procedures are
tested with the involvement of information risk
management specialists.

. We evaluated the adequacy of the
subjective and objective criteria that is defined in
the Group’s impairment accounting policy
compared with the Regulation and Standard.

. We evaluated the Group’s business
model and methodology and the evaluation of
the calculations were carried out with the control
testing and detailed analysis by the involvement
of specialist.

J We performed loan reviews for selected
loan samples which include a detailed
examination of loan files and related information
and testing their classification. In this context,
the current status of the loan customer has been
evaluated by including prospective information
and macroeconomic variables.

. We evaluated the accuracy of the
expected credit loss calculations by selecting
sample for the loans which are assessed on




- design and implementation of expected
credit loss model.

The determination of the impairment of loans
measured at amortised cost depends on the (i)
credit default status, (ii) the model based on the
change in the credit risk at the first recognition
date and (iii) the classification of the loans
measured at amortised cost according to the
model. Establishing an accurate classification is a
significant process as the calculation of expected
credit loss varies to the staging of the financial
assets.

The Group calculates expected credit losses on
both an individual and a collective basis.
Individual provisions consider the estimated
future performance of the business and the fair
value of the collateral provided for credit
transactions.

The collective basis expected credit loss
calculation is based on complex processes which
are modelled by using current and past data sets
and expectations. The completeness and
accuracy of data sets in the model are also
considered and the forward looking expectations
are reflected by macroeconomic models.
Impairment on loans measured at amortised cost
was considered to be a key audit matter, due to
the significance of the estimates, assumptions,
the level of judgements and its complex
structure as explained above.

individual basis and discussed the assumptions
and estimates with the Group management.

. We  tested the accuracy and
completeness of the data in the calculation
models for the loans which are assessed on
collective basis. The expected credit loss
calculation was tested through recalculation. The
models used for the calculation of the risk
parameters were examined and the risk
parameters for the selected sample portfolios
were recalculated.

. We assessed the macroeconomic models
which are used to reflect forward looking
expectations and tested the effect of the risk
parameters by recalculation method.

. We evaluated the qualitative and
quantitative assessments which are used in
determining the significant increase in credit risk.
. We also evaluated the adequacy of the
consolidated financial statements’ disclosures
related to impairment provisions.

Other matter

The consolidated financial statements of the Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018 was
audited by another auditor who expressed a qualified opinion due to the general reserve provision
provided by the Bank on 8 February 201g9.



Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Reporting Legislation, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Responsibilities of auditors in an audit are as follows:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing issued by POA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with BRSA Auditing Regulation and Standards on Auditing issued by
POA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.



e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safequards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the Turkish Commercial Code (*TCC") numbered
6102; no significant matter has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the Bank’s
bookkeeping activities for the period 1 January - 31 December 2019 are not in compliance with TCC and
provisions of the Bank’s articles of association in relation to financial reporting.

2) Pursuant to the fourth paragraph of Article 402 of the TCC; the Board of Directors provided us the
necessary explanations and required documents in connection with the audit.

Additional paragraph for convenience translation to English:

The accounting principles summarized in Note | Section Three, differ from the accounting principles
generally accepted in countries in which the accompanying consolidated financial statements are to be
distributed and International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"). Accordingly, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in such countries of users of the
consolidated financial statements and IFRS.

KPMG Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik Anonim Sirketi

A member firm of KPMG International Cooperative

Alper GUveng, SMMM
Partner

11 February 2020
istanbul, Turkiye
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Telephone 1 (212) 381 82 82

Fax :(212) 258 37 78

Web Site : www.fibabanka.com.tr

Contact E-Mail : deniz.turunc@fibabanka.com.tr

The consolidated year-end financial report prepared in accordance with the communiqué of Financial
Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced to Public by Banks as regulated
by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency, is comprised of the following sections:
e  GENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE PARENT BANK
e CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE PARENT BANK
e EXPLANATIONS ON THE CORRESPONDING ACCOUNTING POLICIES APPLIED IN THE
RELATED PERIOD
e INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STRUCTURE AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
GROUP
e EXPLANATORY DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
e OTHER DISCLOSURES AND FOOTNOTES
e INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The consolidated subsidiary included in this consolidated financial report is as follows:

Subsidiary:
e Fiba Portfoy Yonetimi A.S.

The consolidated financial statements and the explanatory footnotes and disclosures, unless
otherwise indicated, are prepared in thousands of Turkish Lira, and in accordance with the
Communiqué on Banks’ Accounting Practice and Maintaining Documents, Turkish Accounting
Standards, Turkish Financial Reporting Standards, related communiqués and the Banks’ records, have
been independently audited and presented as attached.
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Fax Number :(212) 258 37 78
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

SECTION ONE

GENERAL INFORMATION

History of the Parent Bank including its incorporation date, initial status and amendments to the initial
status

On 21 December 2001, Share Transfer Agreement was signed with Novabank S.A. for the sale of all shares of
Sitebank A.S. under the control of SDIF and the sale transaction was approved by the decision of Banking
Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA”) No: 596 on 16 January 2002.

In the General Assembly held on 4 March 2003, the name of Sitebank A.S. was amended as BankEuropa Bankasi
A.S.

In the extraordinary General Assembly held on 28 November 2006, the name of Bank Europa Bankasi A.S. was
amended as Millennium Bank A.S.

On 27 December 2010, acquisition of the Bank by Credit Europe Bank N.V., which is an affiliate of Fiba Holding
A.S., was realized.

In the extraordinary General Assembly held on 25 April 2011 the name of Millennium Bank A.S. was amended as
Fibabanka A.S. (“the Bank” or “the Parent Bank”)

Shareholder Structure, Shareholders Having Direct or Indirect, Joint or Individual Control Over the
Management and Internal Audit of the Parent Bank, Changes in Shareholder Structure During the Current
Period, if any and Information on the Parent Bank’s Risk Group

On 10 February 2010, Banco Comercial Portugues S.A. and Credit Europe Bank N.V., which is an affiliate of Fiba
Group, signed a share purchase agreement to transfer 95% of the Bank’s shares to Credit Europe Bank N.V. and
the legal approval process was completed as of 27 December 2010.

Credit Europe Bank N.V.’s share of capital increased from 95% to 97,6% after the capital increases during 2011
and 2012. Fiba Holding A.S. became the ultimate parent of the Bank after acquiring 97,6% of the shares from
Credit Europe Bank N.V. on 3 December 2012 and 2,4% of the shares from Banco Comercial Portugues S.A. on 7
December 2012. There were sales of equity shares to the management of the Bank in 2013. As of 31 December
2019 the total shares held by the Bank’s Management represent 0,56% of the Bank’s Capital.

The Parent Bank applied to the BRSA on 14 January 2015 for permission of the subordinated loan provided from
Fiba Holding A.S. in the amount of USD 50 million to be converted to share capital. Following the authorization
of the BRSA on 4 March 2015, the Board of Directors decision was taken on 5 March 2015 regarding share capital
increase from TL 550.000 to TL 678.860. TL 127.045 of the increase was provided by the subordinated loan
granted by Fiba Holding A.S. which had been approved to be converted to capital and TL 1.815 of total capital
was paid in cash by the other shareholders, capital increase was recognised in financial statements following the
completion of the legal procedures on 7 May 2015.

The Parent Bank’s paid-in capital amounting to TL 678.860 was increased to TL 847.515 on 23 December 2015
with equal contributions from International Finance Corporation (“IFC”) and European Bank for Reconstruction
and Development (“EBRD”) amounting TL 168.655 in total. In addition, share issuance premium of TL 73.379 was
recognised in the shareholders’ equity.



FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Shareholder Structure, Shareholders Having Direct or Indirect, Joint or Individual Control Over the
Management and Internal Audit of the Parent Bank, Changes in Shareholder Structure During the Current
Period, if any and Information on the Parent Bank’s Risk Group (Continued)

The Bank’s paid-in capital amounting to TL 847.515 was increased to TL 941.161 on 7 September 2016 with the
capital contribution of TurkFinance B.V. by TL 93.646. In addition, TL 55.299 was recorded to the equity as share

premium.

As of 31 December 2019, paid-in capital of the Bank is TL 941.161 and all paid in.

Explanations Regarding the Shares of the Parent Bank Owned by and Areas of Responsibility of the Chairman
and the Members of Board of Directors, Audit Committee Members, Chief Executive Officer, Executive Vice

Presidents

Name Surname

Title

Assignment

Date
Board of Directors (*)
Huisnii Mustafa Ozyegin Chairman 27-Dec-10
Fevzi Bozer Deputy Chairman 27-Dec-10
Mehmet Giilesci Member 27-Dec-10
Mevlit Hamdi Aydin Member 24-Jan-13
ismet Kaya Erdem Member 11-Feb-13
Memduh Aslan Akcay Member 13-Apr-16
Hilya Kefeli Member 15-May-17
Faik Onur Umut Member 23-Jan-19
Omer Mert General Manager - Member 18-Jan-17

(*) Bank’s Board Members Mr. Selcuk Yorgancioglu and Mr. Mevlit Hamdi Aydin have resigned as of 30 September 2019 and 31 January 2020 respectively. Mr.Seyfettin Ata Kdseoglu

been assigned as Bank’s Board Member as of 23 January 2020.

Audit Committee(*)

Mevlit Hamdi Aydin

Member

24-Jan-13

ismet Kaya Erdem

Member

27-Dec-19

(*) Bank’s Audit Commitee Members Mr. Fevzi Bozer and Mr. Mevliit Hamdi Aydin have resigned as of 27 December 2019 and 31 January 2020 respectively. Mr. ismet Kaya Erdem
and Mr. Faik Onur Umut have been assigned as Audit Commitee Members as of 27 December 2019 and 14 January 2020 respectively.

Assistant General Managers (*)

Elif Alsev Utku Ozbey Deputy GM - Financial Control & Reporting 07-Jan-11
Sezin Erken AGM - Consumer Banking & Funding Resource Management 10-Aug-17
Kerim Lokman Kuris AGM - Corporate & Commercial Banking 01-Dec-15
Turgay Hasdiker AGM - Credits 01-Dec-15
Ahu Dolu AGM - Financial Institutions and Project Finance 01-Dec-15
Gercek Onal AGM - Chief Legal Officer 01-Feb-16

(*) Mr. Adem Aykin has resigned as of 31 July 2019. Mr. Omer Rifat Gencal has resigned as of 11 October 2019. Mr. Orhan Hatipoglu has resigned as of 31 December 2019.

The Bank’s equity shares owned by

the individuals listed above are not material.



VI.

VIl.

Vill.

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Individuals and Institutions That Have Qualified Shares in the Bank

Share
Amount Paid in Capital Unpaid
Name Surname/ Commercial Title (Nominal) Share Ratios (Nominal) Shares
Fiba Holding A.S. 673.573 71,57% 673.573
Hisnii Mustafa Ozyegin (*) 666.856 70,85% 666.856

(*) States indirect share of Hiisnii Mustafa Ozyegin in the Bank due to his direct share in Fiba Holding A.S.

Summary Information on the Bank’s Services and Activity Areas

The Bank was incorporated as a privately owned bank authorized for customer deposit acceptance and the Head
Office of the Bank is located in Istanbul, Turkey. As of 31 December 2019, the Bank serves with 63 domestic
branches and 1.541 employees.

Other Information

The Bank’s Commercial Title : Fibabanka Anonim Sirketi

The Bank’s General Directorate Address : Esentepe Mah. Bliyiikdere Caddesi
No:129 Sisli 34394 istanbul

The Bank’s Phone and Fax Numbers : Telephone : (0212) 381 82 82
Fax : (0212) 258 37 78

The Bank’s Web Site Address : www.fibabanka.com.tr

The Bank’s E-Mail Address : malikontrol@fibabanka.com.tr

Reporting Period : 1 January 2019 - 31 December 2019

The financial statements, related disclosures and notes in this report are presented, unless otherwise indicated,
in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL).

Information on application differences between consolidation practices as per the Regulation on Preparation
of Consolidated Financial Statements of Banks as per the Turkish Accounting Standards, and entities subject
to full or proportional consolidation or deducted from equity or not subject to any of these three methods

As per the Regulation on Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements of Banks, the investments in financial
affiliates are subject to consolidation whereas as per the Turkish Accounting Standards, the investments in both
financial and non-financial subsidiaries are subject to consolidation. There are no investments in entities subject
to proportional consolidation or to deduction from equity.

Current or likely actual or legal barriers to immediate transfer of equity or repayment of debts between
parent bank and its subsidiaries

None



SECTION TWO

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Current Period Prior Period
ASSETS Footnotes (31/12/2019) (31/12/2018)
L FC Total L FC Total

I FINANCIAL ASSETS (Net) 3.401.883 3.418.554|  6.820437|  4.490.504 |  2.323.300 |  6.813.804
1.1 Cashand Cash Equivalents (5.1.1) 633.126 |  2.595.084 |  3.228.210 |  1.441.078 1.595.013 | 3.036.091
1.1.1 Cash and Balances at Central Bank 200.986 1.506.889 2.707.875 403.654 1.360.908 1.764.562
112 Banks (5.13) 402.631 88.195 490.826 731.709 134105 965.814
143 Money Market Placements 30.010 30.010 306.208 306.208
114 Expected Credit Loss (-) 501 501 493 493
1.2 Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (5..2) 2.045.039 718 2,045,757 1.587.304 5.315 1.592.619
.21 Government Debt Securities 24835 706 15.541 1.097 3.986 26.083
1.2 Equity Securities
.23 Other Financial Assets 2.020.204 1 2.020.116 1.565.207 1.329 1.566.536
1.3 Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (5.1.4) 11.952 795.616 807.568 739 696.939 704.338
.31 Government Debt Securities 11.952 177.546 189.498 7.39 16.376 B.775
3.2 Equity Securities 3.800 3.800 2113 1713
1.3.3 Other Financial Assets 614,270 614.270 677.850 677.850
1.4 Derivative Financial Assets (5.1.2) 711,766 27.136 738.902 |  1.454.723 26.033 1.480.756
1.4.1  Derivative Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss T11.766 17.136 738.902 1.454.713 26.033 1.480.756
1.4.2  Derivative Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Il FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST (NET) (5.1.6) 6.656.778 | 7.594.623 |  14.251.401 7.729.631 5.237.999 | 12.967.630
21 Loans (5.1.5) 7.270.746 7.200.662 | 14.477.408 8.096.236 5.063.831 13.160.067
22 Lease Receivables (5.1.10)
23 Factoring Receivables (5.L5) 173 1.369 3.092 14.311 14311
24 Financial Assets Measured at Amortised Cost (5.1.8) 188.506 386.592 575.098 188.864 174.168 363.032
241 Government Debt Securities 188.506 386.592 575.098 188.864 174.168 363.032
242 Other Financial Assets
25 Expected Credit Losses (-) 804.197 804.197 569.780 569.780
Il ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND ASSETS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) (5.1.16) 63.247 63.247 215,235 215,235
34 Assets Held for Sale 63.241 63.241 1523 1523
3.2 Related to Discontinued Operations
V. EQUITY INVESTMENTS 36.397 36.397 26.397 26.397
41 Investments in Associates (Net) (5.L7) 4.897 4.897 4.897 4.897
410 Associates Accounted by Using Equity Method
44.2 Unconsolidated Associates 4.897 4.897 4.897 4.897
4.2 Investments in Subsidiaries (Net) (5.1.8) 31,500 31.500 21500 21.500
4.2.1 Unconsolidated Financial Subsidiaries
4.2.2 Unconsolidated Non-financial Subsidiaries 31.500 31.500 11.500 21.500
43 Joint Ventures (Net) (5..9)
431 Joint Ventures Accounted by Using Equity Method
432 Unconsolidated Joint Ventures
V. TANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) (5.1.12) 324.109 324,109 257.069 257.069
V. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) (5..13) 69.894 69.894 35,001 35,001
6.1 Goodwill
62 Other 69.894 69.894 35.001 35.001
VI INVESTMENT PROPERTY (Net) (5.1.14)
VI CURRENT TAX ASSET 3.509 3.509 365 365
IX. DEFERRED TAX ASSET (5..15) 54503 54.503 79.351 79.351
X OTHER ASSETS (5.17) 37.049 28.661 265.710 206.484 17.840 124,34

TOTAL ASSETS 10.847.369 |  11.041.838 |  21.889.207 | 13.040.037 |  7.579.139 |  20.619.176

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION)
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Current Period Prior Period
LIABILITIES Footnotes (31112/2019) (31/12/2018)
L FC Total L FC Total

I DEPOSITS (5.1.1) 6.658.867 6.906.821 |  13.565.688 6.314.662 4.998.479 |  11.313.141
Il FUNDS BORROWED (5.113) 16.773 842,608 859.381 10.298 1.328.914 1.339.212
. MONEY MARKET FUNDS 733.257 733.257 495.936 495.936
IV. - SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) (5.11.4) 383.937 1.334.395 1.718.332 503.729 1.338.856 1.842.585
4.1 Bills 383.937 383.937 480.459 480.459
4.0 Asset Backed Securities . . 23.270 . 3.270
43 Bonds 1.334.395 1.334.395 1.338.856 1.338.836
V. FUNDS
5.1 Borrower funds
5.2 Other
VI FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
VIl DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (5.11.2) 761.112 27.093 788.205 1.490.186 26.067 1.516.253
7.1 Derivative Financial Labilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 761.112 27.093 788.205 1.490.186 26.067 1.516.253
7.2 Derivative Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
VIIl. - FACTORING LIABILITIES
X, LEASE LIABILITIES (Net) (5.11.6) 63.707 4.929 68.636 463 463
X, PROVISIONS (5.11.8) 97.137 97.137 109.751 109.751
101 Provisions for Restructuring
10.2  Reserve for Employee Benefits 29.953 29.953 23.4%9 13.499
103 Insurance Technical Provisions (Net)
10.4  Other Provisions 67.184 67.184 86.252 86.252
Xl CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES (5.1.9) 41.045 41.045 39.477 39.477
XIl.  DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
XIll.  LIABILITIES FOR ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) (5.11.10)
131 Held for Sale
13.2  Related to Discontinued Operations
XIV.  SUBORDINATED DEBTS (B.1.11) 1.789.018 1.789.018 1.596.143 1.596.143
141 Loans
14.2 Other Debt Instruments 1.789.018 1.789.018 1.59.143 1.596.143
XV OTHER LIABILITIES (5.IL5) 383.021 186.395 569.416 691315 352,651 1.043.966
XVI.  SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (5.I112) 1.646.351 12.741 1.659.092 1.348.458 (26.209)]  1.322.249
16.1  Paid-in Capital 941.161 941.161 941.161 941.161
16.2  Capital Reserves 210.253 210.253 128.678 128.678
16.2.1 Equity Share Premium 128.678 128.678 128.678 128.678
16.2.2 Share Cancellation Profits . .
16.2.3 Other Capital Reserves 81.575 81.575
16.3  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Loss Not Reclassified Through Profit or Loss (7.717) (7.717) (5.743) (5.743)
16.4  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income or Loss Reclassified Through Profit or Loss 3.033 12.741 15.774 (363) (26.209) (26.572)
16.5  Profit Reserves 284.348 284.348 410.286 410.286
16.5.1 Legal Reserves 31719 31719 21.886 21.886
16.5.2 Statutory Reserves
16.5.3 Extraordinary Reserves 252,629 152629 388.400 388.400
16.5.4 Other Profit Reserves . .
16.6  Profit or Loss 215.246 215.246 (125.619) (125.619)
16.6.1 Prior Periods' Profit or Loss 319 319 (322.629) (322.629)
16.6.2 Current Period Net Profit or Loss 14,927 114.927 197.010 197.010
16.7  Minority Interest 87 87 58 58

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 10.051.950 |  11.837.257 | 21.889.207 | 10.507.876 |  10.111.300 |  20.619.176

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Current Period Prior Period
Footnotes (31/12/2019) (31/12/2018)
TL FC Total TL FC Total

A. OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS (I+11+111) 8.357.010 31.229.346 39.586.356 14.192.074 28.752.316 42.944.390
I GUARANTIES AND WARRANTIES (5.111.1) 432.859 591.809 1.024.668 419.636 451.914 871.550
1.1. Letters of guarantee 432.859 317.754 750.613 419.207 266.723 685.930
1.1.1 Guarantees Subject to State Tender Law - - - - - -
1.1.2 Guarantees Given for Foreign Trade Operations - - - - - -
1.1.3 Other Letters of Guarantee 432.859 317.754 750.613 419.207 266.723 685.930
1.2 Bank Acceptances - 105.847 105.847 429 128.996 129.425
1.2.1 Import Letter of Acceptances 105.847 105.847 429 128.996 129.425
1.2.2 Other Bank Acceptances - - - -
1.3. Letters of Credit 168.208 168.208 56.195 56.195
1.3.1 Documentary Letters of Credit 168.208 168.208 56.195 56.195
1.3.2 Other Letters of Credit - - - -
1.4, Prefinancing Given as Guarantee - -
1.5. Endorsements - - - -
1.5.1 Endorsements to the Central Bank of Turkey - - -
1.5.2 Other Endorsments - - - -
1.6. Purchase Guarantees for Securities Issued - - - -
1.7. Factoring Guarantees - - -
1.8. Other Guarantees - - - -
1.9. Other Collaterals - - - - - -
. COMMITMENTS 1.400.659 4.244.481 5.645.140 2.090.036 1.909.177 3.999.213
2.1. Irrevocable Commitments (5.11.1) 1.400.659 4.244.481 5.645.140 2.090.036 1.909.177 3.999.213
2.1.1 Asset Purchase Commitments 282.771 4.244.481 4.527.252 1.168.457 1.909.177 3.077.634
2.1.2 Deposit Purchase and Sales Commitments - - - - - -
2.1.3 Share Capital Commitments to Associates and Subsidiaries - - - - - -
2.1.4 Loan Granting Commitments 876.316 - 876.316 615.901 - 615.901
2.1.5 Securities Issue Brokerage Commitments - - - - -
2.1.6 Commitments for Reserve Requirements - - - - - -
2.1.7 Commitments for Cheque Payments 187.578 - 187.578 199.635 - 199.635
2.1.8 Tax and Fund Liabilities from Export Commitments 5.940 5.940 6.502 - 6.502
2.1.9 Commitments for Credit Card Limits 32.901 - 32.901 85.881 - 85.881
2.1.10  Commitments for Credit Cards and Banking Services Promotions 1 - 1 1 - 1
2.1.11  Receivables from Short Sale Commitments of Marketable Securities - - - -
2.1.12  Payables for Short Sale Commitments of Marketable Securities - - - - - -
2.1.13  Other Irrevocable Commitments 15.152 - 15.152 13.659 - 13.659
2.2. Revocable Commitments - - - - -
2.2.1 Revocable Loan Granting Commitments - -
222 Other Revocable Commitments - - - - - -
. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (5.111.5) 6.523.492 26.393.056 32.916.548 11.682.402 26.391.225 38.073.627
3.1 Hedging Derivative Financial Instruments 1.009.479 1.188.040 2.197.519 503.405 427.169 930.574
3.1.1 Fair Value Hedges 1.009.479 1.188.040 2.197.519 503.405 427.169 930.574
3.1.2 Cash Flow Hedges - - - - - -
3.1.3 Foreign Net Investment Hedges - - - - - -
3.2 Trading Derivative Financial Instruments 5.514.013 25.205.016 30.719.029 11.178.997 25.964.056 37.143.053
3.2.1 Forward Foreign Currency Buy/Sell Transactions 789.133 3.670.515 4.459.648 1.468.168 3.893.850 5.362.018
3.2.1.1 Forward Foreign Currency Transactions - Buy 300.839 1.919.936 2.220.775 622.317 2.048.015 2.670.332
3.2.1.2 Forward Foreign Currency Transactions - Sell 488.294 1.750.579 2.238.873 845.851 1.845.835 2.691.686
3.2.2 Swap Transactions Related to Foreign Currency and Interest 2.351.909 17.281.148 19.633.057 7.002.428 17.823.279 24.825.707
3.2.2.1 Foreign Currency Swap- Buy 1.305.805 8.192.207 9.498.012 2.669.515 9.553.843 12.223.358
3.2.2.2 Foreign Currency Swap- Sell 996.104 8.494.921 9.491.025 4.282.913 7.743.346 12.026.259
3.2.2.3 Interest Rate Swap- Buy 25.000 297.010 322.010 25.000 263.045 288.045
3.2.2.4 |Interest Rate Swap- Sell 25.000 297.010 322.010 25.000 263.045 288.045
3.2.3 Foreign Currency, Interest Rate and Securities Options 2.372.971 3.096.321 5.469.292 2.700.476 3.545.849 6.246.325
3.2.3.1 Foreign Currency Options- Buy 1.186.485 1.568.157 2.754.642 1.258.568 1.853.870 3.112.438
3.2.3.2  Foreign Currency Options- Sell 1.186.486 1.528.164 2.714.650 1.441.908 1.691.979 3.133.887
3.2.3.3 Interest Rate Options- Buy - - - -
3.2.3.4 Interest Rate Options- Sell - - -
3.2.3.5 Securities Options- Buy - - - -
3.2.3.6 Securities Options- Sell - - - - -
3.2.4 Foreign Currency Futures 5.484 - 5.484
3.2.4.1 Foreign Currency Futures- Buy - 5.484 - 5.484
3.2.4.2 Foreign Currency Futures- Sell - -
3.2.5 Interest Rate Futures - - -
3.2.5.1 Interest Rate Futures- Buy - - - -
3.2.5.2 Interest Rate Futures- Sell - - - - -
3.2.6  Other 1.157.032 1.157.032 2.441 701.078 703.519
B. CUSTODY AND PLEDGES RECEIVED (IV+V+VI) 139.427.639 69.316.021 208.743.660 119.227.962 57.297.849 176.525.811
\'A ITEMS HELD IN CUSTODY 2.589.824 486.973 3.076.797 1.499.164 299.350 1.798.514
4.1 Customer Fund and Portfolio Balances 1.464.433 1.464.433 260.501 - 260.501
4.2 Investment Securities Held in Custody 295.983 320.411 616.394 270.090 124.099 394.189
4.3 Cheques Received for Collection 374.930 150.636 525.566 469.250 161.039 630.289
4.4 Commercial Notes Received for Collection 119.792 15.926 135.718 141.021 14.212 155.233
4.5 Other Assets Received for Collection - - - -
4.6 Assets Received for Public Offering - - - - - -
4.7 Other Items Under Custody 334.686 - 334.686 358.302 - 358.302
4.8 Custodians - - - - - -
V. PLEDGES RECEIVED 136.837.815 68.829.048 205.666.863 117.728.798 56.998.499 174.727.297
5.1 Marketable Securities 299.004 90.954 389.958 245.559 330 245.889
5.2 Guarantee Notes 277.294 231.955 509.249 183.471 203.345 386.816
5.3 Commodity 46.554 46.554 -
5.4 Warranty - - - - - -
5.5 Immovables 9.517.452 12.306.034 21.823.486 9.339.825 8.405.100 17.744.925
5.6 Other Pledged Items 126.744.065 56.153.551 182.897.616 107.959.943 48.389.724 156.349.667
5.7 Pledged Items - Depository - - . .
VI ACCEPTED BILL, GUARANTEES AND WARRANTEES - - - - - -

TOTAL OFF_BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS (A+B) 147.784.649 100.545.367 | 248.330.016 133.420.036 86.050.165  219.470.201

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN
1 JANUARY 2019-31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated.)

INCOME AND EXPENSE ITEMS Footnotes Current Period Prior Period
(01/01/2019-31/12/2019 (01/01/2018 - 31/12/2018)
I. INTEREST INCOME (5.1V.1) 2.496.641 2.620.901
1.1 Interest on Loans 2.232.296 2.379.330
1.2 Interest on Reserve Requirements 24.574 31.645
1.3 Interest on Banks 117.235 144.851
1.4 Interest on Money Market Placements 28.968 5.312
1.5 Interest on Marketable Securities Portfolio 89.228 59.003
1.5.1 Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss 17.803 3.063
1.5.2 Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income 42.829 39.419
1.5.3  Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 28.596 16.521
1.6 Financial Lease Income - -
1.7 Other Interest Income 4.340 760
1. INTEREST EXPENSE (-) 1.680.573 1.747.535
2.1 Interest on Deposits (5.1V.2) 1.276.700 1.243.137
2.2 Interest on Funds Borrowed (5.1v.2) 184.436 217.688
2.3 Interest on Money Market Borrowings 21.760 308
2.4 Interest on Securities Issued (5.1V.2) 179.864 270.389
2.5 Lease Interest Expense 16.998 -
2.6 Other Interest Expenses 815 16.013
. NET INTEREST INCOME (I - 1) 816.068 873.366
Iv. NET FEES AND COMMISIONS INCOME 206.746 81.247
4.1 Fees and Commisions Received 241.360 122.980
4.1.1  Non-cash Loans 12.697 14.063
4.1.2 Other (5.1v.12) 228.663 108.917
4.2 Fees and Commisions Paid (-) 34.614 41.733
4.2.1  Non-cash Loans 226 168
4.2.2 Other (5.1v.12) 34.388 41.565
v DIVIDEND INCOME (5.1V.3) - -
VI. TRADING INCOME / LOSS (Net) (5.1v.4) 73.115 7.431
6.1 Trading Gain / Loss on Securities 62.340 64.586
6.2 Gain / Loss on Derivative Financial Transactions (441) (130.355)
6.3 Foreign Exchange Gain / Loss 11.216 73.200
Vi OTHER OPERATING INCOME (5.1V.5) 171.485 217.783
vii TOTAL OPERATING INCOMEI (III+IV+V+VI+VIl) 1.267.414 1.179.827
IX. EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS (-) (5.1v.6) 489.872 470.830
X. OTHER PROVISION EXPENSES (-) 98 16.074
Xl PERSONNEL EXPENSES (-) 261.476 232.653
Xil. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-) (5.1IV.7) 262.102 221.992
X NET OPERATING INCOME / LOSS (VII-IX-X-XI-XII) 253.866 238.278
XIv. AMOUNT IN EXCESS RECORDED AS GAIN AFTER MERGER - -
XV. INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS UNDER EQUITY ACCOUNTING - -
XVI. GAIN / LOSS ON NET MONETARY POSITION - -
XVII. P/L BEFORE TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (XllI+...+XVI) (5.1V.8) 253.866 238.278
XVIIl.  TAX PROVISION FOR CONTINUING OPERATIONS (%) (5.1v.9) (38.910) (41.264)
18.1 Current Tax Provision (23.601) (117)
18.2 Deferred Tax Expense Effect (+) (15.309) (41.147)
18.3 Deferred Tax Income Effect (-) - -
XIX. NET PROFIT / LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (XVII£XVIII) (5.1v.10) 214.956 197.014
XX. INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
20.1 Income From Non-current Assets Held for Sale - -
20.2 Profit from Sales of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures - -
20.3 Income From Other Discontinued Operations - -
XXI. EXPENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) - -
21.1 Expenses on Non-current Assets Held for Sale - -
21.2 Losses from Sales of Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures - -
21.3 Expenses From Other Discontinued Operations - -
XXIl.  PROFIT / LOSS BEFORE TAXES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XX-XXI) - -
XXIIl.  TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (%) - -
23.1 Current Tax Provision - -
23.2 Deferred Tax Expense Effect (+) - -
23.3 Deferred Tax Income Effect (-) - -
XXIV. NET PROFIT / LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XXII-XXIII) - N
XXV. NET PROFIT / LOSS (XIX+XXIV) (5.1v.11) 214.956 197.014
25.1 Group Profit/Loss 214.927 197.010
25.2 Minority Interest 29 4
Earnings per share 0,00228 0,00209

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY 2019-31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Current Period Prior Period
(01/01/2019- (01/01/2018 -
31/12/2019 31/12/2018)
I PROFIT / LOSS FOR THE PERIOD 214.956 197.014
I OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 40.312 (16.780)
2.1 Not Reclassified Through Profit or Loss (2.034) (1.107)
2141 Property and Equipment Revalution Increase/Decrease - -
2.1.2 Intangible Assets Revalution Increase/Decrease
213 Defined Benefit Pension Plan Remeasurements Gain/Loss (2.542) (1.384)
2.1.4 Other Comprehensive Income Items Not Reclassified Through Profit or Loss - -
2.1.5 Tax Related Other Comprehensive Income Items Not Reclassified Through Profit or Loss 508 277
2.2 Reclassified Through Profit or Loss 42.346 (15.673)
2241 Foreign Currency Conversion Differences -
Valuation and/or Reclassification Income/Expense of Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Other
222 Comprehensive Income 52.393 (19.660)
223 Cash Flow Hedge Income/Loss - .
2.2.4 Foreign Net Investment Hedge Income/Loss
2.2.5 Other Comprehensive Income Items Reclassified Through Profit or Loss - -
2.2.6 Tax Related Other Comprehensive Income Items Reclassified Through Profit or Loss (10.047) 3.987
1. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (I+I1) 255.268 180.234

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN
1 JANUARY 2019-31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income or Expense Other Accumulated Comprehensive Income or Expense
That Will Not Be Reclassified in Profit and Loss That Will Be Reclassified in Profit and Loss
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY Paid-in Share Share Other Capital Profit Prior Period Current Period Total Equity Excluding Minority Total
Capital Premium Certificate Reserves 1 2 3 4 5 6 Reserves Net Income / Loss | Net Income / Loss Minority Interests Interests Equity
PRIOR PERIOD
(31/12/2018)
I Balances at beginning of the period 941.161 128.678 - - - (4.636) (10.899) 243.284 (158) 167.128 1.464.558 54 1.464.612
Il Correction made as per TAS 8 . - - . . - . . (322.597) - (322.597) - (322.597)
2.1 Effect of corrections - - -
2.2 Effect of changes in accounting policies - . - - (322.597) - (322.597) (322.597)
Il Adjusted balances at beginning of the period (I+II) 941.161 128.678 - - - (4.636) (10.899) 243.284 (322.755) 167.128 1.141.961 54 1.142.015
V. Total Comprehensive Income - - - - - (1.107) (15.673) - - 197.010 180.230 4 180.234
V. Capital Increase in Cash - - - - - - - - - - - -
VI.  Capital Increase through Internal Reserves - - - - - - - - - - - -
VIl Capital reserves from inflation adjustments to paid-in capital - - - - - - - - - - - -
VIIl. - Convertible Bonds - - - - - - - - - - - -
IX.  Subordinated Debt - - - - - - - - - - - -
X.  Increase/Decrease by Other Changes . - - - - - .- - - - - -
XI.  Profit distribution - - - - - - - 167.002 126 (167.128) - -
1.1 Dividends - - -
1.2 Transfers to reserves - - 167.002 (167.002) -
11.3 Others - - 167.128 (167.128)
Balances at the end of the period (lll+IV+......+X+XI) 941.161 128.678 - - - (5.743) (26.572) 410.286 (322.629) 197.010 1.322.191 58 1.322.249
CURRENT PERIOD
(31/12/2019)
I. Prior period ending balance 941.161 128.678 - - - (5.743) (26.572) 410.286 (322.629) 197.010 1.322.191 58 1.322.249
I Correction made as per TAS 8 - - - - - - - - - - - -
2.1 Effect of corrections - - - -
2.2 Effect of changes in accounting policies . - - . . . - - . .
Il Adjusted balance (I+1l) 941,161 128.678 - - - (5.743) (26.572) 410.286 (322.629) 197.010 1.322.191 58 1.322.249
V. Total Comprehensive Income - - - - - (2.034) 42,346 .- . 214.927 255.239 29 255.268
V. Capital increase in cash - - - - - - - - - - - -
VI Capital increase through internal reserves . . . . . . . . . . . .
VIl Capital reserves from inflation adjustments to paid-in capital - - - - - - - - - - - -
VIIl.  Convertable Bonds - - - - - - - - - - - - -
IX. Subordinated Debt (*) - - - 81.575 - - - - - - 81.575 - 81.575
X.  Increase / decrease due to other changes - - - - - - - - - - - -
XI.  Profit Distribution - - - - - - - (125.938) 322.948 (197.010) - -
11.1 Dividends - - - - -
112 Transfers to reserves - - (125.938) 322.597 (196.659)
113 Other - 351 (351)
Balances at the end of the period (Ill+IV+......+X+XI) 941.161 128.678 - 81.575 - (7.777) 15.774 284.348 319 214.927 1.659.005 87 1.659.092
(") Bank has classified the additional borrowing of TL 100.000 nominal and its interest expense, which has a capital stock character, under “other capital reserves according to the “TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation” Standards (“TAS 32").

1. Tangible and intangible asset revaluation reserve
2. Accumulated gains/losses on remeasurement of defined benefit plans

3. Other (other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method that will not be reclassified to profit or loss and other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

4. Exchange differences on transition,

5. Accumulated gains (losses) due to revolution and/ or reclassification of financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,

6. Other (accumulated gains or losses on cash flow hedge, other comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures accounted for using equity method that will be reclassified to profit or loss and other

amounts of other

income that will be reclassified to profit or loss)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY 2019-31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Footnotes

Current Period
(01/01/2019 - 31/12/2019)

Prior Period
(01/01/2018 - 31/12/2018)

1.1.1
1.1.2
1.1.3
1.1.4
1.15
1.1.6
1.1.7
1.1.8
1.1.9

1.2.1
122
1.23
1.2.4
1.2.5
1.2.6
1.2.7
1.2.8
1.2.9
1.2.10

2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9

31
32
33
3.4
3.5
3.6

VI.

Vil

CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities

Interest received (+)

Interest paid (-)

Dividend received (+)

Fees and commision received (+)

Other income (+)

Collections from previously written off loans and other receivables (+)
Cash payments to personnel and service suppliers (-)

Taxes paid (-)

Other (+/-)

Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities

Net (increase) / decrease in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (+/-)
Net (increase) / decrease in due from banks (+/-)

Net (increase) / decrease in loans (+/-)

Net (increase) / decrease in other assets (+/-)

Net (increase) / decrease in bank deposits (+/-)

Net (increase) / decrease in other deposits (+/-)

Net (increase) / decrease in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (+/-)
Net (increase) / decrease in funds borrowed (+/-)

Net (increase) / decrease in matured payables (+/-)

Net (increase) / decrease in other liabilities (+/-)

Net Cash Provided from Banking Operations (+/-)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Net Cash Flow Provided from Investment Activities (+/-)

Cash paid for the purchase of associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures (-)

Cash obtained from the sale of associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures (+)

Cash paid for the purchase of tangible and intangible assets (-)

Cash obtained from the sale of tangible and intangible assets (+)

Cash paid for the purchase of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (-)
Cash obtained from the sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (+)
Cash paid for the purchase of financial assets at amortised cost (-)

Cash obtained from the sale of financial assets at amortised cost (+)

Other (+/-)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Cash Provided from Financing Activities (+/-)

Cash obtained from funds borrowed and securities issued (+)
Cash outflow from funds borrowed and securities issued (-)
Equity instruments issued (+)

Dividends paid (-)

Payments for financial leases liabilities (-)

Other (+/-)

Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate on Cash and Cash Equivalents (+/-)

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I+I1+1l1+IV)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the Period (+)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Period (V+VI)

525.892

2.278.852
(1.641.379)

241.146
242.412
170.638

(460.711)
(48.849)

(256.217)

(132.784)
(452.701)
(165.633)

(1.229.672)
(101.962)
(600.589)

2.922.380

(477.854)

(26.753)

393.108

(318.700)
(10.000)
(109.280)
6.101
(203.590)
257.817
(275.476)

63.410
(47.682)

35.502
191.995

(233.788)
77.295

(75.065)
34.845
2.088.158

2.123.003

165.242

2.294.316
(1.691.601)
120.560
148.530
301.395
(401.278)
(32.475)
(574.205)

54.570

597.196
940.948
(143.872)
(154.303)
29.784
(1.043.345)

(742.776)
570.938

219.812

(248.858)

(21.500)
(78.064)
13.503
(92.549)
158.477
(193.392)

(35.333)

587.519

776.839
(189.320)

233.413
791.886
1.296.272

2.088.158

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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UNCONSOLIDATED PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLE

FOR THE PERIODS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019 AND 2018

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

PROFIT DISTRIBUTION TABLE

Current Period (*)

(01/01/2019-31/12/2019)

Prior Period

(01/01/2018-31/12/2018)

1.1
1.2
1.2.1
1.2.2
1.2.3

1.6
1.6.1
1.6.2
1.6.3
1.6.4
1.6.5
1.7
1.8
1.9
1.9.1
1.9.2
1.9.3
1.9.4
1.9.5
1.10

1.12
1.13

2.1
2.2
2.2.1
2.2.2
2.2.3
2.2.4
2.2.5
2.3
2.4

3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4

DISTRIBUTION OF CURRENT YEAR INCOME

CURRENT YEAR INCOME

TAXES AND DUTIES PAYABLE (-)
Corporate Tax (Income Tax)
Income witholding tax

Other taxes and duties

NET INCOME FOR THE YEAR (1.1-1.2)

PRIOR YEARS LOSSES (-)
FIRST LEGAL RESERVES (-)
OTHER STATUTORY RESERVES (-)

NET INCOME AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION [(A-(1.3+1.4+1.5)]

FIRST DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-)

To owners of ordinary shares

To owners of privileged shares

To owners of preferred shares

To profit sharing bonds

To holders of profit and loss sharing certificates
DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-)

DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-)
SECOND DIVIDEND TO SHAREHOLDERS (-)

To owners of ordinary shares

To owners of privileged shares

To owners of preferred shares

To profit sharing bonds

To holders of profit and loss sharing certificates
STATUTORY RESERVES (-)

EXTRAORDINARY RESERVES

OTHER RESERVES

SPECIAL FUNDS

DISTRIBUTION OF RESERVES

APPROPRIATED RESERVES

DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS (-)

To owners of ordinary shares

To owners of privileged shares

To owners of preferred shares

To profit sharing bonds

To holders of profit and loss sharing certificates
DIVIDENDS TO PERSONNEL (-)

DIVIDENDS TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS (-)

EARNINGS PER SHARE

TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES

TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%)
TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES

TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES (%)

DIVIDEND PER SHARE

TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES

TO OWNERS OF ORDINARY SHARES (%)
TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES

TO OWNERS OF PRIVILEGED SHARES (%)

250.130
38.086
22.747

15.339

212.044

212.044

0,00225
0,23%

237.823
41.164
3

41.161

196.659

9.833

186.826

186.826

0,00209
0,21%

(*) The decision on profit distribution of 2019 will be given at the General Assembly.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

SECTION THREE
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Explanations on the basis of presentation

Preparation of the financial statements and the accompanying footnotes in accordance with Turkish
Accounting Standards and the Communiqué on Principles and Procedures on the Accounting Practice and
Documentation of Banks

The Bank prepares its financial statements in accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Reporting Regulation
which includes the regulation on “The Procedures and Principles Regarding Banks’ Accounting Practices and
Maintaining Documents” published in the Official Gazette dated 1 November 2006 with No. 26333, and other
regulations on accounting records of banks published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board
(“BRSB”) and circulars and pronouncements published by the BRSA and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards
(“TFRS”) published by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority for the matters not
regulated by the aforementioned legislations.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in thousands of TL based on the historical cost
convention, except for the financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value.

Explanations about Leases Standard TFRS 16

The Bank has begun to prepare its unconsolidated financial statements for the first time by 1st of January
2019, according to “TFRS 16 Leasing Standard” published in the Official Gazette dated April 2018 with no
29826 and became valid as of 1 January 2019. Practices and effects of TFRS 16 transition has been explained
in Notes XXVII of Section lIl.

Prior period financial statements were adopted to new format in accordance with “Communique on Change
on Communique on Publicly Announced Financial Statements, Explanations and Notes to These Financial
Statements” published in the Official Gazette dated 1 February 2019 with no 30673.

Accounting policies and valuation principles applied in preparation of consolidated financial statements

The accounting policies and valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements are
explained in Notes Il and XXVI below.

The Group applied “partial conversion approach” which led to equalization of beneficial property and leasing
liabilities, during the first transition to TFRS 16, by taking all benefits of easing conditions. Accordingly,
comparative information presented in the context of TAS 17 and related comments were not rearranged for
year 2018.

12



FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanations on the usage strategy of financial instruments and on foreign currency transactions
Usage strategy of the financial instruments

The major factor in managing interest rate and liquidity risk at the balance sheet is parallel movement of
assets and liabilities.

Exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk are controlled and measured by various risk
management systems, and the balance sheet is managed under the limits set by these systems and the limits
legally required. Value at risk models are used for this purpose.

Purchase-sale transactions of short and long-term financial instruments are realized within predetermined
risk limits that are allowed for the purpose of increasing risk-free return on capital.

The foreign currency position is carried based on a currency basket to minimize the foreign exchange risk.
Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency exchange rates used in converting transactions denominated in foreign currencies and their
presentation in the financial statements

The Group recognizes the foreign currency transactions in accordance with TAS 21 “The Effects of Changes
in Foreign Exchange Rates”. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from the foreign currency transactions
are converted into Turkish Lira by using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction and recognized in
accounting records. At the end of the periods, foreign currency assets and liabilities are converted into
Turkish Lira by using the spot foreign currency exchange rates of the Bank and the related currency conversion
differences are recognized as foreign exchange gains and losses.

As at the end of the related periods, the Bank’s foreign currency exchange rates are as follows in full TL:

31 December 2019 31 December 2018
US Dollar 5,9402 5,2609
Euro 6,6506 6,0280

Explanations on consolidated subsidiaries

Fiba Portfoy Yonetimi A.S. (“Fiba Portfoy”); the subsidiary of the Bank was consolidated by using full
consolidation method in the consolidated financial statements dated 31 December 2018. Fibabanka A.S. and
Fiba Portfoy Yonetimi A.S. together are referred to as “the Group” in the report.

Capital Markets Board (“CMB”) approved Fiba Portfoy’s licence application for portfolio management activity
and the licence numbered PYS. PY 56/1267 and dated 12 December 2013 was assigned to Fiba Portfoy.

The objective of Fiba Portfoy is to manage portfolios consisting of financial assets as a representative by
entering into portfolio management contracts in accordance with CMB laws and relevant regulation and also
to perform capital markets operations. Besides, Fiba Portfoy can manage the portfolios of local and foreign
investment funds, investment trusts, local/foreign real persons, brokerage companies and other similar legal
entities within the context of the related regulation as portfolio management activities. On the condition
that, the requirements of the Capital Markets regulations are fulfilled and necessary approvals and licences
from the Capital Markets Board are obtained; Fiba Portfoy can also perform investment advisory services,
market consultancy in Borsa istanbul A.S. Emerging Companies Market, and intermediary services for the
trading of investment fund certificates. The Bank owns 99% of the equity of Fiba Portfoy whose headquarters
is located in Istanbul.

According to full consolidation method, the subsidiary’s 100% of assets, liabilities, revenues, expenditures
and off-balance sheet liabilities were combined with the Parent Bank’s assets,liabilities, revenues,
expenditures and off-balance sheet liabilities. Book value of the investment in the Group’s subsidiary and the
portion of the cost of subsidiary’s capital belonging to the Group are eliminated. All intragroup balances and
income and expenses relating to transactions between the Bank and its subsidiary are eliminated in full on
consolidation. Minority shares in the net income of consolidated subsidiary determined the net income of the
Group and were demonstrated as a separate item in the statement of profit or loss. Minority shares were
presented under equity in the consolidated financial statement.
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VI.

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanations on forward transactions, options and derivative instruments

The Parent Bank’s derivative transactions mainly consist of currency swaps, interest rate swaps, currency
options and currency forward purchase/sale contracts. The Parent Bank does not have any embedded
derivatives separated from the host contract.

The Parent Bank’s derivative instruments held for trading are classified as “Derivative Financial Assets
Measured at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss” or “Derivative Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income” in accordance with TFRS 9 and derivative instruments for hedging purpose are
classified, measured and accounted in accordance with TAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, respectively.

The liabilities and receivables arising from the derivative transactions are recorded as off-balance sheet items
at their contractual values.

Derivative transactions are measured at their fair values subsequent to their acquisition. In accordance with
the classification of derivative financial instruments, if the fair value is positive, the amount is classified as
"Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss" or "Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income”, if the fair value is negative, the amount is classified as "Derivative
Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss" or "Derivative Financial Liabilities at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive Income”. The fair value differences of derivative financial instruments are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss under trading profit/loss line as profit/loss from derivative
financial transactions.

Explanations on derivative financial instruments held for hedging

The Parent Bank enters into cross currency interest rate swap transactions in order to hedge the change in
fair values of fixed-rate financial instruments. While applying fair value hedge accounting, the changes in fair
values of hedging instrument and hedged item are recognised in statement of profit or loss.

If the hedging is effective, the changes in fair value of the hedged item, which is fixed rate TL denominated
loans, are presented in statement of financial position together with the hedged item. Subsequently,
derivative transactions are valued at their fair values and the changes in their fair values are recorded on
balance sheet under “Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss” or “Derivative Financial
Liabilities at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss”, respectively depending on the fair values being positive or
negative. Fair value changes are recorded under statement of profit or loss.

The Parent Bank performs effectiveness tests at the beginning of the hedge accounting period and at each
reporting period.

The hedge accounting is discontinued when the hedging instrument expires, is exercised, sold or no longer
effective. When discontinuing fair value hedge accounting, the cumulative fair value changes in carrying
value of the hedged item arising from the hedged risk are amortized to statement of profit or loss over the
life of the hedged item from that date of the hedge accounting is discontinued.

Explanations on interest income and expenses

Interest income and expenses are recognized on accrual basis by using internal rate of return for financial
assets and liabilities with given future cash payments and collections.

Explanations on fee and commission income and expenses

Except for fees and commissions that are integral part of the effective interest rates of financial instruments
measured at amortized costs, the fees and commissions are accounted for in accordance with “TFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. Except for certain fees related with certain banking transactions
and recognized when the related service is given, fees and commissions received or paid, and other fees and
commissions paid to financial institutions are accounted on accrual basis throughout the service period.
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Vil.

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanations on financial assets

Financial assets include cash on hand, contractual rights to receive cash or another financial asset from the
counterparty or the right to exchange of financial instruments or equity instrument transactions of the
counterparty. Financial assets are classified into three groups as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial assets measured at
amortized cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets other than the ones that are managed
with business model that aims to hold to collect contractual cash flows or business model that aims to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of the assets; and if the contractual
terms of the financial asset do not lead to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest
at certain date; that are either acquired for generating a profit from short term fluctuations in prices or are
financial assets included in a portfolio aiming to short-term profit making. Financial assets at the fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value and remeasured at their fair value after recognition.
All gains and losses arising from these valuations are reflected in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans measured at fair value through profit or loss are subject to valuation in accordance with fair value
principles and profit or losses, emerging as a result of valuation, are recognized under profit/loss accounts.
The Bank has classified a portion of its extended loans as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
as per TFRS 9 standard. The aforementioned loans have been demonstrated on other financial assets line
under “Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” on the balance sheet.

Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if financial asset is held
within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized by adding transaction costs
to acquisition cost reflecting the fair value of the financial asset. After the recognition, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income are remeasured at fair value. Interest income calculated with
effective interest rate method arising from financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
and dividend income from equity securities are recorded to statement of profit or loss. “Unrealized gains and
losses” arising from the difference between the amortized cost and the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income are not reflected in the statement of profit or loss of the period
until the acquisition of the asset, sale of the asset, the disposal of the asset, and impairment of the asset
and they are accounted under the “Accumulated other comprehensive income or expense to be reclassified
through profit or loss” under shareholders’ equity. When these securities are collected or disposed of, the
accumulated fair value differences reflected in the equity are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Equity securities, which are classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
that have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair values can be reliably measured are
carried at fair value.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at acquisition cost including the
transaction costs which reflect the fair value of those instruments and subsequently recognized at amortized
cost by using effective interest rate method. Interest income obtained from financial assets measured at
amortized cost is accounted in statement of profit or loss.

In prior periods, the Bank has classified financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
amounting to TL 153.266 which were classified as available-for-sale financial assets to designate at “Financial
assets measured at amortized cost” as of January 2018.
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Viil.

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Loans

Loans are financial assets generated by providing cash, commodity or service to the borrower. These loans
and receivables are recorded by acquisition cost reflecting fair value and afterwards measured at amortized
cost by using effective interest (internal rate of return) method. Fees and other costs paid for the assets
taken as collateral for those loans are not recognized as cost of operation and accounted in expense accounts.
Bank’s loans are followed in “Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost” and “Financial Assets at Fair
Value Through Profit or Loss” accounts

Explanations on expected credit loss

The Parent Bank recognizes expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

As of 1 January 2018, the Bank recognizes provisions for impairment in accordance with TFRS 9 requirements
according to the “Regulation on the Procedures and Principles for Classification of Loans by Banks and
Provisions to be set aside” published in the Official Gazette dated 22 September 2016 numbered 29750. In
this framework, as of 31 December 2017, method of provisioning for impairment as set out in accordance
with the related legislation of BRSA has been changed by applying the expected credit loss model under TFRS
9.

Calculation of expected credit loss

The expected credit loss estimates are required to be unbiased, probability-weighted and include supportable
information about past events, current conditions, and forecasts of future economic conditions. Expected
credit loss is calculated by using following components: “Exposure at Default”, “Probability of Default” and
“Loss at Default”.

These financial assets are divided into three categories depending on the gradual increase in credit risk
observed since their initial recognition:

Stage 1

For the financial assets at initial recognition or that do not have a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. Impairment for credit risk will be recorded in the amount of 12-month expected credit
losses.

Stage 2

In the event of a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the financial asset will be
transferred to Stage 2. Impairment for credit risk will be determined on the basis of the instrument’s lifetime
expected credit losses.

Stage 3
Stage 3 includes financial assets that have objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date. For these

assets, lifetime expected credit losses are recognized.

As part of TFRS 9, expected credit loss models are improved in process of exposure at default, probability of
default and loss given default. These models are formed by taking into consideration internal ratings systems,
past data and prospective expectations and considering below factors;
- Costumer type (individual, corporate, commercial and SME)

Product type

Ratings used as part of internal ratings systems

Collaterals

Collection period

Exposure at default

Time passed from loan disbursement

Time to maturity

If the existing provision model is not able to reflect the situation, individual assessment is possible by using
the cash flow expectations of Credits Monitoring and Collection Department.
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Viil.

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanations on expected credit loss (continued)

Exposure at Default: Expresses the exposure amount when debtor defaults. It accounts along with the
maturity of the borrower. The amount of additional risk that may occur in case of default is added to the
amount of risk and included in the calculations by using the credit conversion rates (CCR) for irrevocable
commitments.

Probability of Default: Refers to the probability of default due to the inability of the debtor to fulfill its
obligations. 12-month or lifetime estimation is performed according to whether there is an increase in credit
risk or not.

Loss Given Default: In the default of the borrower, it is calculated as the expected credit loss to exposure
at default. Loss given default models include inputs such as product type, customer segment, collateral
structure, customer payment performance.

Macroeconomics Factors: Macroeconomics indicators are taken into account in determining the probability
of default component in the expected credit loss calculation. Future macroeconomics forecasts are
reflected in the expected credit loss calculations using more than one scenario.

While macroeconomics information is included, models and estimates reflecting the relationships between
model risk parameters and macroeconomics variables are taken into consideration. The main
macroeconomics indicators that make up these estimation models are the Gross Domestic Product (GDP)
and the unemployment rate. Macroeconomics estimation models include more than one scenario and the
related scenarios are taken into account in the expected credit loss calculations.

Future expectations are determined based on 2 scenarios, base and negative. Each scenario has
predetermined weights, and the final provisions are calculated by weighting on these probabilities.

Calculation of Expected Loss Period: In determining the lifetime expected credit loss, the period in which
the Bank will be exposed to credit risk is taken into consideration. Behavioural maturity analysis was
performed on credit cards and overdraft accounts. The maximum period for which credit losses are to be
recognized, except for credit cards and other revolving loans, is the contractual life of the financial
instrument unless a legal right is required to recall the loan.

Significant Increase in Credit Risk: Due to the significant increase in credit risk, the Bank performs
quantitative and qualitative assessments to determine the financial assets to be classified as Stage 2
(Significant Increase in Credit Risk).

Within the scope of the quantitative assessments made for the corporate segment, the Bank compares the
change between the starting date and the date of the report by taking into account the time passed since
the opening date. In order to make this comparison, the Bank specifies threshold values to determine which
changes are accepted as significant change. The decision to classify financial assets with a significant
increase in credit risk by exceeding these threshold values as Stage 2 is taken by the opinion of the Credits
Department.

Also, credit risk with an overdue period between 30 and 90 days is classified as Stage 2.

Within the scope of qualitative evaluations, financial assets under close monitoring as of the reporting date
are classified as Stage 2.

Explanations on offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when the Bank
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to collect/pay the
related financial assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Explanations on sale and repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions

Securities subject to repo (repurchase agreements) are classified as “Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss”, “Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income” or “Financial assets
measured at amortized cost” according to their purposes to be held in the Bank’s portfolio and evaluated
within the principles of the relevant portfolio. Funds obtained from repurchase agreements are followed
under the “Funds from repo transactions” account in liabilities and interest expense accruals are calculated
using the effective interest (internal rate of return) method on the difference between the sales and
repurchase prices corresponding to the period designated by a repurchase agreement.



XI.

XIl.

X1,

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanations on sale and repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions (continued)

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (“Reverse repo”) transactions are accounted under the
“Money market placements” in the balance sheet.

Explanations on noncurrent assets held for sale and discontinued operations and the related liabilities

A tangible asset (or a disposal group) classified as “asset held for sale” is measured at the lower of the
carrying value or fair value less costs to sell. Assets held for sale are not depreciated and presented in the
financial statements separately. An asset (or a disposal group) is regarded as “asset held for sale” only when
the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition. For a highly probable sale, there must be a valid plan prepared by the management for the sale of
asset including identification of possible buyers and completion of sale process. Furthermore, the asset should
be actively marketed at a price consistent with its fair value.

Events or circumstances may extend the period to complete the sale beyond one year. An extension of the
period required to complete a sale does not preclude an asset (or disposal group) from being classified as
held for sale if the delay is caused by events or circumstances beyond the entity's control and there is
sufficient evidence that the entity remains committed to its plan to sell the asset (or disposal group).

A discontinued operation is part of the Bank’s business classified as disposed or held-for-sale. The operating
results of the discontinued operations are disclosed separately in the statement of profit or loss.

The Group does not have any discontinued operations.

Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets

As at the balance sheet date, there is no goodwill in the accompanying financial statements. The intangible
assets of the Bank consist of software, intangible rights and other intangible assets.

The costs of the intangible assets purchased before 1 January 2005 are recognized at their inflation adjusted
costs as of 31 December 2004 and intangible assets purchased after 1 January 2005 are recognized at their
acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets of the Group are 3 to 10 years, and amortization rates are 10%
to 33,3%.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated in accordance with
the Turkish Accounting Standard 36 (TAS 36) “Impairment of Assets” and if the recoverable amount is less
than the carrying value of the related asset, an allowance for impairment is recognized.

Explanations on tangible assets

Tangible assets are measured at cost in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard 16 (TAS 16)
“Tangible Assets”.

The costs of the tangible assets purchased before 1 January 2005 are recognized at their inflation adjusted
costs as of 31 December 2004 and tangible assets purchased after 1 January 2005 are recognized at their
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any.

If there is objective evidence of impairment, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in accordance with
the Turkish Accounting Standard 36 (TAS 36) "Impairment of Assets” and if the recoverable amount is less than
the carrying value of the related asset, an allowance for impairment is recognized.

Gains/losses from the sale of the tangible assets are calculated as the difference between the net book value
and the net sales price.

Maintenance and repair costs incurred for tangible assets are recorded as expense.
There are no restrictions such as pledges, mortgages or any other restriction on tangible assets.

There are no changes in the accounting estimates that are expected to have an impact in the current or
subsequent periods.
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Explanations on tangible assets (continued)

Depreciation rates and estimated useful lives used for the tangible assets are as follows:

Tangible Assets Estimated Useful Lifes Depreciation Rates
(Years) (%)

Safe boxes 50 2

Vehicles 5 20

Real estate 50 2

Other tangible assets 4-20 5-25

Explanations on leasing transactions

As “TFRS 16 Leases” standard is valid starting on 1 January 2019, difference between operational lease and
financial lease disappeared so that leasing transactions will be recognized as right-of-use assets and will be
recognized under “Tangible Assets” and corresponding liability under “Lease Liabilities”.

Explanations on provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions and contingent liabilities are accounted in accordance with TAS 37 "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”. In the financial statements, a provision is made if there is a present
obligation that arises from past events as of the balance sheet date, if it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and if a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the amount is not reliably estimated and there is no
probability of cash outflow from the Bank to settle the liability, the related liability is considered as
“contingent” and disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Provisions recognized during the period are recognized within “other operating expenses”; reversals of
provisions recognized in the prior periods are recognized within “other operating income”.

Explanations on contingent assets

The contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the possibility
of an inflow of economic benefits to the Bank. If an inflow of economic benefits has become probable, then
the contingent asset is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. If it has become virtually certain
that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and the related income are recognized in the financial
statements of the period in which the change occurs.

Explanations on liabilities for employee benefits

As per the existing labour laws and agreements in Turkey, entities are required to pay severance for the
employees retired or fired. These payments are qualified as recognized retirement benefit plan according to
revised TAS 19 Employee Benefits. Severance payment liability recognized in the balance sheet is calculated
according to the net present value of expected amount in the future arising from all employees’ retirements
and represented in represented in financial statements. All actuarial losses and gains are accounted for as
other comprehensive income.

The major assumptions used in the actuarial calculation are as follows:

- Calculation is based on discount rate of 13,50%, inflation rate of 6,00% and real rate of rise in salary of
0,00%.

- Effective as of 31 December 2019, ceiling salary amount is considered as TL 6.379,86 (full TL).
- Individuals’ earliest retirement age is considered as retirement age.

- CSO 1980 mortality table is used for the death probabilities of male and female employees.

There is no employee foundation, fund or similar institutions.
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Explanations on taxation
Current Tax

Effective from 1 January 2006, statutory income is subject to corporate tax at 20%, on the other hand as per
the provisional article 91 of Law numbered 7061, which is added to Corporate Tax Law numbered 5520
corporate tax rate regarding 2018, 2019 and 2020 fiscal periods (accounting periods starting within the related
period for companies which are assigned special accounting period) has changed as 22%. This rate is applied
to accounting income modified for certain exemptions (like dividend income) and deductions (like investment
incentives), and additions for certain non-tax deductible expenses and allowances for tax purposes.

If there is no dividend distribution planned, no further tax charges are made. Dividends paid to the resident
institutions and the institutions working through local offices or representatives are not subject to withholding
tax. As per the decisions n0.2009/14593 and no.2009/14594 of the Council of Ministers published in the
Official Gazette no.27130 dated 3 February 2009, certain duty rates included in the articles no.15 and 30 of
the new Corporate Tax Law no.5520 are revised. Accordingly, the withholding tax rate on the dividend
payments other than the ones paid to the non-resident institutions generating income in Turkey through their
operations or permanent representatives and the resident institutions is 15%. In applying the withholding tax
rates on dividend payments to the non-resident institutions and the individuals, the withholding tax rates
covered in the related Double Tax Treaty Agreements are taken into account. Appropriation of the retained
earnings to capital is not considered as profit distribution and therefore is not subject to withholding tax.

The prepaid taxes are calculated and paid at the rates valid for the earnings of the related years. The
prepayments can be deducted from the annual corporate tax calculated for the whole year earnings.

In accordance with the tax legislation, tax losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable
income for up to five years. Tax losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.

In Turkey, there is no procedure for a final and definite agreement on tax assessments. Companies file their
tax returns with their tax offices by the end of 25th of the fourth month following the close of the accounting
period to which they relate. Tax returns are open for five years from the beginning of the year that follows
the date of filing during which time the tax authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related
accounting records on which they are based, and may issue re-assessments based on their findings.

Deferred Tax

The Group calculates and recognizes deferred tax for taxable temporary differences arising between the
carrying values of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding balances
considered in the calculation of the tax base according to the Turkish Accounting Standard 12 (TAS 12)
“Income Taxes”.

In accordance with the provisional article, added to Corporate Tax Law, corporate tax which is 20%, shall be
applied as 22% for the profit of company belonging to 2018, 2019 and 2020 fiscal periods. In accordance with
this provisional article, 22% tax rate has been calculated for periods, in which the deferred tax assets and
liabilities emerges and liabilities are met, while it is calculated with 20% for 2021 and following periods.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary and deferred tax assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax rate calculation has started to be applied over temporary expected credit losses as per TFRS 9
articles from 1 January 2018. The Bank calculates deferred tax also for possible risk provisions.

As of 31 December 2019, the deferred tax asset is TL 54.503 (31 December 2018: TL 79.351 the deferred tax
asset). The deferred tax asset is calculated as the net of taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax income/(expense) is recognized within “Deferred Tax Expense Effect” in the statement of profit
or loss; deferred tax expense for the current period is TL 15.309 (1 January - 31 December 2018: TL 41.147
expense). Deferred tax effects of the transactions and events recognized directly in the shareholders’ equity
are also recognized directly in the shareholders’ equity which is TL 9.539 expense (1 January -31 December
2018: TL 4.264 income).
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Transfer Pricing

The article 13 of the Corporate Tax Law describes the issue of transfer pricing under the title of “disguised
profit distribution” by way of transfer pricing. “The General Communiqué on Disguised Profit Distribution by
Way of Transfer Pricing” published at 18 November 2007, explains the application related issues on this topic.

According to this Communiqué, if the taxpayers conduct transactions like purchase and sale of goods or
services with the related parties where the prices are not determined according to the arm’s length principle,
then it will be concluded that there is a disguised profit distribution by way of transfer pricing. Such disguised
profit distributions will not be deducted from the corporate tax base for tax purposes.

As stated in the “7.1 Annual Documentation” section of this communiqué, the taxpayers are required to fill
out the “Transfer Pricing, Controlled Foreign Entities and Thin Capitalization” form for the purchase and sale
of goods or services conducted with their related parties in a taxation period, attach these forms to their
corporate tax returns and submit to the tax offices. Related forms are submitted to tax offices on time
Additional explanations on borrowings

The Parent Bank provides resources from domestic and foreign individuals and institutions both by borrowing
funds and issuing bills and bonds.

Borrowing instruments are initially measured at acquisition cost and subsequently measured at amortized
cost with the effective interest method. In the accompanying financial statements, foreign currency
denominated borrowing funds are converted to Turkish Lira with the Group’s spot foreign exchange buy rates
and interest expenses incurred during the period relating to the borrowing funds are recognized in statement
of profit or loss.

Additional Tier | Capital

The Bank has recognised the issued Tier 1 securities of TL 100.000 nominal and related interest expense, as
“other capital reserves” within the scope of “TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation”. It has recognised
the issued Tier 1 securities of USD 30.000 nominal and related interest expense as “subordinated debt”.

Explanations on share certificates issued
None.

Explanations on bank acceptances and bills of guarantee

Bank acceptances and bills of guarantee are presented within off-balance sheet liabilities as being possible
liabilities and commitments. Cash transactions relating to bank acceptances and bills of guarantee are
realized concurrently with the customer payments.

As of the balance sheet date, there are no bank acceptances and bills of guarantee recognized as liability
against an asset.

Explanation on government incentives

As of the balance sheet date, the Group does not have any government incentives
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Explanations on segment reporting

The Bank operates in consumer banking services, current accounts, deposit accounts, long term investment
products, clearing and custody services, credit and atm services, retail loans, long term mortgage loans, and
all other kinds of consumer banking services and commercial services. The Bank’s consolidated subsidiary
Fiba Portfoy is dealing with portfolio management and its activity outcomes and asseté&liabilities are reported
under “Treasury and Headquarters”.

Retail Corporate & Total
Commercial Treasury & Operations
Banking(*) Banking Headquarters of the Bank

Current Period -1 January - 31 December 2019
Operating Income 231.332 879.290 156.793 1.267.415
Operating Profit (176.072) 259.912 170.026 253.866
Taxation (38.910)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Period 214.956

Current Period -31 December 2019

Segment Assets 2.066.449 13.441.734 6.381.024 21.889.207
Total Assets 21.889.207
Segment Liabilities 11.018.021 2.499.553 6.712.541 20.230.115
Shareholders’ Equity 1.659.092
Total Liabilities 21.889.207

(*) SME segment which is transfered to commercial segmet as of March due to the new segmentation study has been reported under retail banking for first two months.

Retail Corporate & Total
Commercial Treasury & Operations
Banking Banking Headquarters of the Bank

Prior Period -1 January - 31 December 2018
Operating Income 291.997 612.016 275.814 1.179.827
Operating Profit (126.624) 267.152 97.750 238.278
Taxation (41.264)
Net Profit/(Loss) for the Period 197.014

Prior Period -31 December 2018

Segment Assets 3.528.275 10.541.060 6.549.841 20.619.176
Total Assets 20.619.176
Segment Liabilities 8.020.416 2.653.055 8.623.456 19.296.927
Shareholders’ Equity 1.322.249
Total Liabilities 20.619.176

Profit reserves and distribution of the profit

In financial tables, except legal reserves, retained earnings can be distributed on condition that it has legal
reserve requirement explained below.

Legal reserves are consisted of first and second reserves as determined in Turkish Commercial Code (TCC).
First legal reserve, is appropriated by TCC at the rate of 5%, until the total reserve is equal to 20% of issued
and fully paid-in share capital. Second legal reserve, appropriated at the rate of 10% of distributions in excess
of 5% of issued and fully paid-in share capital, but Holding companies are not subject to such transaction.
According to the Turkish Commercial Code, legal reserves can only be used to compensate accumulated losses
and cannot be used for other purposes unless they exceed 50% of paid-in capital.

In the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Bank, which was held on 27 March 2019, it was decided to
set off the accumulated loss to extraordinary legal reserve; and to allocate the 2018 net profit amounting TL
196.659 as legal reserve of TL 9.833 and as extraordinary reserves of TL 186.826.
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XXV. Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share disclosed in the statement of profit or loss are calculated by dividing net profit for the
year by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the related period concerned.

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

Net Profit / (Loss) distributable to Common Shares 214.956 197.014
Average Number of Issued Common Shares (Thousand) 94.116.055 94.116.055
Earnings Per Share (Amounts presented as full TL) 0,00228 0,00209

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by distributing “bonus shares” to existing shareholders
from retained earnings. For the purpose of earnings per share computations, the weighted average number
of shares outstanding during the year has been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issued without a
corresponding change in resources by giving them a retroactive effect for the year in which they were issued
and for each earlier period. In case bonus shares are distributed after the balance sheet date but before the
preparation of the financial statements, earnings per share is calculated considering the new number of
shares.

There are no bonus shares issued by the Bank in 2019 (31 December 2018: None).

XXVI. Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash, cash in transit, purchased bank cheques and demand deposits including balance with Central Bank are
considered as “Cash”; interbank money market placements and time deposits at banks with original maturity
periods of less than three months and receivables from reverse repo are considered as “Cash Equivalents”.
Required reserves kept in Central Bank under blocked account are not “Cash Equivalents” in the statement
of cash flow.

XXVILI. Explanation on TFRS 16 Leases standard

The Bank has adopted new standard, changes and commands, which are valid as of 1 January 2019, in line
with the “TFRS 16 Leases” standard’s first time applying transition commands.

TFRS 16 “Lease” Standard
The Bank as a lessee according to “Lease” Standard:

The Bank assesses whether the contract has the quality of a lease or whether the lease includes the
transaction at the beginning of a contract. In case the contract is transferred for a certain period of time to
control the use of the asset defined for a price, it is either leased or includes a lease. The Bank reflects the
existence of a right of use and a lease liability to the financial statements at the effective date of the lease.

Existence of right to use:

The right to use asset is first recognized by cost method and includes:

a) the initial measurement amount of the lease obligation,

b) the amount obtained by deducting all the rental incentives received from all lease payments made at or
before the beginning of the lease;

c) all initial direct costs incurred by the Bank.

When applying the cost method, the Bank measures the right to use as follows:
a) deducts accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses and
b) measures the restatement of the lease obligation at the restated cost.

Bank applies depreciation clauses of TAS 16 Tangible Assets standard when measuring the depreciation of the
right to use.

Lease obligations:

At the effective date of the lease, the Bank measures its leasing liability at the present value of the lease
payments not paid at that time. Lease payments are discounted using the Bank's average borrowing interest
rates.

The lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability consist of the payments to be made
for the right of use during the lease term of the underlying asset and the unpaid payments at the effective
date of the lease. 23



XXVII.

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanation on TFRS 16 Leases standard (continued)

After the effective date of the lease, the Bank measures the leasing liability as follows:

a) Increase the book value to reflect the interest on the lease obligation

b) Reduces the book value to reflect the lease payments made and

c) The book value is measured to reflect reassessments and restructuring, or reflect to fixed lease payments
as of revised nature.

The interest on the lease liability for each period in the lease period is the amount calculated by applying a
fixed periodic interest rate to the remaining balance of the lease liability.

First Transition to TFRS 16 Leasing Standard

“TFRS 16 Leases” Standard was promulgated in Official Gazette No. 29826, dated 16 April 2018 to be applied
in the accounting period starting after 31 December 2018. The Bank applied TFRS 16 “Leasing” standard,
which replaced TAS 17 “Leasing”, as of 1 January 2019, the date of first implementation.

The Bank, as a lessee, reflected its right and liability to use the asset pertaining to the lease to its financial
tables. The new accounting principles is similar with the prior principles for the leaser.

Bank applied “partial conversion approach” which led to equalization of beneficial property and leasing
liabilities, during the first transition to TFRS 16, by taking all benefits of easing conditions. According to this,
comparative information presented in the context of TAS 17 and related comments were not rearranged.

The classifications and adjustments related with the first appliance to TFRS 16 Leases Standard as of 1
January 2019 can be seen below:

TFRS 16 TFRS16
31 December Classification Transition 1 January 31 December
2018 Effect Effect 2019 2019
Tangible Assets (Net) (*)(**) 257.069 1.557 75.901 334.527 343.731
Intangible Assets (Net) -- -- -- -- --
Other Assets (Net) (**) 224.324 (1.557) -- 222.767 222.767
Finance Lease Liabilities (Net) 463 . 75.901 76.364 85.568

(***)

(*) TL 75.901 of right and liability to use the asset pertaining to the lease, which were previously classified as financial

leasing according to TAS 17, were reflected to Bank’s financials according to TFRS 16 as of 1 January 2019.

(**) The Bank classified TL 1.557 as right to use asset under tangible asset according to TFRS 16 as of 1 January 2019, which were prepaid
lease before.

(***) The weighted average of interest rates applied by the Bank as of 1 January 2019, to the lease liabilities in TL and EUR were 23,9% and
1,7% respectively.

24



FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

SECTION FOUR
INFORMATION ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Total capital and capital adequacy ratio have been calculated in accordance with the “Regulation on Equity
of Banks” and “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks”.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group’s total capital has been calculated as TL 3.667.384 and the capital
adequacy ratio is 19,55% (As of 31 December 2018, the Group’s total capital amounted to TL 3.215.203 and
the capital adequacy ratio was 19,47%).

Information related to the components of consolidated shareholders’ equity:

1/1/2014
Current Amount as
Period per the
(31/12/2019) regulation
Amount before *

TIER | CAPITAL

Paid-in capital to be entitled for compensation after all creditors 941.161
Share Premium 128.678
Reserves (**) 518.380
Other comprehensive income according to TAS 15.774
Profit 214.956

Current period profit 214.956

Prior period profit

Bonus shares from associates, subsidiaries and joint-ventures not accounted in current period's
profit

Tier | Capital Before Deductions 1.818.949

Deductions From Tier | Capital

Valuation adjustments calculated as per the article 9. (i) of the Regulation on Bank Capital

Current and prior periods' losses not covered by reserves, and losses accounted under equity
according to TAS (-) 26.524

Improvement costs for operational leasing (-) 11.382

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred taxes (-)

Other intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability) 100.064

Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences 9.790

Differences arise when assets and liabilities not held at fair value, are subjected to cash flow
hedge accounting

Total credit losses that exceed total expected loss calculated according to the Regulation on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach

Securitization gains

Unrealised gains and losses due to the changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities

(**)The difference between the expected credit loss calculated in accordance with TFRS 9 and the total provision amount calculated with the method before TFRS 9 has been
recorded in the "Retained Earnings" account; in accordance with Provisional Article 5 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds, related amount is shown net by adding back 60%
of the provision difference, net of tax.
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1/1/2014
Current Amount as
Period per the
(31/12/2019) regulation

Amount before *

Net amount of defined benefit plans )

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier | Capital (-) )

Shares obtained against Article 56, Paragraph 4 of the Banking Law (-) i

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and

financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the

10% threshold of above Tier | Capital (-)

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and

financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital exceeding the

10% threshold of above Tier | Capital (-)

Mortgage servicing rights exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier | Capital (-) )

Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier | )

Capital (-)

Amount exceeding 15% threshold of Tier | Capital as per the Article 2, Clause 2 of the Regulation )

on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks (-)

The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and

financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital not deducted )

from Tier | Capital (-)

Excess amount arising from mortgage servicing rights )

Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences (-) )

Other items to be defined by the BRSA )

Deductions from Tier | Capital in cases where there are no adequate Additional Tier | or Tier Il A

Capitals

Total Deductions From Common Equity Tier | Capital 147.760

Total Common Equity Tier | Capital 1.671.189

ADDITIONAL TIER | CAPITAL

Preferred stock not included in Tier | capital and the related share premiums

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA 278.206

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA (Covered by Temporary

Article 4)

Additional Core Capital before Deductions 278.206

Deductions from Additional Core Capital

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Additional Tier | Capital (-)

Investments in equity instruments issued by Banks or financial institutions invested in Bank’s
Additional Tier | Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 7 of the Regulation

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier | Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the issued
share capital (-)
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Current
Period
(31/12/2019)
Amount

1/1/2014
Amount as
per the
regulation
before *

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier | Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the issued
share capital (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

Items to be Deducted from Tier | Capital during the Transition Period

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities which will not deducted
from Common Equity Tier | capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional
Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)

Net deferred tax asset/liability not deducted from Tier | Capital as per the Temporary Article 2,
Clause 1 of the Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks (-

)

Deduction from Additional Tier | Capital when there is not enough Tier Il Capital (-)

Total Deductions from Additional Tier | Capital

Total Additional Tier | Capital

278.206

Total Tier | Capital (Tier | Capital=Common Equity+Additional Tier | Capital)

1.949.395

TIER 1l CAPITAL

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by the BRSA

1.577.984

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by BRSA (Temporary Article 4)

Provisions (Article 8 of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks)

140.016

Tier Il Capital before Deductions

1.718.000

Deductions from Tier Il Capital

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier Il Capital (-)

Investments in equity instruments issued by banks and financial institutions invested in Bank’s Tier
Il Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 8 of the Regulation

11

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the
10% threshold of above Tier | Capital (-)

Total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier | Capital and Tier
Il Capital of unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of
the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier | Capital (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

Total Deductions from Tier Il Capital

11

Total Tier Il Capital

1.717.989

Total Equity (Total Tier | and Tier Il Capital)

3.667.384
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1/1/2014
Current Amount as
Period per the
(31/12/2019) regulation
Amount before *
Total Tier | Capital and Tier Il Capital ( Total Equity) 3.667.384
Loans granted against the Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law (-) )
Net book values of movables and immovable exceeding the limit defined in the Article 57, Clause
1 of the Banking Law and the assets acquired against overdue receivables and held for sale but
retained more than five years (-) _
Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-) )
Items to be Deducted from the Sum of Tier | and Tier Il Capital (Capital) During the Transition
Period )
The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier | Capital not deducted from Tier | Capital, Additional
Tier | Capital or Tier Il Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-) -
The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier | Capital not deducted from Additional Tier | Capital or )
Tier Il Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-)
The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital, of the net
deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences and of the mortgage servicing rights not
deducted from Tier | Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 2, Paragraph (1) and (2) and
Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-) )
EQUITY 3.667.384
Total Capital ( Total of Tier | Capital and Tier Il Capital ) 3.667.384
Total Risk Weighted Assets 18.757.549
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
Core Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 8,91
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 10,39
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 19,55
BUFFERS
2,61
Total Additional Core Capital Requirement Ratio (a+b+c)
a) Capital Conservation Buffer Requirement (%) 2,50
b) Bank-specific Counter-Cyclical Buffer Requirement(%) 0,11

c) Systemically Important Banks Buffer Requirement Ratio (%)
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Amount as
Current per the
Period regulation

(31/12/2019) before
Amount 1/1/2014 (*)

The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier | capital which will be calculated by the first
paragraph of the Article 4 of Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital
Buffers to risk weighted assets 4,39 --

Amounts lower than Excesses as per Deduction Rules

Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks
and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital

Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in Tier | Capital of unconsolidated banks --
and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% or less of the Tier | Capital

Remaining mortgage servicing rights "

Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences --

Limits for Provisions Used in Tier Il Capital Calculation --

General provisions for standard based receivables (before tenthousandtwentyfive limitation) 298.165

Up to 1,25% of total risk-weighted amount of general reserves for receivables where the standard
approach used 140.016

Total loan provision that exceeds total expected loss calculated according to Communiqué on --
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach

Total loan provision that exceeds total expected loss calculated according to Communiqué on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach, limited by 0,6% risk weighted assets -- --

Debt Instruments Covered by Temporary Article 4 (effective between 1.1.2018-1.1.2022)

Upper limit for Additional Tier | Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4

Amount of Additional Tier | Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4 that exceeds upper limit

Upper limit for Additional Tier Il Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4 --

Amount of Additional Tier Il Capital items subject to Temporary Article 4 that exceeds upper limit

* The amounts to be considered under the transitional provisions
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Amount as
per the
Prior Period regulation
(31/12/2018) before
Amount 1/1/2014 (*)

TIER | CAPITAL
Paid-in capital to be entitled for compensation after all creditors 941.161
Share premium 128.678
Reserves 410.286
Other comprehensive income according to TAS --
Profit 197.014

Current period profit 197.014

Prior period profit -
Bonus shares from associates, subsidiaries and joint-ventures not accounted in current period's profit -
Minority shares
Tier | Capital Before Deductions 1.677.139
Deductions From Tier | Capital --
Valuation adjustments calculated as per the Article 9 (i) of the Regulation on Bank Capital -
Current and prior periods' losses not covered by reserves, and losses accounted under equity according to
TAS (-) (**) 42.904
Improvement costs for operational leasing (-) 12.259
Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred taxes (-) -
Other intangibles other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability) 35.001
Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences 13.000

Differences arise when assets and liabilities not held at fair value, are subjected to cash flow hedge
accounting

Total credit losses that exceed total expected loss calculated according to the Regulation on Calculation
of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach

Securitization gains

Unrealised gains and losses due to the changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities

(**)The difference between the expected credit loss calculated in accordance with TFRS 9 and the total provision amount calculated with the method before TFRS 9 has been recorded
in the "Retained Earnings" account; in accordance with Provisional Article 5 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds, related amount is shown net by adding back 80% of the provision

difference, net of tax.
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Amount as
per the
Prior Period regulation
(31/12/2018)  before
Amount  1/1/2014 (*)

Net amount of defined benefit plans

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier | Capital (-) --

Shares obtained against Article 56, Paragraph 4 of the Banking Law (-)

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial
institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of
above Tier | Capital (-) --

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial
institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of
above Tier | Capital (-) -

Mortgage servicing rights exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier | Capital (-) --

Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier |
Capital (-) --

Amount exceeding the 15% threshold of Tier | Capital as per the Article 2, Clause 2 of the Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks (-) --

The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial
institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital not deducted from Tier | Capital

() -

Excess amount arising from mortgage servicing rights --

Excess amount arising from deferred tax assets from temporary differences (-) --

Other items to be defined by the BRSA --

Deductions from Tier | Capital in cases where there are no adequate Additional Tier | or Tier Il Capitals --

Total Deductions From Common Equity Tier | Capital 103.164

Total Common Equity Tier | Capital 1.573.975

ADDITIONAL TIER | CAPITAL -

Preferred stock not included in Tier | capital and the related share premiums --

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA --

Debt instruments and the related issuance premiums defined by the BRSA (Covered by Temporary Article
4) --

Additional Core Capital before Deductions

Deductions from Additional Core Capital --

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Additional Tier | Capital (-) --

Investments in equity instruments issued by Banks or financial institutions invested in Bank’s Additional
Tier | Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 7 of the Regulation --

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier | Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the issued share
capital (-) --

31



FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Prior Period
(31/12/2018)
Amount

Amount as
per the
regulation
before
1/1/2014 (*)

The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier | Capital of
unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% of the issued

share capital (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

Items to be Deducted from Tier | Capital during the Transition Period

Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities which will not deducted
from Common Equity Tier | capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional

Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)

Net deferred tax asset/liability not deducted from Tier | Capital as per the Temporary Article 2,
Clause 1 of the Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks (-)

Deduction from Additional Tier | Capital when there is not enough Tier Il Capital (-)

Total Deductions from Additional Tier | Capital

Total Additional Tier | Capital

Total Tier | Capital (Tier | Capital=Common Equity+Additional Tier | Capital)

1.573.975

TIER 1l CAPITAL

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by the BRSA

1.563.671

Debt instruments and share issue premiums deemed suitable by BRSA (Temporary Article 4)

Shares of third parties on Additional Tier | Capital

Shares of third parties on Additional Tier | Capital (Temporary Article 3)

Provisions (Article 8 of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks)

77.804

Tier |l Capital before Deductions

1.641.475

Deductions from Tier Il Capital

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier Il Capital (-)

Investments in equity instruments issued by banks and financial institutions invested in Bank’s Tier Il

Capital and having conditions stated in the Article 8 of the Regulation

245

Total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial
institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold

of above Tier | Capital (-)

Total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in Additional Tier | Capital and Tier Il
Capital of unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the

issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of Tier | Capital (-)

Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-)

Total Deductions from Tier Il Capital

245

Total Tier Il Capital

1.641.230

Total Equity (Total Tier | and Tier Il Capital)

3.215.205
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Amount as
per the
Prior Period regulation
(31/12/2018) before
Amount 1/1/2014 (*)
Total Tier | Capital and Tier Il Capital ( Total Equity)
Loans granted against the Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law (-)
Net book values of movables and immovable exceeding the limit defined in the Article 57, Clause
1 of the Banking Law and the assets acquired against overdue receivables and held for sale but
retained more than five years (-)
Other items to be defined by the BRSA (-) 2
Items to be Deducted from the Sum of Tier | and Tier Il Capital (Capital) During the Transition
Period
The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the Bank Owns 10% or less of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier | Capital not deducted from Tier | Capital, Additional
Tier | Capital or Tier Il Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-) -
The portion of total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated
banks and financial institutions where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier | Capital not deducted from Additional Tier | Capital or
Tier Il Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-) -
The portion of net long position of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and
financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or more of the issued share capital, of the net
deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences and of the mortgage servicing rights not
deducted from Tier | Capital as per the Temporary Article 2, Clause 2, Paragraph (1) and (2) and
Temporary Article 2, Clause 1 of the Regulation (-) -
EQUITY 3.215.203
Total Capital ( Total of Tier | Capital and Tier Il Capital ) 3.215.203 -
Total Risk Weighted Assets 16.514.413 -
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
Core Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 9,53
Tier | Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 9,53
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 19,47
BUFFERS
Total Additional Core Capital Requirement Ratio (a+b+c) 1,95
a) Capital Conservation Buffer Requirement (%) 1,88 -
b) Bank-specific Counter-Cyclical Buffer Requirement(%) 0,07

c) Systemically Important Banks Buffer Requirement Ratio (%)
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Amount as
per the
Prior Period regulation
(31/12/2018) before
Amount 1/1/2014 (*)

The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier | capital which will be calculated by the first
paragraph of the Article 4 of Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countercyclical Capital
buffers to risk weighted assets (%) 3,53 --

Amounts lower than Excesses as per Deduction Rules -- --

Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks
and financial institutions where the Bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital -- --

Remaining total of net long positions of the investments in Tier | Capital of unconsolidated banks
and financial institutions where the Bank owns more than 10% or less of the Tier | Capital -- --

Remaining mortgage servicing rights - -

Net deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences -- --

Limits for Provisions Used in Tier Il Capital Calculation

General provisions for standard based receivables (before tenthousandtwentyfive limitation) 288.131 --

Up to 1,25% of total risk-weighted amount of general reserves for receivables where the standard
approach used 77.804 --

Total loan provision that exceeds total expected loss calculated according to Communiqué on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach

Total Loan Provision that Exceeds Total Expected Loss Calculated According to Communiqué on
Calculation of Credit Risk by Internal Ratings Based Approach, Limited by 0,6% Risk Weighted
Assets -- .

Debt Instruments Covered by Temporary Article 4 (effective between 1.1.2018-1.1.2022) -- --

Upper Limit for Additional Tier | Capital Items subject to Temporary Article 4 -- --

Amount of Additional Tier | Capital Iltems Subject to Temporary Article 4 that Exceeds Upper Limit -- --

Upper Limit for Additional Tier Il Capital Items subject to Temporary Article 4 -- --

Amount of Additional Tier Il Capital Items Subject to Temporary Article 4 that Exceeds Upper
Limit -- --

* The amounts to be considered under the transitional provisions
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Explanations on reconciliation of shareholder’s equity items to balance sheet:

The difference between “Equity” in equity table and “Shareholder’s Equity” in the consolidated balance
sheet mainly arises from the subordinated bonds, general provisions and TFRS 9 transition effect. In the
calculation of Total Capital, general reserve up to 1,25% of credit risk is taken into consideration as Tier |l

Capital.

On the other hand, in the calculation of the ”Equity”, improvement costs for operational leases presented
under tangible assets in the balance sheet, together with related deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax
assets calculated for provision for possible losses and other items defined by the regulator are taken into
consideration as amounts deducted from Total Capital.

Debt instruments included in shareholder’s equity calculation:

Issuer

Fibabanka A.S.

Fibabanka A.S.

Fibabanka A.S.

Code of debt instrument (CUSIP, ISIN etc.)

X51386178237

TRSFIBA10016

X52096028571

Regulation of debt instrument

BRSA’s "Regulation on
Equities of Banks"
dated 1 November
2006” and English

BRSA’s "Regulation on
Equities of Banks"
dated 1 November

BRSA’s "Regulation on
Equities of Banks"
dated 1 November

Law 2006 2006” and English law
Consideration Status in Shareholders’ Equity Calculation
Situation of being subject to practice of being
taken into consideration with 10% deduction
after1/1/2015 No No No

Eligible at unconsolidated / consolidated

Unconsolidated and
Consolidated

Unconsolidated and
Consolidated

Unconsolidated and
Consolidated

Type of debt instrument

Subordinated Security

Subordinated Security

Subordinated Security

Recognized amount in shareholders’ equity
calculation (As of the most recent reporting date -
Thousand TL)

1.577.984

81.575

178.206

Nominal value of debt instrument (Thousand TL)

1.782.060

100.000

178.206

Related account of debt instrument

Subordinated Debt

Subordinated Debt

Instruments Shareholders’ Equity Instruments
Issuing date of debt instrument 24/03/16-10/05/17 20/03/19 31/12/19
Maturity structure of debt instrument
(Demand/Time) Time Demand Demand
Initial term of of debt instrument 11 years -- -

Issuer call subject to prior BRSA approval

Has repayment right

Has repayment right

Has repayment right

Optional call date, reimbursement amount 24/11/2022; 13/03/2024; 31/12/2024;
USD 300 million TL 100 million USD 30 million

On each interest

Subsequent call date, if any At the end of every payments date after
None 5th year following first 5 years
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Interest/Dividend Payments

Fixed or floating interest/dividend payments Floating interest

Floating interest

Floating interest

Upto pay back
option date 7,75% (5
years mid-swap
rate+5,758%);
afterwards current 5
years mid-swap

8% additional

10% additional

Interest rate or index value of interest rate rate+5,758%  return on TRLibor return on Libor
Whether there is any restriction to stop dividend payments or not None None None
Feature of being fully optional, partially optional or obligatory Obligatory Optional Optional
Whether there is any stimulant to repayment like interest rate hike or
not None None None
Feature of being cumulative or noncumulative - -
Feature of being convertible bonds
If there is convertible bonds, trigger incidents cause this conversion -
If there is convertible bonds, feature of full or partially conversion -
If there is convertible bonds, rate of conversion -
If there is convertible bonds, feature of conversion -oligatory or
optional- .
If there is convertible bonds, types of convertible instruments -
If there is convertible bonds, exporter of convertible debt instruments -
Feature of value reducement

Under the Under the

If there is a feature of value reducement, trigger incidents cause this

condition that
unconsolidated
and/or
consolidated Tier |
capital adequacy
ratio drop below

condition that
unconsolidated
and/or
consolidated Tier |
capital adequacy
ratio drop below

reducement BRSA’s ratio BRSA’s ratio

If there is a feature of value reducement, feature of full or partially Partially and Partially and

reducement of value totally totally

If there is a feature of value reducement, feature of being constant of

temporary - -

If there is a feature of value reducement, mechanism of value

incrementation - -- --
After the other After depositors, After depositors,

Claiming rank in case of winding up (Instrument that is just above borrowers except other borrowers other borrowers
debt instrument) depositors and Tier Il capital  and Tier Il capital
Meets the Meets the Meets the

conditions defined

by 8th article, does

not meet the

Whether meeting the conditions defined by 7th or 8th articles of conditions defined
Shareholders’ Equity of Banks Regulation by 7th article.

conditions defined
by 7th article, does
not meet the
conditions defined
by 8th article.

conditions defined
by 7th article, does
not meet the
conditions defined
by 8th article.

The conditions not met which were defined by 7th or 8th of the 7th or
8th articles of Shareholders’ Equity of Banks Regulation

Can not be
converted to stock.

Can not be
converted to stock.
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Explanations on TFRS 9 Transition Process

2019 2020 2021 2022
EQUITY ITEMS
Common Equity 1.671.189 1.593.180 1.515.169 1.437.159
Common Equity if transition process not implemented 2 1.437.159  1.437.159  1.437.159 1.437.159
Tier 1 Capital 1.949.395 1.871.386 1.793.375 1.715.365
Tier 1 Capital if transition process not implemented P 1.715.365 1.715.365 1.715.365 1.715.365
Total Capital 3.667.384 3.639.534 3.580.342 3.502.332
Equity if transition process not implemented c 3.502.332 3.502.332 3.502.332 3.502.332
TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED AMOUNTS
Total Risk Weighted Amounts 18.757.549  18.757.549  18.757.549  18.757.549
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIO
Common Equity Adequacy Ratio (%) 8,91 8,49 8,08 7,66
Common Equity Ratio if transition process not implemented ¢ (%) 7,66 7,66 7,66 7,66
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 10,39 9,98 9,56 9,14
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio if transition process not implemented € (%) 9,14 9,14 9,14 9,14
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 19,55 19,40 19,09 18,67
Capital Adequacy Ratio if transition process not implemented § (%) 18,67 18,67 18,67 18,67
LEVERAGE
Leverage Ratio Total Risk Amount 28.589.424  28.589.424  28.589.424  28.589.424
Leverage (%) 6,82 6,55 6,27 6,00
Leverage Ratio if transition process not implemented 9 (%) 6,00 6,00 6,00 6,00

@ Common Equity if “ Provisional Article 5 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds” not implemented
b Tier 1 Capital if Provisional Article 5 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds” not implemented

¢ Equity if “ Provisional Article 5 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds” not implemented

¢ Capital Adequacy Ratio calculated with Equity Items if “ Provisional Article 5 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds” not implemented

d Leverage Ratio calculated with Equity Items if “ Provisional Article 5 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds” not implemented
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Explanations on Consolidated Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as risks and losses that may occur if the counterparty fails ta comply with the
agreement’s requirements and cannot perform its obligations partially or completely on the terms set.

The debtors or group of debtors are subject to credit risk limits. The debtors’ or group of debtors’ and
industrial risk limitations are monitored weekly. Industry concentration is followed monthly,

Credit risk limits and breakdowns for daily transactions are followed daily. Risk concentrations of off-balance
sheet risks are followed by remote and on-site control activities.

Credit worthiness of both commercial loans’ and other debtors are being regularly monitored in accordance
with the regulations. By utilizing risk rating models which were developed for these purposes, in case the
debtors’ risk level increases, credit lines are readjusted and additional collaterals are received if needed.
The necessary documentation for utilized loans is taken in compliance with the related legislation.

In accordance with the Parent Bank’s lending policies, the debtor’s creditworthiness s analysed and the
adequate coliateral is obtained based on the financial position of the company and the type of loan; such as
cash collateral, bank guarantees, mortgages, pledges, bills and corporate guarantees.

There are control limits based on VaR over the positions of the the Parent Bank which are held as futures,
option contracts and other similar contracts. The credit risks carried for such instruments are managed
together with the risks arising from market fluctuations.

Indemnified non-cash loans are subject to the same risk weight with overdue loans.

The Parent Bank performs foreign trade finance and other interbank credit transactions through widespread
correspondent network. Accordingly, the Bank assigns limits perfodically to domestic banks, foreign banks
and other financial institutions based on review of their credit worthiness.

Within the Bank's risk appetite policy, the following concentrations are measured. They are presented to the
Asset and Liability Committee weekly and to the Risk Committee monthly.

As per Customer Group Concentration, Top 20 corperate debtor’s / risk group’s credit risk sum shall not
exceed 30% of the Bank's total credit risk.

Within the industry concentration, the Bank has set its risk appetite as “reasonable”, not to exceed 10% of
total loans per sector except the industries listed below.

Industry Proportional Limit
Construction 20%
Tourism 20%
Factoring 15%
Wholesale and Retail Business 15%

Within the framework of risk appetite policy, the sum of long-term loans which have a maturity mere than 1
year, shall not exceed 45% of the bank’s total loans. This ratio is menitored on a weekly basis at the Asset
and Liability Committee and on a monthly basis at the Risk Committee.

The Bank’s largest 100 and 200 cash loan customers compose 65% and 74% of the total cash loan portfolio,
respectively {31 December 2018: 55% and 65%, respectively}.

The Bank’s largest 100 and 200 nen-cash loan customers compose 85% and 95% of the total non-cash loan
portfolio, respectively (31 Decernber 2018: 78% and 89%, respectively).

The Bank’s largest 100 and 200 cash and non-cash loan customers represent 61% and 72% of the total “on
and off balance sheet” assets, respectively (31 December 2018: 53% and 64%, respectively}.

Expected credit loss for total credit risk of the Parent Bank amounts to TL 296.663 {5tage 1 and Stage 2} (31
December 2018; TL 288.131).
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Explanatiens on Consolidated Credit Risk (continued)

Current Period
Risk Amount *

Average
Risk Amount * =

Exposure Categories

Conditional and Unconditional Exposures to Central Governments or Central Banks 3.274.025 3171761
Conditional and Uncenditional Exposures to administrative Units and Non-Commercial
Enterprises B -
Conditional and Unconditicnal Exposures to Banks and Brokerage Houses 2.508.213 3.032.250
Conditional and Unconditional Exposures to Corporates 11,309,687 9.544 432
Conditional and Unconditional Retail Exposures 3_551.221 3.705.244
Conditional and Unconditional Exposures Secured by Real Estate Property 1.563.502 1.638.160
Past Due Receivables 356,201 300.081
Receivables Defined in High Risk Catogory by BRSA 54.222 24.055
Exposures in the Form of Collective Investment Undertakings 91,029 71.6%8
Other Receivables 984.592 958.015
Total 23.692.692 22.746.094
1 Includes tatal Ask amouncs befere the offect of credil risk mitigation but after credit conversiens.
(**] Reprosents the arithmetical average of quarterly repolts,

Priar Pericad Average

Risk Amount *

Risk Amount * ™

Expasure Categories

Conditional and Unconditional Exposures to Central Governments or Central Banks 2.101.754 2.921.495
Conditional and Unconditional Exposures to Administrative Units and Non-Commercial
Enterprizes
Conditional and Unconditional Exposures to Banks and Brokerage Houses 3.232.664 2.466.803
Conditional and Unconditional Exposures to Corporates 9.407.193 3.648.683
Conditional and Unconditional Retail Exposures 3.774.842 4,406,467
Conditional and Unconditional Exposures Secured by Real Estate Property 1.829.885 1.97%.665
Past Due Recetvables 287.004 232.015%
Receivables Defined in High Risk Category by BRSA 43,854 33.484
Exposures in the Form of Collective Investment Lindertakings 40.619 34.729
Other Receivables 949 654 714.872
Total 21.667.46%9 22.438.213
£ Ineludes total nsk amounts befare the effect af crodit dsh mitigation bue after rredit corverzions.
4™} Represents the arithmetical average of guartedy reports.
1. Profile of significant exposures in major regions:
Conditinral and Conditianal and
urcondibanal  unconditional Conditional and
edposlres o exposures to unconditional Conditional and Receivables
central  admiristrative  erposures to Conditional atd Conditional and  unconditianal defined in high  Collegtive
govemments units and banks and  uncodditizral  wnconditional BXPOEINEE risk category  inwestment
orgentral moncommerdial brovetage  exposures to retafl soccured by real Past dus by underaking Other
banks Entapes houses carparates Expuslres estale property receivables BRI 5 receivables Total
Current Peried *
Domestic 1.589. %69 1.040.255 10,453, 440 3344609 1.513.509 155201 51.71% 909 94392 21.467.409
EUl Countrigs - 1.116.540 192.110 k3 307 - - - FE L &
DECD Countries = - 308,236 -- 108 - - 108,341
{Ff-Shore Banking Fegicn - - - 402,193 - 41,191
L54, Canada - - 29.818 73,987 - - - 53.B05
Other Countries 12344 137494 m 176 447 18421
Aasociares, Subsidiaries and Joint -Ver tures - B - B - - -
Unallocated Assets/Uabilities - - - - - - -
Tatal 3569989 - 1.508.213 11.249.554 3,344,800 1.514.092 356,201 54,2121 1.019 984.592  11.452.4%2
11 Ircludes: sk 2mecnts bafara the elfecy af codlt -k mitlgation bk alter Tre credit commes o, .
I™1 Inclzdes GECD cauptries ather thar EL oountrics, USE and Canada.
1) Includes wysens and lishilizy iterns thak zanmat be allagaied an a canzistent basis,
Condinonal ane Conditicnal and
uncenditional  uncorditional Conditional ard
exposvres ke expasures ke unoonditional Conditional and fieceivables
central  admiristrative  exposures 1o Conditional and Conditional and  unconditianal defired in high  Collective
qowerrments urits are barks and  unconditional  uneceditional EXMISUrES risk category  investment
o central nonoommersial brokerage  erposures ta retail secured by req. Past due by undertaking Qther
banks EftErprises houses corparates exposures estats property  receivables BR34 5 _recevahles _Total
Current Periad *
Domestic 1419378 1HEED B.757 542 1.050.1%6 1158543 187.004 43,818 40,613 949,654 1R.7H. 11
EU Countries - 1.489.015 182977 I 1 -- -- - - 1,678,394
OFCD Lountries ™ 5.54 - 133 . - - - 5ATT
{Hf-Shore Banking Region 140,518 - - - - 240.528
LS4, Canada " B.66d 1.414 - - - 19.978
Other Countries - b.511 - 15 919 i 7.7
Associates, Subsidiarics and Joint -Yentures. . - - - B
Unial\ceated sssets(Liabilities = - - -- - - - - -
Tekl 3125195 - 3.2312.4564 5,200,761 3050333 1.731.235 A7.004 43.854 40.61% 949654 21.667.469

* Incuded Buk amaunts betora the effect of credls, dsk mitigation bt after the qedit cenverslins.
=} Inludes QOEFD eointries ctber than EJ cuuntifes, LS4 and Jamda,
= Jarhides assets and Uability items that calmit b2 2locsted ona cons'sleat basis,
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Explanations on Consolidated Credit Risk (continued)

Risk profile by sectors or counterparties

Currart Perjod 1 i 1 4 5 4 T [ § 1 T FC Takal
ryiEulb.lﬁl S BRI - 50,901 110.059 Han 18.948 51U 4 - 147,004 18438 18542
Farming and Stackbreeding 46,431 Ldn 10417 41T ] 50 L Lm0 EAE
Farestry 1858 - - 1330 164 113 il - 051 1 10934
Fishing i - - 15532 102 - it - - M 1553 1.3
Manufactoring $2.503 - 1.738.90% 49,664 26,613 T8.081 W1 - 1.898.813 1.86.341 11
Wiring ard Qarnying 4 887 - 81T 10.m3 T .18 b - R0 170637 .27
Producticn L ' B50. 265 FIrEiL) 50 10582 .06 1457315 ALIETH 205457
E.ectrie’ty, Gas ard Water L] - - 19, 345 IALH ] Ml ] - 10,724 S804 33811
Constructian 18630 - 1195518 1,696,138 E10.289 56.58 .45 - 195567 {.642.472 4,596,142
Services 3.195.389 - E431,880 4,690,412 435,993 447,227 163,154 11188 984,592 4316951 9,714,984 11591.93
Whaesaie ard Setall Trade 3373 73857 TEad? B4 51713 181 - 80006 405,540 1.1
rcomedation and Dinire 10.423 LT B3 419.793 % pYon 423,54 ' B3, 68T 115
Trenspoetaticr. ard Telesom. 15861 - - G40 AB.947 710 10432 m - - 15,781 TLES PRI
Financid Instituticns 321440 L4150 {51612 42866 i 5 584,591 195,137 5,280,842 72659
Feal Eszate ard Rental Senvices 142 - 485654 15.T71 m 550 5 - 33089 Forl 515,583
Self-Emilayment Servees B3 - 5500 2500 4 ? 5157 k.l 9497
Eduzatianal Services £ 043 167,12 AN 126,047 EL ] 12 - 100,346 127586 nm
Hez thane Soril Serdes ‘1438 " B 331,530 35.060 ki 674 181 - - 472185 #1258 B[O
Othert .55 - 6,35 1.454.6M 151938 40.745 39,700 5997 91.02% - 1.419.897 £12.060 031,957
Total 3,589 98% 2808311 11.249.554 5,344,800 151408 356,10 5411 91039 944,592 10,858,358 12.334.397 15692802
1 iz fhok AP Ts efwe Lo e¥ecl o° et ri i gakion b 3fte- the creic comeno,
1 Convitions] 2o wremdziere] esdeirms o ceairy, ShamTERG o Ce) 4 bahs
2 oadithara] end uncosdticred exprunes b semitiinis unks and ron-comEndal evleeies

B bt ard bcherzge bauses

e

6 Garafuignal and vnzooed fiaal meogirit ie00ed Ty redl sl pimes
i et due raceieables
3 eyreead s defived finig ik rategoey Ty 205
2 EapieLrarin e form <1 ¢s] ks e nant ingmtebir @
e Dl r2cfiables
Pricr Period 1 i i 4 i b i § 9 0 L fe Total
ferlettural 40K - 10,342 5507 HW AL i N a1 16450 4445
Farming and Stochreeding 8.3 - 100,704 [EACT L5 L34 Is] - Wi 13970 407484
Fefestry 1.m 5638 15,47 L b ) bR 1580 143
Fihig 1044 1.7% - e - L% - 156
Nanufachurirg 156,820 - - 2412701 §00.7°4 168 751 184 - L5757 1,285,271 1,859.069
tirirg, ard Quamyirg 16,734 - N 14 1.3 10,53 1 - - L 19 0,35
Fatuctin 1408 14541 I 1.0 B35 1700 - 178164 Bis. e 1280
Eleetricity Gas anc Water 151 I 1434 IASH b ‘W 411534 40 8.k
Constructizn 6.6 - - 1553311 1.168.475 b1 0371 3605 - 1410.533 1510338 1820871
Services 1036, 463 - 1489.29 L4848 4,778 88797 135569 1.M7 - 549654 BIOTTEE SIIATE 10.T3ETED
Yhrlesale 27d Retad, Trade 680 - 5170 L5657 B3 .8 1464 - - 105733 174085 1435
Aceamodatior and Girtng 07 BTN .90 4151355 WG HET 4455 01.6% 1348
Tratgportation and lecon, 0 - - 5100 MR 4B AT 1 - Mg AT L
Financral Insthutiont 1627508 - 1809 A Wi 141 &l " 49654 1565.76 1M40% 6,060,840
el Estate and Renidl, darvices T - .5 T 1194 L4 1 - - 138,50 name 445,348
Self Emplosenet Serdces 2145 - 1444 Ll aa i3 i nin
Filuczticndt Sevices 1 i .10 117.882 Bt A7 13113 47510
Health avd ki, Seevices .3 - - JLAN K1 f1i [ L " - e 4401 e
Qthes* ] SE5. 149 RN 1.331.02 A11.342 88,905 i1.463 3] 4518 - 1701548 1.003.168 L7058
Tetal* 1130195 3 H1AE4 9300178 1080383 1TH.EE AT.00d 41,85 40519 49654 1255665 051804 2adTde8

i I adea. 5% a1 efoe e effect of riaft o g o afer the craci sonvenians
: Coneblans. arduncondiizeel azposiet by cenlra, amemnizns 2 el barks

2 Conftigngl and etz expetines be s inebyaie us end ron-cnivarcal erlepeices
il s anoe Lo, ipares o et and bioke ege hovees

4 Sowilizd an eezrd Ll gpemires o ozl

& Cardtend ardurcoodithal ] pmnes

b Covdlismel ard nrceodinal geposres secnd by e estal pragerty

1P de rzeghizg

3: Roceiahies deived in vigh ik eategery n EFSH

% b2y the form o rofiectrt it neriabing:

ik Do racsivell i
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Explanations on Consolidated credit risk (continued)

Analysis of maturity-bearing exposures according to remaining maturities

Expusure Categaries £ Current Period*

Term bo Maturlty

Up ko 1 Menth 1.-3 Manths 3+ Menths 612 Months Dver 1 year
Conditional and Wncandilicoal Exposuras to Centra Govemments or Central Banks T4l B14 6155 162,282 13 467 938.171
Condivianal ard Unconditional Exposures b Administrative Units and Mon-pmmeesial Enterprises - - - - -
Conditicnal and Uncenditioral Expos.res to Banks and Brokerage Houses 1.585.001 54,854 15674 76.704 T61.924
Londiticnal and Uncenditional Segcsures t Other Comporates - - - - -
Conditicral and Uneoeditional Expesures t SWE Corporates - - - - -
Conditional and Unzorditiona. Expotures to Corparates 1.011.136 1,037,508 143611 1.567.501 5303 009
Conditional and Unconditicoal Retail Expesures 193,610 450.231 832,00 TiE.B14 £10.409
t.enditional and Uncanditional Exposures Secured by Real Estate Praperty 44488 B1.423 S%187 96.503 1.131.4m
Past Cue Receivables - - - - -
Receivables Defined in Hgh Risk Catepory by BRSA 4463 1488 1,335 3569 11165
Expasurcs i1 the Form of Bands Secured by Mortaages - - - - -
Shiart term Taposures 1o Banks, Browerage Houses and Comporates
Lipasures in the Form of Colleetiv Investment Lindertakings
Cther Recelvables - -
Takal™ 5.406_7E3 1.631.745 2161259 1.596. 450 10206971

* ltarns with determined maturities are dassied azcerding ta remainlig naturities

~ bernt withaut detarmined maturltes are rat incladed:TL /H.059 cartral bank receivabies, TL 259795 cash asd equivolents, TL 6.581 =redt vund limits, TL 207 339 nenecash foan Limi's ve gayment sl lbments . TL 687,281 other receivabes,
TL 336,21 averdue receivables, 91,029 Ivestment funds anc ~L ¥ miscelaneaus recoivables,

Exposure Categories / Prior Period”

Term to Maburiby

X U3p to 1 Month 1 -3 Monkhs 3 & Manths 6-12 Manths Dver 1 year
Londitiznal and Urconditional Expasures tn Central Governments or Central Banks 1.NLI7E 1.9% 73433 74.155 1.2E6.301
Carditicaal and Wreanditional Exposures to ddministral-ve U qits and Hon-Cammercial Enterprises - - - - -
Conditional and Urcorditional Exposures 6 Banks and Brokerage Howses 1.065.807 15,095 131.250 65,223 555,180
Canditional ard Unconditional Exposures to Other Corpormtes - - - - -
Conditional ard Unconditional Expotures to StAE Carparates - - - - -
Conditional ane. Uneenditional Expasases to Copomtes 1907 524 1.008.938 1.508.616 w091 17T
Lordltiona, and Unzonditional Retai, Exposures 456,613 443,611 630,324 45451 BT
Corwitienal and Unconditional Exasures Secured by Real Estate Property 15457 60, 650 0,437 118.8%1 124500
Fast Jue Receivables - - - - -
Receivables Oefined in High Ride Category by BRSA 16,026 1415 4 781 4134
Exposures in the Feem of Bands Saoured by Mortlages - - - - -
Shent, merin Exposures to Banks, biokerage Fouses and Corperates
Exposures in the Form of Critective Invastirent Undrreakings -
Qther Receivables 40.1E3 - - . - -
Tatal™ 5.714.701 1.531.3%3 1.435.TOB 1.840.603 &,15%.253

* lkers with dete’m'haﬂ malurities & e ¢lassifled according ta remalning maturities
“* Jtems without determned masurties ars not Indeded:TL 600,434 eeatral bank recaivables, T 138532 cam ard eguiva.enb, TL *7.476 <redit zard Lir ks, Ty 147005 raa cash lezn Linlts
recaivables, TL 287,004 averdie recefvables, 47619 Investment furds.

e aayment commitments, TL 74241 other

The Parent Bank uses long-term credit ratings announced by an international rating firm, The Islamic
International Ratings Agency (IIRA}. Such ratings are used in compliance with regulation on “The Licencing
and Operations of the Rating Firms”. For the Bank's capital adequacy calculation, only the latest credit ratings
are used that are currently accepted as valid by the issuing Credit Rating Agency.

Credit ratings are used for the receivables from banks and brokerage houses. The securities in the trading
book have credit ratings. Therefore, no credit ratings is used for issuer or issue.

Based on “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” Appendix 1, The
1slamic International Ratings Agency (IIRA)’s credit ratings corresponds to credit grades below:

BRSA Credit Quality Grades

IRA Risk Rating

Long Term Credit
Quality Grades

1 AAA and AA-
z A+ and A-
3 BBB+ and BBB-
4 BB+ and BB-
I 5 B+ and B-
6

CCC+ and helow
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Explanations on Consolidated credit risk (continued)

Exposures by risk weights

Risk Weights /

Current Period ® 10

i 0%

5%

100%

150%

Oeductions
Tram Equity

Total

Expasures

Befice Cradit 1.552.0%
Bitk Witigaticn

Biposures After

Cradit Risk

Mitigation 199,00

LEIAT

1340 1360

1415703

1.41.85

1342583

12155511

LIEX]

H.674

B.698.692

1 ARLERE

Rk Weights /

Prior Perind o b

5% 0%

75k

100%

Lathictions
fram Equity

Toual

Expasures

Before Cradit 11280 -
Risk Mitigation

Expostires After

Credit Fick

Witigaticn 315N

1ML

157814 L7450

43091

148,853

ThAT8AM

10,035,343

W

“ALIT4

1,667,449

11,667,469

Information by major sectors and type of counterparties

As per TFRS;

Significant Increase in Credit Risk (Stage 2); when the loan is not under default yet, but there is a significant
increase in the credit risk since origination date, the life time expected credit losses are calculated for these

loans.

Credit Impaired (Stage3); includes financial assets whose probability of default is considered to be 100%. The

life time expected credit losses are recognized for impaired loans.

Current Periad Loans Provisions
Irmpaired {IFRS S} Expacted

Signifieant Credit Credit

Increase in Credit |Impaired Losses

Major Sector / Counterparties Risk {Skage 2} (Stage 3) [IFRS &)
Agriculiture 54.994 &0.781 35.955
Farming and Stockbresdmg £1.802 48260 27.445
Foresty 3.192 12.521 B.510
Fishery -- - -
Manufacturing 106.824 201.682 123367
Miming and Quarrying 31.444 62.585 40,076
Productien 74.804 133.484 79332
Electricity, Gas and Water 586 5.613 3.559
Construction 630,492 144.241 178,827
Services 883.661 417.420 2¥5.B25
Whaolesale and Retail Trade 295 624 20831 155.203
Accammadation and Dining 125.524 112,285 38.749
Transportatich and Telecammunication 154.102 27748 41.551
Financial Institutions 4.177 98 261
Real Estate and Rental Services 240,931 D816 15,917
self-Emplayment Services 1.389 4712 1624
Edurational Services 7.580 a.ms 4.450
Health and Social Services 54.334 2312 16,070
Other 117.753 96.214 F2.T62
Total 1.823.734 920.2238 686,736
Priar Feriod Laans Pravisions
Impaired (IFRS %) Expectad

significant Credit Credit

Jnerease in Cradit Impairad Losses

Majer Sector f Counterparties Risk {Stage 2) {Stage 3} {TFRS )
Agriculture 117.581 28.954 24 8907
Farming and Stockbreeding E4.806 20209 14,369
Foresty 30.972 8.41% 10,223
Fishery 1.803 326 35
Manufacturing 212.168 132.476 B2 951
Mining and Quarrying 55.125 51.428 75,448
Productian 136,814 B 437 58.596
Electricity, Gas and Water 18.225 £0F 5,907
Construction 262.345 £7.393 T7.341
Servicas 628, 835 N5, 229 184.011
Wholesale and Retail Trade 247,642 132.174 100,186
Accormmodation and Dining 93,911 109,874 25.194
Transportation and Telecommunication 172,576 13.042 581
Financial institutions 4.551 54 953
Real Estate and Rental Services 1159.667 41331 15565
Self-Employment Services 9,780 2.348 1.641
Educational Services 19,193 1.132 1,304
Healih and Social $ervices 24,515 5.250 1.357
Dther 366,356 £7.811 RO 13232
Total 1. 687.2B3 521.863 465333
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Explanations on Consolidated credit risk (continued})

Information on movements in value adjustments and provisions

Current Period Opening Provisian Provision Other Closing
Balance for Period Reversals Adjustments {*) Balance
Specific Provisions{Stage 3) 295.835 468,497 - {249.214} 515.118
General Provisions {Stage 1 and 2} 773.944 18.355 {3,308} -- 288.992
{*)Write-off items and the sales from the NPL portfolio are disclosed here.
Current Period QOpening Pravision Provisicn Other
Closing
Balance for Period Reversals Adjustments {*} Balance
Specific Provisions{Stage 3) 348.695 367 733 - {420.613) 795.835
General Provisions {Stage 1 and 2) 302.458 102.777 (131.291) - 273.944
{*)Write-off items and the sales from the NPL portfolio are disclosed here.
Expasures subject to countercyclical capital buffer
Current Period
RwAs of Banking Bock for Rwas of
Country Private Sector Credit Trading Book Total
Exposures
Turkey 15.460.951 133.555 15.594.506
Russia 143.178 67 143,245
Malta 175.121 -- 175.121
Mmarshall Islands 402.193 - 402.193
England 8.904 213,440 222.344
Germany 2.466 13.556 16.022
France 931 4.091 5.022
Others 25.89% 46.760 72.659
Total 16.219.643 411.469 16,631,112
Prior Period
RwAs of Banking Book for RWAs of
Country Private Sector Credit Trading Book Total
Exposures
Turkey 13.250.256 279.170 13.529.426
Russia 5.726 -- 5.726
Malta 82.837 -- 82.837
Marshall 1slands 240,528 -- 240.528
England 40.550 330.849 371.39%
Germany 1.593 45.031 50.624
France 2122 3.034 5.156
Others 13.975 605 14.580
Total 13.637.587 662.689 14.200,276
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Explanations on Consofidated credit risk (continued)

information on collaterals, impairment, rating and maturity related to loans granted to individuals and
corporates

Details of collaterals of standard and close menitoring loans granted to individuals and corporates are as
follows:

Loans and Cther

Standard Loans Receivablas Under
Cash loans granted to individuals and corporates Close Monitoring
Current Priar Current Prior
Pariad Peried Period Perind
securad Loans: 13.300.077 12.287.279 1.810.865 1.480.504
Secured by Cash Collateral 411,092 405 624 - --
Securced by Mortgages 3.870.874 1381771 238.407 26%.66%
secured by Treasury Guarantees or Securities tssued by Fublic Sector - - .- -
Guarantees |sseed by Financial Institutions
Qther Collaterals I[bemg on the pledges, corporate and persanal 10.018.110 5,495,882 577458 310,835
guarantess, promissory notes)
Non-Secured Loans 384,371 94,771 12,869 £ 779
Total 13.684.448 12.382.051 1.523.734 1.687.283

Details of collaterals for non-cash granted to individuals and corporates are as follows:

Loans and Other

Standard Laans Receivables Under
Non-cash loans aranted to individuals and corperates Close Monitering
Current Fricr Current Prior
Perlnd Period Period Period
Secured Loans: 241,397 BO4.578 31.350 28.522
Secured by Cash Callateral -- 3.602 -- --
Secured by Morigages SB.{44 a1.256 78 5,497
Sorured by Treasury Guarantees or Securities Issued by Fublic Sector -- -- - -
Guarantees [ssued by Finandal Institutions
Other Collaterals .[bclng on the pledges, corporate and personal 881,271 7.7 30572 23,025
guarantees, promissory notes}
Mon-Secured Loans 52.001 38,430 -- --
Total 993,318 843.028 31.35¢ 18,512

Explanations on Consolidated Currency Risk

Position limit on currency risk is determined in line with net general position standard ratic on foreign
currency. The Group does not take material foreign exchange and parity risk; transactions are usually hedged.
Measurable and manageable risks are taken within legal limits.

As of 31 December 2019, the Group’s net long position is TL 34.33% (31 December 2018: TL 193.087 net long
position) resulting from shott position on the balance sheet amounting to TL 689.834 (31 December 2018: TL
2.327.850 short position) and long position on the off-balance amounting to TL 724,173 (31 December 2018:
TL 2.520.937 long position). The Bank uses “Standard Method™ in legal reporting to measure the foreign
exchange risk.

The announced foreign exchange buying rates of the Bank at 31 December 2019 and the previous five working
days in full TL are as follows:

US Dollar purchase rate as at the balance sheet date TL 5,9402

Eure purchase rate as at the balance sheet date TL 6,6506
Date usp EURD
25 December 2019 5,9364 6,5773
26 December 2019 9,9293 6,5755
27 December 2019 5,9302 6,5759
30 December 2019 5,9370 6,6117
31 December 2019 5,9402 6,06506

The US Dallar buying rate is TL5,8376 and EUR buying rate is TL 6,4809 according to simple arithmetic average
on December 2019.
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Explanations on Consolidated Currency Risk {continued)

Current Period EUR UsD Cther Tatal
Assets

Cash {Cash in Vault, Foreign Currency Cash, Money in

Transit, Cheques Purchased, Precious Metal) and

Batances with the CBRT B4 364 1.291.768 230,757 2.506.889
Due From Banks 34.162 41.549 12,484 88.195

Financial Asscts at Fair Value through Profit/Loss (") 384 334 - M8
Money Market Flacements - - -- .-
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income {FVOCI) 162.406 633.210 -- 793.616
Loans and Receivables{**) 5.631.467 1.686.164 9.254 7.326.885
Investments in Assor., Subsidiaries and Entities under
Comrmon Control {Joint Yent.) -- .- - -
Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 386,592 -- -- 386.592
Derivative Financial Assets Hedging Purposes -- - -

Tangible Assets -

Intangible Aszets -- -
Qther Assels (™) 2.103 591

2.694

Tatal Assets 7.201,478 3.653.616 251,495 11.107.58%
Liabilitles

Bank Deposits 8.209 13.222 41.413 62,844
Fareign Currency Deposits 825.897 5.959.529 58.591 65.843.977
Money Market Borrowings 304,228 423.029 -- 733.257
Funds Provided from Other Financial Institutions 302.762 535.846 - 842 608
Securities Issued(™**} - 3.123.413 -- 3.123.413
Sundry Creditors 13.826 133.983 70 147.879
Derivative Fin. Liabilitics for Hedging Purposes - -- -- --
Other Liabilities(™"} 24146 17.BE9 1.410 43 445
Total Liabilities 1.47%9,068 10.216.911 101.444 11,.797.423
Net Balance Sheet Position 5.722.410 (6.563.295) 151.051 {689, 834)
Net Off-Balance Sheet Position (5.718.363) 6,593.739 {151.203) F24.173
Financial Derivative Assets [***™™) 3.7831.231 11.210.24% 683.391 15.677.0M1
Financial Derivative Liatylities (") 9.501.594 4,616,510 834,794 14.952_89E
Non-Cash Loans {~*****) 269.674 322.13% )] 501,809
Prior Period

Total Assets 4,435,491 3.063.703 284,398 7.783.592
Total Liabilities 1.247.226 B8.791.604 71.612 10.111.442
Net Balance Sheet Pasition 3,1B8.265 (3.727.901) 211.786 (2.327.850)
Met Off-Balance Sheet Position {3.178.584) 5.334.715 {240.214) 2.520.937
Financial Derivative Assats 4.413.738 10.667.639 3729.291 15.410.668
Financial Derivative Liabilities 7.592.322 4,777.904 5649 505 12.889.731
Nen-Cash Loans ) 247.145 204,723 47 . 451.915

[*) Accruals of trading derfvative financial assets ameunting ta L 27,136 are not included.

{**} Includes foreign curréncy indexed loans and accruals amounting to TL 118.854,

{**1 TL 25.967 af prepaid expenses are nat included,

{=+*} Securities issued as subordinated loan classified under “Subordinated debt instruments - Other debt instruments™ in the kalance shaet are included.,

[+e+++} TL 27.093 of accruals of derivative financial Habiities are not ncluded.

{*+*y I the current peried, foreign currency purchase commitments within the fnancial derivative assets amounted to TL 2.115.194 {31 December 2018 TL
917.202), foreign cumrency sale commitments within the derivative financial liabilities amounted ta TL 2.129.285 {31 Docember 2018: TL %96.974).

(e++} There is no effect on the net off-balance sheet position.

The following table demonstrates prospective increase and decrease in eguities and profit/loss as of 31
December 2019 and 2018 (exciuding tax effect} in case of a 10% decrease of TL against the currencies below.
This analysis has been prepared under the assumption that all other variables, especially interest rates, are
constant.

Current, Period Prior Period
ProfitfLass Equity Profit/Loss Equity
st 3.044 3.759 21.183 14.373
Euro 405 96¢ 968 1.158
QOther FC {15) {15} {2.843) {2.843)
Total (Net} 3434 4,708 19,208 16,6488
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V. Explanations on Consolidated Interest Rate Risk

Interest semsitivity of assets, labilities and off-balance sheet items are evaluated weekly by considering
market developments in the Asset-Liability Committee.

Standard method and Asset-Liability risk measurement methods are used to measure the Group’'s interest

rate risk.

Measurements by the standard method are carried out monthly by using maturity ladder. Bank applies interest
rate shock analysis to interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities considering historic economic crisis. Change
in the net present vatue of the net assets of the Bank are monitered within the limits set by the Board of

Directors.

Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items {Based on repricing dates):

1-5 Years Over b Years

Non-interest

Current Period Up to 1 month 1-3 Months 3-12 Manths . Total
Bearing
Aszets
Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in Foreign Currency, Cash in
Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances with the
Central Bank of Turkey 1.793.051 914,824 707875
Banks 379,617 - - .- - 111.209 490.826
Financial Assets at Fair Value Throveh Profic er Loss 140,427 84,695 158,441 472,912 154 - §36.639
Interbank Money Market Macements 30.010 o - - - 30.010
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income G544 1.G27 374 664,519 15137 3,800 £07.568
Loans(*) 2418490 3,444 483 3760128 4,436,418 1.448.£58 116.128 15.624.413
Finandal ssets Measured at Amartized Cost 10.983 = - 144,139 409,788 - 575,010
Other Assets(*) - - - - - 216.868 816,868
Total Assets 4.881.522 3.510.211 1.942.310 5.718.498  1.873.737 1.962.979 21,889,207
Liabilities
Bank Deposits 12.262 14,703 - - 22.159 49,176
(ther Deposits 0.765.679 1.214.505 7779 1% 1.258.580 13,514,362
Interbarnk Monay Market Barrowings 267,695 465,602 - - - 733257
Sundry Creditors - - - - - 358.723 358,723
Marketable Securities |ssued{*) 363.310 86.380 57 2,878,597 178,206 - 3.507.353
Funds Barrowed From Other Institutions 3.032 337,50 108.036 310812 - - 859,381
Cther Liabilities{"™"} 138.71 61.741 150741 B5.627 - 1.007 967 2.864.808
lntal Liabilities 10,550,869 2.181.03% §36.013 3.695.5655 178.206 1.647.429 11.889.207
Balance Sheet Lang Positien -- 319174 3.306.297 1.022.843 1,695,531 - 7.353.847
Balance Sheat Short Position [3.6689, 347} - - - - [1.684.500) {7.353.847}
Off-Balance Sheet Lang Position - 322010 18,462 430 18.784.440
0if-Balance Sheet Shoft Position - - - 13220100 (18.337.350)  [18.659.360)
Tatal Pesition {5.669.347) 329176 1.104.297 2.022.843  1.693.531 {1.559.420} 125.080

(s Non-perfarming leans (TL 920,338} net-off related pravision for expected loss of stage 3 loans (TL 515.118) and expected losses for stage 1

presented in “non-interest bearing” column.

{**} Nan-interest bearing column includes TL 26,397 assaciations,
other assets and TL (501} expectad losses for finandal asset
{*} Securities issued as subordinated loan classificd under
) Mon-interest hearing colurmn includes TL 1.69%.082 sharcholders' equity,

s,
'Suberdinated debt instruments - Qther debe instruments” in the balance sheet are included.
TL 210.693 other abilities, T1 37.137 provisions and TL 41,045 tax liabilities.
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v. Explanations on Consolidated Interest Rate Risk {continued)

Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items {Based on repricing dates):

Won-interest

Prigr Period Up to 1 manth 1-3 Months 3-12 Months 1-5 Years Over 5 Years Searing Total
Assets

Cash (Cash in TL, Cashin Foreign Currency, Cash in

Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances with the 1.031.089 - 731,473 1.764.562
Central Bank of Turkey

Banks 724,480 - - - 241.334 965.514
Financial Assets at Fair Value Throigh Profit or Loss 153974 60,461 242.36% 1.0%6.761 .99 - 1,556,336
Interbank Money Market Placements 306208 - - - . 06,208
Financial ,tlss_ets Measured at Fair Value through Cther 178,444 512,855 6 2713 704.338
Comprehensive [ncome

Loans(*) 3.036.288 3849812 2.920.2%5 3.762.600 500399 52,083 14,121,417
Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 10,631 - - 104,114 138.287 - 363032
fither Assets(*) - - - - - £37.249 837.249
Total Assets 5272670 3.9440.273 3.341.048 §.486.330 742.003 1.866.852 20,619,176
Liabilities

Bank Deposits 538.3%4 12.950 - - 85411 £39.755
Other Deposits 5.636.092 1.164.%48 1.121.893 #6.253 704.200 10.673.386
Interbank Money Market Borrowings 16,694 234,778 45.014 - - 495936
Sundry Crediters - - - - 699,090 #5959, 090
Marketable Securities |ssuedi™} 104.462 365,985 . 1.868.301 - 3,438,728
Funds Borrowed From Other Institutions 195.54% £27 BB% 515,778 - - - 1.339.212
O_Lher Linbilities(") 106,774 52.553 114.431 1.241.850 645 1.816.816 1.333.069
Total Liabilities §.697.965 4.658. 519 1.797. 116 4,156,404 £45 3.308.517 20.619.176
Balance Sheet Long Fosition - - 1,543,932 1319916 741,338 .- 381510
Balanee Sheet Short Position {1.425.295} [748.256) - - [1.441.665) {3.615.218)
Dff-Balance Sheet Long Position - - 258,045 20.330.867 061812
Off-Balance Sheet Short Position - -- - 12850451 : [20.244.305)  (20.532.330]
Tokal Position (1.425.295) (748.256) 1.543,932 1.329.916 741.158 {1,355.103) 86.562

*) Non-perfarming loans net-off related pravision for expected loss of stage 3 loans and expected losses for stage 1 and stage 2 are pr
{**} Non-interest bearing column inctudes TL 26,397 investments in associates, TL 257.065 tangible assets, TL 35.001 intangihle assets,

held for sale and TL 224,324 ather assets,

(=} Securities issued as subardinated koan classified under “Subordinated debt fnstruments - Other debt instruments” in th
[*+*) Non-interest bearing column includes TL 1.322.249 sharcholders” squity, TL 348.%66 other Wabilities, TL 462 finance leas
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Explanations on Consalidated Interest Rate Risk {continued)

Average interest rates applied to financial instruments

. EUR ush JPY TL

Current Period o o % o
Assets

Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in Foreign Currency, Cash in

Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances with the

Central Bank of Turkey .- - -- --

Barnks - -- -- 11,00

Financial Assets at Fair Yalue Through Profit/ Loss 2,43 6,68 - 31,29

|terbank Money Market Placements -- -- -- 12,24

Fimancial Assets Measured at Fair Value through

Other Comprehensive Income 3,28 5,55 -- 8,79

Loans 6,03 6,14 - 18,47

Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 5,22 -- -- 3,10
Liabilities

Bank Deposits - 1,7% -- 10,09

Other Deposits 0,36 2,66 -- 12,10

Interbank Money Market Barrowings 0,47 3,45 -- -

Sundry Creditors -- -- .- -

marketable Securikies msued{*] -- 7,25 .- 14,59

Funds Borrowed from Qther Financial Institutions 2,62 4,44 -- 11,84

{*] includes subordinated debts, which are classified under “Subordinated Debts - Other Debt Instruments™ in Balance Sheet, as well,

. . EUR uspb JPY TL
Prier Period a o a %
Assets

Cash (Cash in TL, Cash in Fereign Currency, Cash in

Transit, Cheques Purchased) and Balances with the

Lentral Bank of Turkey -- 2,00 -- 13,00

Banks -- -- -- 23,89

Financlal Assets at Fair Value Through Profit/ Loss 2,04 5,34 -- 24,37

Imterbank Money Market Placements -- -- -- 24,81

Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through

Other Comprehensive Income 3,43 5,39 -- 8,38

Loans £,25 7,31 -- 24,82

Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost .- -- -- 8,26
Liabilities

Bank Deposits -- 2,45 -- 22,46

Other Deposits 1,6A 4,65 -- 13,94

interbank Money Market Bortewings 0,80 4,53 -- --

Sundry Creditars .- - -- --

Marketable Securities Issued(*) -- 6,95 -- 24,76
__Funds Barrowed fram Other Financial Institutions 3,15 4,00 -- 10,76

() Includes subardinated debts, which are classified under s¢yhordinated Debts - Other Debt Instruments” in Balance Sheet, as well.
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Explanations on Consclidated Interest Rate Risk (continued)

Interest rate risk on banking book

As per the “Regulation an Measurement and Evaluation of Interest Rate Risk Resulted from Banking Book as
per Standard Shock Method” published by the BRSA on 23 August 2011, the Bank analyses and reports to the
Bank’s senior management the interest rate sensitivity of equity on a monthly basis by applying positive and
negative shocks to the interest sensitive on balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions which are
distributed into groups based on their cash flows.

Gains/

Current Period Equity
Shocked Applied Gains/ - Lasses

{+# x bps) Losses fEquity

TRY 500 {107.159) -2,92%
TRY -40Q 34,296 2,57%
UsD Dollar 200 96.116 Z,62%
USDk Dollar 200 (102.254) -2,79%
Eura 200 (193.924) -5,29%
Euro -200 215017 5,87%
Total {For Positive Shocks) (204.568) -5,59%
Total (For Negative Shocks) 207.05% 5,65%
Galns/

Prior Pericod Equity
Shocked Applied Gains/ - Lasses

(+/- x bps) Losses fEquity

TRY 500 32.101 1,00%
TRY 400 (37.396) -1,16%
USD Dollar 200 67.941 2. 11%
sk Dollar =200 {(74.103) -2,30%
Eura 200 (104.903) -3,26%
Eurg -200 116. B840 3,63%
Total {For Positive Shecks) {4.861) -0,15%
Total {For Negative Shocks) 5.341 Q,17%
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Explanations on Consolidated Position Risk of Equity Securities Resulted from Banking Book
The Bank has no pasition risk of equity shares as of 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: Nonej.
Explanations on Consolidated Liquidity Risk and Liguidity Coverage Ratio

The Board of Directors reviews the liquidity and funding risk management policy weekly or in case of
necessity. Liquidity risk is managed by Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) in line with risk management
policy as short and long term liquidity risk.

Liquidity Risk is managed by ALCO in order to take the necessary measures in a timely and correct manner
against possible liquidity shortages. Treasury department manages cash inflows and outflows in line with
strategies determined by ALCO. As deemed necessary by the ALCC members, liquidity meetings are performed
for the purposes of close monitoring. Treasury department manages short term liquidity by adhering to the
ALCO strategy and ensuring compliance with legal liquidity limits and stress testing.

In the context of TL and foreign currencies liquidity management, the Bank monitors the cash flows weekly
and action plan is made based on ALCO decisions. The funding balance is directly monitored and compensated
by making the risk-return-cost evaluation.

For long-term liguidity "Maturity Mismatch Report” is prepared and presented to ALCO on a weekly basis. The
Bank, resulting from the general structure of Turkish ban king sector, has a liquidity gap at the 1 year maturity
period. The Bank intends to eliminate liquidity mismatch shifting focus to long-term funding alternatives.
such decisions of the risk of incompatibility are taken by ALCO. The Bank diversifies its funding sources
among customer deposits, domestic and foreign horrowings, bills and bonds issued, taking into consideration
the maturity match between its assets and liabilities and keeps liquid assets in order to fully meet the liquidity
requirements that may emerge in case of market volatility.

Information on the use of stress testing

Department of Risk Management implermnents stress testing according to Liquidity and Funding Risk Policy
approved by the Board of Directors on a weekly basis. These stress tests are based on the scenarios of the
deposit outflow, funds obtained from bonds issued will outflow and banks limits will not be used during a 14-
day period, the results are included in the presentation of ALCO on a weekly basis and in the Presentation of
Risk Committee on a monthly basis. By this way, the Bank's funding structure is closely monitored and acticns
are taken on behalf of existing risk management.

Alternative funding sources are identified in case of need. ALCO members are responsible for taking actions
against short-term liquidity shocks. In the case of a crisis or if deemed necessary, ALCO summon a meeting
and take necessary actions immediately. These action plans are approved by the Board of Directors under the
ISEDES. The Bank reviews resources that are available in any emergency situation constantly and takes into
consideration the results of the above-mentioned stress testing and scenaric analysis by the early warning
system.

According to BRSA’s “Legislation on Measurement and Assessment of Liquidity Adequacy of the Banks”™;
published in the Official Gazette numbered 23948, dated 21 March 2014; liquidity ratio is required to be 80%
for foreign currency assets/liabilities and 100% for total assets/liabilities in the calculation of the banks’
weekly and monthly reporting effective from 1 January 2019.
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Explanations on Consolidated Liquidity Risk and Liquidity Coverage Ratio{continued)

Total Unweighted Yalue *

Total Welghted Value *

Current Period TL+FE FC TL+FC FC

HIGH-QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS

T Total high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) 3119 548 2.372.613
CASH QUTFLOWS
2 Deposits from natural persans and retail deposits 7.971.570 4.534.781 1.029.10% 505.257
3 Stable deposits 974.001 - 86.487
4 Less stable deposits £.997.499 4,534,781 942.622 505.257
5 :gsff;rsgé‘;:‘:'”ff?ﬁt for retail deposits and deposits from 1.808.576 1.796.223 200077 1554598
& Operational deposits -- -- -- -
b Non-Operational deposits 2.062.151 1.010.951 576.279 35.335
8 Qther unsecured funding 1.746.425 785,272 1.655.798 1.239.182
9 Segured funding - -- 125.875 125.522
10 Other cash cutflows 1.360.789 §78.569 492 506 295,495
yg  Outflows related to derfvative exposures ang other collateral 152,499 282.069 176,007 238.432

requirements
12 Cutflows related to restructured financial instruments -- -
3 Payment commitments granted for_dehts to financial markets 3 008.290 696.501 216,499 57,062
and other off-balance shest commitments
14 Other revorable off-balance sheet commitments and other i i i
contractual obligatians
" Othler irrevocable or conditionally revecable off-balance sheet 13,574 1% 40,404 13
gbligations T

16 TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 3.919.971 2.480.825
CASH INFLOWS
17 Secured receivables 32.845 12,845 13.923 13.793
18 Unsecured receivables 2.305.438 600,359 1.963.798 709.161
19 Other cash inflows 13717 B1.873 45,993 3788
10 TOTAL _CASH INFLOWS 2,451,999 715.077 1.623.726 755,743
21 TOTAL HQLA 3.119.548 2,372,613
22 TOTAL NET CASH QUTFLOWS 2.296,459 1,725,082
73 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO {%) 135,84 137,54

* The average af last threc months' liquidity eewerage ratio caloulated by weekly simple averagas.
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Explanations on Consolidated Liquidity Risk and Liguidity Coverage Ratio(continued)

Total Unweighted Value *

Total Weighted Value *

Frior Period TL+FC FC TL+FC FC
HIGH-QUALITY LIQUID ASSETS
1 Total high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) 2.322.7% 1.927.058
CASH QUTFLOWS
1 Depasits from natural persons and retail deposits 7.924.770 3.313.684 767.136 397
? Stable deposits ' 835.698 - 41.786 -
4 Less stable deposits 7.089.072 3.313.684 725,350 331.797
5 Unsecured funding excgpt for retail deposits and deposits from 361769 1883101 2 390,063 1400156
natural persons, of which:
b Operational deposits - - - -
7 Non-Operational deposits 1.610.328 679.850 $43.029 252,064
g Other unsecured funding 2.007.371 1.253.251 1.747.034 1,148,097
3 Secured funding - .- 180,956 178.936
10 {ther cash qutflows 1.934.670 #14.893 370,704 157.209
1" Outﬂows related to derivative exposures and other collateral 181 696 108,093 183116 109.101
requirements
12 Qutflows related to restructured financial instruments
0 Payment commitments granted for_debts ta financial markets 1750974 506,800 187 588 48409
and other off-balance sheet commitments
14 Other revocable off-balance sheet commitments and other
contractual obligations
5 Oth_er 1_rrevocab1e or conditionally revocable off-balance sheet 13 761 114 13,899 10
obligations
16 TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS 3,742,758 2.068.208
CASH INFLOWS
17 Secured receivables 35.060 35.060 29.360 28.837
18 Unsecured receivables 3228 841 800.885 7,184,971 704,647
19 Other cash inflows 185,174 148.742 186.150 149,422
20 TOTAL CASH INFLOWS 3.449.025 984,687 2,400,481 B82.906
21 TOTAL HQLA 2,322,797 1.927.058
22 TOTAL MET CASH QUTFLOWS 1,342.278 1.1B5,302
23 LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%) 173,05 142,58

* The averaee of last three months' liquidity coverage ratio calculated by weekly simple averages,
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V. Explanations on Consolidated Liquidity Risk and Liquidity Coverage Ratio(continued)

The table below shows the lowest, highest and average Liquidity Coverage Ratio in the last 3 months
of the 1 January - 31 December 2019 period.

Current
Periad Highest Date Lowest Date Average
TL+FC 220,20% 23/12/2019 110,77% 71142019 140,33%
FC 22%,35% 25/12/201% 107,14% 26/11/2019 141, 54%
_ Prior Period Highest Date Lowest Date Average
TL+FC 255,22% 09/11/2018 133,07% 30/1172018 174,10%
_FC 204,40% 09/11/2018 114,14% 371272018 166,86%

The Bank implements the calculation in accordance with the Regulation of Liquidity Coverage Ratio
Calculation of Banks dated 21 March 2014 and numbered 28948 published in the Official Gazette. As per the
related regulation high quality liquid assets are mainly securities portfolio, cash assets and reserve
requirements. The important factors affecting the results of the liquidity coverage ratio are the changes in
the remaining maturities of the iterns and changes in the amounts of deposits and money market transactions,
the remaining maturities of which are less than 30 days. Deposits form a significant portion of the Bank's
sources of funds, on the other hand bonds issued, money market borrowings, funds provided from abroad are
other important sources of funding.
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VI, Explanations on Consolidated Liquidity Risk and Liquidity Coverage Ratio(continued)

Presentation of assets and liabilities according to their remaining maturities:

Current Period Demand Up to 1 Month 1-3Months  312Months  15Year 5Yearsand Over  Unallocated Total
hssets

Cash Cashin TL, Cash in Foreign Currency, Cask in

Trangit, Cheques Purcheased) and Balances with the

Central Bank of Turkey 1,071.324 1,636,581 107875
Barks 1.2 79617 - - - - 490.826
Financial Assets at Fair Yalue Throuh Frofit ar Lass - 115,147 H4.654 158,434 457,250 154 836,629
Interbank tatey Market Placements J0.61¢ - - - - .00
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value tarough Othe-

Comprehensive Income 3.808 98.944 1,627 1.278 t5d.919 17.50% 807,563
Loans i - 1.904.235 1,057,855 SAILHD 4744373 520,706 116228 15.624.411
Investment Securities Held-fo-Maturity - - - 144,239 430.71 575010
Other Assets(*) - - - ) - - - 816868 #16.868
Total Assets 1,186,333 4.165.508 1.423.536 5.790.719  6.020.781 1.369.234 $33.09  11.88%.207
Liabilities

Bank Geposits 18 1162 14705 - - .13
{ther Deposits 1,756,580 9.785.679 L214.505 man 819 13,516,562
Funds Borrowed from Other Financial Institutions - 573 199 5 439,588 B59.381
Interbank Maney Market Received 27,655 45602 - - - 73,187
Marketable Securities lssued|™) 133,155 17135 0 1300613 1.736.1%0 3507350
Sundry Creditors 358,75 - - - - 3T
Orher Liabilities () - 62,543 19361 175036 54,848 13 1.805.285 2864808
Total Liabilities 1.280.739 10.805.854 3,110,337 240.399 2 9688 1.756.925 1.805.285  21.885.207
Het Liqudity Surplus / (Gap} (94.406) [6.640.345) (686,801} 4950320 173413 [387.691)  {871.189) -
Wet Off-Balance Sheet Position 15.048 12,035 5.528 94.531 125,544
Derivative Firancial Assets 4174044 5037678 1040414 4168309 16.521.045
Derivative Financial Liabilities 4.159.5% 5.007.643 103448 4073776 - 16.395.50
Non-Cash Loans 60.914 193.352 3B 115.390 307.237 1.014.668
Prior Period

Total Assets 574,391 5,223,848 2.366.949 5.260.338  5.351.942 §51.375 BR9.332  20.819.176
Total Liabilities 792.611 7.741.04 4,236,038 2041080 2.B01.581 1.564.577 1442253 20.619.176
Net |iquidity Gap 181.781 {2.517.178} {1.869,089) 329.M8 2550361 {1.012.200) {552.911) -
Het Off-Balance Sheet Position - {11,408} {13.834) 127.481 {5.814) [350] 83.073
Derivative Financial Assets TR0 1.934.703 2.438.080  £.378.019 5.240 19.079.35%
De-ivative Financial Lishilities 74715 1.953.537 1310580 £.BB4.038 5810 18.994.277
Eg:[ash Loans £3.245 70,059 179.523 771.337 181,386 871.550

[*Y Hor-performing loans net-off related provision for expected loss of stage 3 loans an expected losses far stage 1 and stage 2 are presented in “unallocated” column.
[*] Certain assots on the balance sheet that are necessary for the banking operations but agt convertible into cash in the short term such as tangible assets, stationary supplies and prepaid

expenses are included in this column,

[**1 Securities fssued as subardinated loan classified under “Subordinated debt - Gther debt instrements” in the balance sheet are also included,
{****} Shareholders equity and provistons are Classificd in other liabilities in unallocated calumm.
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V1. Explanations on Consolidated Liquidity Risk and Liquidity Coverage Ratio{continued)

Contractual maturity analysis of liabilities according to remaining maturities

Gross Nominal 5 Years and
Current Period Carrying Yalues Dutflows Demand Up to 1 month 1-3 Months  3-12 Months  1-5 Years (Qrver
Bank Deposit 40,126 45,282 21159 12,263 14,860 - - -
Other Deposit 13,516,562 13.561.682  1.238.580 9,780,213 1.132.074 290.008 805 -
Money Market Funds 733.257 735.2%2 - 267.977 457,275 - - -
Securities |ssued 178332 1.957.608 - 129.018 183.867 39018 1.495.705 --
Funds Borrowed B59.381 995232 - 3058 30.678 428.540 492.976 -
Subordinated Debts 1.789.018 1.576,7117 - - 61.147 51.147 489.175 1.965.248
Total 18.665.676 19,835,773 1.280.739 10.202.511 3,089,901 B18,713 2.478.661  1.965.248

Gross Nominal 5 Years and
Prior Period Carrying Yalues Qutflows Demand Up to 1 month 1-3 Months  3-12 Months  1-5 Years Over
Bank Deposit 639.755 640648 88,411 538.943 13.294 - - -
Other Deposit 10,673,386 10.907.453 704,198 5.6A1.669 3.237.M1 1.244.665 54.210 -
money Market Funds 495936 498.21 -- 16.710 436,497 45.014 -- -
Securities Issued 1.842.585 2.176.361 - 712.480 346.140 39139 1.578.602 -
Funds Borrowed 1.338.212 1.384.779 - 199.722 W4.774 B78.579 301.302 -
Subordinated Debts 1,596,143 2,674,528 -- -- 60.592 60,592 484.738 2.068.606
Total 16,587.017 18.481.990 792,609 6,629,524 4,299,008 2.268.389 2.423.853  1.068.506

According to the communiqué of Financial Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes to be Announced
to Public by Banks published in the Gfficial Gazette numbered 29450 and dated 19 August 2015, total amount
of assets and risk in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Turkish Accounting
Standards is shown below;

Current Peried
{(**} Prior Period (**}

1 Total assets in consolidated financial statements prepared in

accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards () 44,547,190 43,219.725
, The difference between total assets prepared in accardance

with Turkish Accounting Standards and total assets in

consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance

with the communigué “Preparation of Consolidated Financial

Statements” y _ -

3 The difference between the amounts of derivative financial
instruments and credit derivatives in cansolidated financial
statemnents prepared in accordance with the communiqué
“"Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements™ and risk
amounts of such instruments [15.985.526}) {18.554.523}

4 The difference between the amounts of securities or
commadity financing transactiens in conseolidated financial
statements prepared in accordance with the communique
“Preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements” and risk
amounts of such intruments - -

5 The difference between the amounts of off-balance items in
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance
with the communiqué "Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements” and risk amounts of such items ) -

& Other differences between the amounts in consalidated
financial statements prepared in accordance with the
communiqué “Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements” and risk amounts of such itemns -- --

7 Total risk amount 28.561.664 24,665,202

{*) Consolidated financial statements prepared in campliance with the Article 6 of the communiqué 5 *Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements.
{**J Represents three-months average amounts.
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VIl Explanations on Consolidated Leverage Ratio
The table of leverage level calculated in accordance with the Regulation on Assessment and Calculation of
Banks’ Leverage Level published in the Official Gazette numbered 28812 and dated 5/11/2013 shown below,
Bank’s consolidated leverage ratio calculated in accordance with the “Regulation on Assessment and
Calculation of Banks’ Leverage Level” is 6,82%. The decrease in the ratio is due to the increase in total risk.
Minimum leverage ratic has te be 3% according to the regulation.
Balance sheet assets Current Period{*) Prior Period(*}
1 ﬁja;laur::;::iital‘:'eer;nls;]{exc_ludmg derivative financial instruments and credit derivatives but 22.002.023 19.226.759
2z {Assets deducted in determining Tier 1 capital) (147,927} (39%.762)
3 Total balance sheet risks {sum of lines 1 and 2} 21.874.0% 18.826.497
Derivative financial instruments and ¢redit derivatives
4 Replacement cost associated with all derivative financial instruments and credit derivative 156.336 534882
5 Potential credit risk associated with all derivative financial instruments and credit derivati 285,715 383.359
6 Total risks of derivative financial instruments and credit derivatives {sum of lines 4 to 5) 442.051 918241
Securities or commodity financing transactions (SCFT)
7 Risks from SCFT assets {except for on-balance sheet) 1.217.268 607,250
8 Risks from brokerage activities related expasures -- --
g :;:tal risks related with securities or commodity financing transactions (sum of lines 7 to 1.317.268 507,250
Off-balance sheet transactions
10 Gross nokienal amounts of off-balance sheet transactions 5.028.249 4.313.214
11 {Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent amaunts) - --
12 Total risks of off-balance sheet items {sum of lines 10 and 11} 5.028.249 4.313.214
Capital and total risks
13 Tier 1 capital 1.80%.286 1.593.770
14 Total risks (sum of lines 3, 6, 9 and 12} 28.561.664 24.665.202
Leverage ratic
15 Leverage ratic £,33 4,48

{*)Represents three-month average amounts,
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Explanations on presentation of financial assets and liabilities at their fair values

Valuation methads of the financial instruments valued with their fair value are shown below.

Book Yalue Fair Yalue
Current Peried Prior Period Lurrent Period Prior Periad
Current Period
Financial assets 17.527.913 16.460.80% 17.710.363 16,165,548
money market placements 30.010 306.208 30.040 306,208
Due from banks 490.876 965,814 490.826 965.814
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income 807.568 704.338 807.568 704.338
Loans measured at amortised cost 575.098 163,032 &605.709 332.424
Loans 15.624.41 14.121.417 1%.776.250 13.856.764
Financia!l liabilities 18.291.142 16.790.171 18.291.142 16.790.171
Interbank deposits 45126 £39.755 43,126 639.755
QOther deposits 13.516.562 10.673.386 13.516.562 10,673,386
Funds provided from ather financial institutions 859,381 1.33%.212 £59.381 1.339.212
Marketable securities issued 3,507.350 3.438.718 3.507.350 3.438.728
Miscellanepus payables 358,723 . 6%9.090 358.723 G59.090

{*1 Sacirities tssied as subordinated debi clussified under “Subordinated debt- Other debt instruments™ in the balance sheet are alsa included,

Fair values of financial assets measured at FYTOC) and measured at amortized cost are calculated by market prices ef in case of absence of such prices, market prices of other
securities quated in slmilar qualified markets and having substantially similar characteristics in terms af interest, maturity and ather conditians.

Fair values of loans are catculated discounting future cash flows at current market inlerest rates for fixed-rate Woans. The carrying values of floating: rate loans are deemead as
appraximatien for their fair values.

Fair yalues of ather financial assets and fabilities represent the total acquisition casts and accrued interest.

Current Period Level 1 TL Level 2 TL ] Level 3 TL
Current Period Prior Perfod Current Pericd  Prior Period  Current Peried  Frior Period

Financial Assets
Financial assets measured at falr value through

profit and loss 97.737 75.807 -- -- -

Financial assets measured at fair valug through

other comprehensive income 807.068 704338 -- - .-

Derivative financial asssts - - 738,902 1.480.756 -

Loans measured at fair value thrauah profit and

Loss - - 1,948,020 1.516.819 - -

Total $05.305 FRO.145 2.686.922 1,997,575 == -
Financial Liabilities

Derivative financial lFabilities - ) - T48. 208 1.5916.253  _ - --

Total - - 78B.205% 1.516.253 - -

Lewvel 1 ; Quoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or lakilities
Level 2 : Inputs other than guoted prices included within Level 1 that are abservable for the asset o ([ability, cither directly (as prices; or indirectly {derived
from prices)

Level 3; Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable market data {unobservable nplts)
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Explanations on transactions carried out on behalf of customers and fiduciary activities
Nane.
Explanations on consolidated securitisation positions

The Bank does not have any securitization positions as of balance sheet date.

Explanations on risk management objectives and policies

The Bank does not apply any netting on balance sheet and off-balance sheet. Guarantees and derivatives
are not used as credit mitigation techniques; but only financial collaterals consisting of cash blockages are
used.

Risk Management System refers to the Board of Directors, the Audit Commiitee, the Risk Management
Committee, the Asset-Liability Committee and the Risk Management Department which have been composed
in order to manage systemic risks that the Bank fs exposed to. The Board of Directors is the owner of the
Bank's Risk Management System and ensures the establishment of an effective, sufficient and appropriate risk
management system as well as the continuity of the system. The main objective of the Bank's Risk
Management System is to identify, measure, monitor and controt the risks that the Bank is exposed to, by
determining the policies, limits and procedures to control, to moniter, and if necessary to change the risk-
return structure of the Bank's future cash flows, the level and the quality of related activities.

As part of the Risk Management System, the Asset and Liability Committee presentation is prepared on a
weekly basis and the Risk Committee and the Board of Directors presentations are prepared on a monthly
basis. The presentations mainly consist of the Bank’s financial statements, profit and loss analysis, credit
risk, market risk, liguidity risk, concentration risk, interest rate risk due to banking book, and operational
risk as well as the risk that the Bank is currently exposed to or possible risks.

The Board of Directors of the Bank delegated the authorization related to the hedge accounting ta the Asset
and Liahility Committee with the condition of providing regular information. At the same time the Bank has
organized credit pelicies and risk mitigation pelicies due to credit risk. All processes of the Bank are controlled
by the Bank's Internal Contral Department’s control matrices regularly and are subject to supervision by the
Internal Audit Department at the same time.

The Bank uses credit rating models and/or decision trees and rating systems using financial and non-financial
data for loan customers as a risk measurement system. Market risk measures are calculated within the scope
of the Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Banks and using only internal model
and market data for intra-bank use. In addition to these, risks are measured and reported with regular stress
tests. Three stress tests (base, negative, extremely negative) are performed on a yearly basis, stress tests
are performed on a monthly basis for market risk and counter party credit risk, stress tests are performed on
a weekly basis for interest rate risk and liquidity risk by Risk Management Department of Bank and then they
are shared with senior management in the ALCO and the Risk Committee meetings.

Periodic reports about liquidity risk, interest risk, securities portfolio, credit nsk, customer concentration,

secteorial concentration, collateral structure and capital adequacy are reported to the Board of Directors and
senicr management.
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Explanations on risk management objectives and policies {continued)

Motes and explanations in this section have been prepared in accordance with the Communiqué on Disclosures
about RWA flow statements of credit risk exposures under IRB Risk Management to Be Announced to Public
by Banks that have been published in Official Gazette na, 29511 on 23 Gctober 2015 and became effective as
of 31 March 2016. Due to usage of standard approach for the calculation of capital adequacy by the Bank, the
following tables which prepared annually basis have not been presented as of 31 December 2019:

- RWA flow statements of credit risk exposures under IRB {Internal Ratings Based)
- RWA flow statements of CCR exposures under the Internal Model Method {IMM)
- RWa flow statements of market risk exposures under an Internal Model Approach (IMA)
- Qualitative disclosures related to IRE models

- IRB - Credit risk exposures by portfolio and PD range

- IRB - Effect on RWA of credit derivatives used as CRM technigues

- IRB - Backtesting of probability of default (PD) per portfolic

- IRB (specialised lending and equities under the simple risk weight method)

- CCR exposures by portfolic and PD scale

- Quantitative disclosures related to IRB models

- Internal model approach for trade account

a. Overview of Risk Weighted Amounts

Minumum Capital

Risk Weighted Amounts
Requirements

o Current Feriod Prior Peried Current Perjod
1 Credit risk {excluding counterparty credit risk) (CCR) 16.135.932 13,596,968 .1.290‘ 875
2 Of which standardised approach (5] 16135932 13,596,768 1.21%0 875
1 Of which internal rating-bas=d (IRE) approach
4 Colnterparty crodit risk 433,911 850,549 35.993
5 Of which standardised approach for counterpary credit risk [SA-CCR) 449911 B50, 54% 39,993
[} OF which internal medel method {LWMM) -
7 Equity position in banking baok under basic risk weighting or internal rating-based - . -
g Equity investments in funds - look-through approach 331713 40619 5.697
9 Equity ipvestments in funds - mandate-based approach -
10 Equity investments in funds - 125¢% rish welghting approach - - -
1 Settlement risk -
12 Securitisation exposures in banking haak - - --
13 OFf which IRE ratings-based approadh {RBA)
14 Of which IRB supervsory formula appraach [SFA)
15 Of which S4/simplified supervisory formula approach (55F8)
16 Market risk 552,463 911,638 44,197
17 Of which standardised appraach [S4) 552,463 911 638 44157
18 Of which internal model approaches {IM)
19 Operational risk 1,485,530 1.114.63% 118,842
20 Of which basic indicator approach 1.485.530 1.114.63% 118 842
Al OF which standardised approach .-
22 Of which advanced measurement approach -
21 Amounts below the thresholds for dediction from eapital (subject ta 250% risk weight}
24 Flogr adjustment -
15 Total {1+447+8+F+10+11+12+16+19+23+24) _ 18.757. 5349 16.514.413 1,300,604
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Explanations on risk management objectives and policies (continued)

b. Differences and matching between asset and liabilities’ carrying values in financial
statements and risk amounts in capital adequacy calculation

Carrying values Carrying values of items in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards

in Subjert to Subject ta  Securitisation Subject to Mot subject ta
financial credit risk  counkerparty EXpasUres markat risk capital
statements credit risk{*} ™1 requiremants
prepared as or subject to
per deduction from
T4S capital
Current Periad
Assets
Cash {Cash on Hand, Money in Transit, Purchased Cheques)
and Balances With Central Bank of Turkey 2,707 875 2,707,873 - - -- -
Banks 490826 490,826 -- -- - -
Money Markets Placements 30,810 -- 30.010 -- - -
Fimanrial Assets Measured at Fair Value Through Profit or
Loss 97,737 64.868 -- .- - --
Financial Assets seasured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income 807,568 807.363 632.2482 .- - .-
Financial Assets Measured at amortized cost 575098 575.008 419.376 .- -- -
Dervative financial assets FIB.902 -- 160,284 -- 728902 -
Non-performing Financial fssets [589) 1589) - -- -- -
Loans (nat) 15,624 411 15.624.411 - - -- -
Assets Held for Sale and Assets of Discontinued
{iperaticnsinet) 63,247 63.247 -- - -- -
Irvestiment in Associates {net) 4,897 4.897 -- - -- --
Investment in Subsidiaries {net) 31.500 11,500 -- -- .- --
Joint-ventures (net) -- - . -- - -
Tangible Assats (net) 324,109 124137 - - - -
Intangible Assets (nat) #9394 17 - - -- 69 R7T
Investment Property {net} - -- - -- -- -
Tax Asset 58.012 58.0M% - - - -
Qther Assets 265710 265,683 - - - -
Total Assets 21.889.207 21.047.550 1.241.852 -- 38,902 £9.877
Liabilities
Deposits 13.505.6288 -- .- -- -- 13.565.688
Funds Borrowed 25%. 381 - -- - - 859.381
Money Market Funds 733257 - 733.243 -- - 713,257
Securities Issued 1.718.332 - - -- -- 1.718.337
Funds -- -- -- - - .-
Financial Assets at Fair Yalue Through Profit or Loss - -- - - -- -
Derivative financial fiabllities 7a8.205 -- .- - 788,205 783.205
Factoring Payables - - - -- -- .
Leaze Payables 68430 - -- -- -- 68654
Frovisions 97137 - -- - -- --
Tax Liability 41,045 - - - -- 58.713
Liabilities for Assets Held for Sale and Assets of
Dfscontinued Gperations (net) -- .- - - -- -
Subortinated Debts 1.789.018 - .- -- - --
Other liabilities 569,416 -- - - - 365,415
Shareholders' Equity 1.459.092 -- -- - - 1,65%.092
Total Liabilities 21.889, 207 -- 733.263 -- TBR.205 20.020.747

[*} Plsclosed based on gress amnolints of the securities,
[~*}Disclosed based on w1oss pasitlon amaunts subject Lo aereral market risk and specific sk
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Expfanations on risk management objectives and policies (continued)

b. Differences and matching between asset and liabilities’ carrying values in financial
statements and risk amounts in capital adequacy calculation

Carrying values of items in accardance with Turkish Accounting Standards

Carrying values

in Subject to Subject to  Securitisation Subject to Mot subject to
financial cradit risk  counterparty 2xposuras market risk capital
statements credit risk{*} (*]  requirements
prepared as or subject to
per deduction from
TS capital
Prior Period
Asgers
Cash {Cash on Hand, Money in Transit, Purchased Cheques)
and Balances With Central Bank of Turkey 1.764.562 1.764.562 - -- -
Banks 65,814 65.814 - -- -
Maney Markets Placements 306,208 106.208 -- - - -
Financial Assets Measured at Fair ¥alue Through Profit or
Loss 75.807 36,722 -- 75.807
Financial Assets Measured at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income F07.732 ULV EY 642,482 -- - -
Financial Assets Measured at amartized gast 143.099 363.099 90,935 - -- -
Derivative fimarcial assets 1.480.756 -- 446 187 - 1.480.736 -
Hon-perferming Finandal Assets {3.941} (3,501} -- - - -
Loans dnetk 14.121.417 14,121,415 - - 2
Astats Held for Sale and Assets of Discontinued
Operations{net) 215235 215,235 - - - --
Investrent in Associates (net) 4.897 4,857 - - --
Investment in Subisidiaries (net) 21,500 21.503 - - -
Joint-Yentures {nat} -- i - - - -
Tangible Assets {net) 157.069 244.758 .- - -- 12.059
Intangible Assets {net) 35,04 - -- - - 35004
Investment PFroperty {net) -- - - -- -- -
Tax Asset 7976 74716 - -- --
Qther Assets 224,324 224,324 - - --
Total Assets 20.619.176 19.052.021 1.179.604 - 1,556,563 47.062
Liabilities
Deposits 11,313,141 -- - - 11313444
Funds Boerrowed 1.33%.212 - - - - 1,339,212
Money Market Funds 495,936 - 455934 - - 455 536
Securities lssued 1,542 585 - - - - 1.842.585
Funds - - - - - --
Financiak Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss - - - - -- -
Derfyative financiat liabilities 1.516.253 - -- 1,516,253 1.516.253
Fartoring Payables - -- - -- -
Lease Payables 463 -- - - 463
Prowisions 108,751 - - - - 109,751
Tax Liability 35,477 -- - - - 39477
Liabilities far Assets Held for Sale and Assets of
Discontinued Operations {net) -- - - - - -
Subortinated Debts 1,396,143 - - - - 1,596,143
Other liatyilities 1,043,966 - - -- 1.043.946
Sharehalders” Equity 1,322,249 - - -- -- 1.311.749
Total Liabilities 20.619.176 -- 455.936 - 1.516.253 20.619.176

"] Disclosed based ce grose amounks of the securities.

" )Jwilised based on gross position amrounks subject to general market risk and specific risk.
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Explanations on risk management objectives and policies (continued)

c. The main sources of the differences between the risk amounts and the amounts assessed in
accordance with TAS in the financial statements

Total Credit risk S;;Ei?;;g{::: Counterparty Market risk{*}

Current Period

Carrying Valus of Assets in Accordance with

Commumnigué “Freparation of Financial 71.81%.1H1 21.017.55¢ 1.241.652 7318.902
2 Carrying value of liabilities that are subjected

to counterparty credit risk ag per TAS .- - - 733257 T88.205%
3 Total Met &mount M.812.111 M.M7.550 508.6%5 (49,303}
4 Qif-halance sheet amounts(™) 23806133 6.571.862 17,1341 17.134.21
5 Valuation differences - - - -
6 Differences due to different netting rules M6.532.50%)
7 Differences due to consideration of provisions -
R Differences resulted from the BREA'S

applications - (16.643,70%) -
9 Differences due to risk mitigation - - 733.257 -
10 Risk Ameunts 45.625.464 27 687412 - 1.532.514 552.463

IRiss amezurts “nclude financal inslruments in trading accomnts 22 per to the "Ragulatian cn Measurement and AsiessTent of Cazital Adequacy of Banes™ and markst <isk cue to saleulated capral maquirement far carrzncy

rik.

{*I0FF -balance sheet araunts subject ta capltal adecuacy ratie calzulatan.

Total

Credit risk

Subject ta the Counterparky Market rishi*}

securitizarion

Prier Period

Carrying Value of Assets in Accordance with

Communiqué “Preparation of Financial H.372.114 19,059,943 - 1.179.604 1,551,365
3 Carrying value of liabilities that are subjected

tq counterparty credit risk as par TAS - - 495,936 1,516,253
1 Total Het dmount 20571114 19,059,243 - 653,668 35.312
4 Off-balance sheet amoumtsi™} 14.038.889 4.571.366 19.167.003 19.157.003
5 Waluation differenpes - - - -
& Differences due to different netting rules - (18290671
7 Differences dug to consideration of provisions -
3 Diffesences resulted from the BRSAS

applications [18.752.631) -
9 Differences due to risk mitigation - - 435.916 -
10 Rish Amounts 44.610.983 13.331.80% - 1.993.97% 911.638

1 Risk amaunts irclude Frandal inssnimerts in rading acteurts as per Lo the "Regulatlon an Mrayrement and besassrent o

1hk,
|**1Af-Ealance sbeet ameants subjesl fo capita? adequacy ratia Zalculation.
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Explanation on the differences between the risk amounts and the amounts assessed in accordance with
TAS in the financial statements:

Disclosures regarding differences between amounts valued according to TAS and risk exposures

The differences between the amounts assessed under TAS and the amounts after risk reduction in transactions
subject to counterparty credit risk stem from the addition of potential risk amounts to the renewal costs of
derivative transactions subject to the CPR and the volatility adjustments for repo / reverse repo transactions.
Funds provided to differences arising from risk reduction are also included by opening separate line for themn.

Valuations of securities subject to market risk in accordance with TAS represent the fair value of held for
trading financial instruments. Qn the other hand, the values in the risk amount line represents the amount
subject to market risk based on the capital requirements calculated for the losses arising due factors such as
interest rate risk of the market risk, equity price risk, currency risk in accordance with the “Regulation for
Measurement and Evaluation of Banks' Capital Adequacy Ratio”.

If financial instruments that are accounted for at their fair values are traded in an active market, the
valuation is based an that market price. The TL borrowing instruments in the held for trading securities
portfolio comprise of government securities. These securities are evaluated at the weighted average trading
price in the Istanbul Stock Exchange. For TL securities that are not traded, the market price is calculated
based on the CBRT prices. For the FX securities in the same portfolio, the average of purchase and sale
quotaticns in the market are considered as the market price. Derivative financial instruments are evaluated
using the discounted cash flow model using market data. Input data used in evaluations using market value
and/or valuation methods are periodically checked for validity and independence.

Information on Credit Risk
General Qualitative Information on Credit Risk:

The Bank’s credit risk management policies are established in line with the strategy approved by the Board
of Directors in accordance with the related regulations and are based on prudence, sustainability and the
customers’ credit worthiness principles.

The limits are set in accordance with the Risk Policies by the Board of Directors based on the Bank's risk
appetite. In accordance with the determined risk lirnits, the authorizations and sub-authorizations are done
by the Credit Policies which is in line with the determined limits. Special attention is given to ensure that
the limits are in line with market expectations and the Bank’s strategies.

Credit rating models and decision trees are used in the credit underwriting processes in accordance with the
risk appetite, credit policies set by the Bank and the targets of the Bank. The grading of all customers except
for individual credit customers by the Bank is essentfal. The individual loan portfolio is managed via an
automated decision trees.

Customer selection is carried out in accordance with policies and strategies of the Bank and is based on the
ability to pay on time and the cash flows expected to be received from its operations independent from
guarantees, sureties and pledged assets. When needed; it is mandatory for the Bank to obtain appropriate
collateral in line with the source of the payment for the repayment of the credit from the customers to ensure
that their obligations arising from the credit are met on time and in full. The main purpose of collateralization
of any loan is to minimize the credit, foreign exchange and maturity risks. In this context, a minimum
collateral margin is determined by taking into account the collateral quality and the collection expectations
given default and it s ensured that the appropriate collateral is obtained based on the credit type. Before a
credit relationship is established with a customer, an analysis and intelligence collection are carried out in
arder to measure the creditworthiness of the custemers. Before the credit decisions; the customer is
examined and evaluated with an analysis for factors that have affected its past, present and future
performances and any other factors {financial and non-financial data) that may affect its past, present and
future performances.
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General Qualitative Information on Credit Risk (continued):

Credit risk is encountered when the counterparty is unable to fulfill its obligations defined with the
agreement. All eredit risk bearing banking preducts are managed with prudent credit policies and procedures
in the Bank. The credit quality of the counterparty is evaluated with an internal rating score in all corporate,
commercial and SME credit transactions. In order to moniter the credit risk, internal limits are determined
on the basis of sector, maturity, customer and internal rating to avoid the risk of concentration.

Credit risk management is a process in which credit risks are assessed and monitored in a consistent manner,
besides all credit portfolios are included an a consolidated basis. Credit risk is managed on the basis of
portfolios, risk / return balance and asset quality of the Bank, and the credit risk is governed by the orinciples
contained in the policy documents. In addition, credit-based evaluation, underwriting and follow-up are
carried out by the units in the Loans group within the framework of the relevant processes. Loans proposals
are evaluated by the credit units of the Headquarters, if necessary, within the framework of the level of
authority based on the determined amount and finalized the loan propasal by the Credit Committee and the
Board of Directors.

The units carry out their risk management activities in accordance with the risk appetite and capacity of the
Bank through the use of risk measurement and management tools within the policies established by the Board
of Directors. In this context, the organizational structure for credit risk management and control functions is
detailed as follows the units included in the scope of Credit Risk Management are Corporate Loans,
Commercial Loans Allocation, Credit Monitoring and Collection Department and Risk Analysis Department.
Decisions on credit policies are taken by the Credit Committee. Allocated credit limits and usages, exceeded
limits, assessments of large risks and overdue loans are regularly reported to the senior management.

In the course of credit risk management, the Risk Management Department conducts monitoring and reporting
of internal concentration limits. It is ensured that the policies related to the concentration risk management
are prepared and processed within the policies of allocation, monitoring, limit monitoring and management.
Regular reporting on the cost of the loan and the development of the following loans is made. In addition,
stress test and scenaric analysis studies related to the loan portfolio are carried out within the scope of
ICAAP.

The evaluation of the internal systems established to cover all branches and units and the maintenance of
the continuity of functioning, competence and efficiency are ameng the highest priorities of the Bank's Board
of Directors. Within the scope of internal systems, the duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors,
Internal Audit, Internal Controt and Operational Risk and Risk Managerment activities are carried out by the
Audit Committee,

Credit Quality of Assets

Bross carrying values in accordance Allowances!
with Turkish Accounting Standards amartisation
{TAS) in financlal statements prepared

in accordance with statutery and impairments Netvalue
eonsalidation
Current Period Defaulted Men-defaulted
1Loans Y0338 15.508.142 804 110 15.624 410
2 Debt securities - 1.476.603 2.518 1.474.075
3 Off-balance sheet exposurcs 19.003 .650_B0% 15,111 6650687
4 Total 918,241 23,635,590 825,759 23.749.172
Gross carrying values in accordance Alloweancesf
with Turkish Accounting Standards amortisation
ITASIli ;:E::::;:L:t:;:::t:?uﬂ;mmd and impairments Net value
consalidation
Pricr Peried Dfaulted Nen-defaulted
1 Leans 621,863 14.06%.334 569780 14,111.417
2 Debt securities - 1.143.925 3961 1,139.564
3 Off-balarce shoet expasures 14.768 4.855,9%5 19044 4,851,614
4 Total 636,631 20,067,254 592,825 20,113,060
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General Qualitative Information on Credit Risk {continued):

Changes in stock of default loans and debt securities

Current Periad Prior Perled
1 Defaultad foans and debt securities at end of the previous reporting petiod 621,863 460,493
i Loars and debt securities defadltad since the last reparting period T18.326 RN
3 Receivables tack ta nan-defaulted status - -
4 Amounts written off(*] 245214 447120
5 Jtner changes () [170.635) 1301, 196}
£ Defaulted oans and debt securities at end of the reporting period (1+2-3-415) 520.338 421,853

* Sales of nan-pesformira loan portfolios are disclosed here,
1™ ther changss include eollections during the periad,

Breakdown of receivables by geographical area, sector and outstanding maturity:

Breakdown by geographical area;

Loans and Other Receivables Current Period Prior Period
Damestic 14,737,586 13,663,328
European Unian (EU) Countries 175.04] 143.054
QECD Countries 105 -
Off-Shore Banking Regions A02.193 240.528
USA, Canada 13.987 21.314
Other Counties 169,268 1.110
Total 15.508.182 14.069.334

Sectorial Breakdown:

Loans and Other Receivables

Current Pericd

Brigr Period

Agriculture 292.0%8 406.009
Farming and Stockbreeding 249,587 188,025
Forestry 42.511 15111
Fishery 2.873
Manufacturing 3.052.932 3.070.790
Mining and Quarrying 507,039 814717
Production 1.656.486 1.452. 693
Electricity, Gas and Water §89.407 B03,380
Constructian 2.957.739 2.627.124
Services 6.763.37% 6,161,805
wholesale and Retail Trade 1,359,196 1.885.956
Accomodation and Dining 1.318,262 1.152.852
Transportation and Telecammunication 975.185 557.432
Financial Institutions 140.611 561.826
Real Estate and Rental Services 479,302 417,420
Self-Employment Services 761,672 470,911
Educational Services 198.509 699,346
Health and Social Services 430,532 318.062
thers 1.441.034 1.801.606
Total 15.508.182 14.069.334
Breakdown by outstanding maturity:
Up to 1 manth 1-3 Months 3-12 Manths 1-5 Years 3 years and over Total
Current Period 1.904.238 2,157,855 5.611.01 414.31 920.706 15,508,182
Prior Peried 3026.588 1.07.003 4.841.404 1.506.316 288020 14.069.334
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Exposures provisioned against by major regions and sectors and write-offs:

Current Peried Nar-performing loans Specific Provisions Write-offs
Domestic 920.334 515,118 145,214
Eurppean Union (EU) Countries -
OECD Countries
Off-Shore Banking Regions
LS4, Canada
Other Countries - - -
Total 910,338 515,118 149,244
Prigr Perind Non-performing loans Specific Provisions Write-offs
Domestic 621,863 265,815 442,120
European Union (ELY Countries - -
QECD Countries - -
Off-Shore Banking Regions - -
US54, Canada - -
Other Countries - L -
Tatal 621,862 295.835 443120
Exposures provisioned against by major regicns and sectors and write-offs :
Current Period Nan-perfarming Loans Specific Pravisions Write-offs
Agriculture £0.781 33.729 5.51%
Farming and Stackbreeding 43,260 15,352 3.295
Forestry 12.5H B.3F7 2143
Fishery - - 77
Manufacturing 201.682 120,638 7988
Mining and Quarrying 62,585 39.068 17.427
Production 133.484 T7.645 33.523
Electricity, Gas and Wator 5613 3.925 Fat
Construction 144,244 78.4%% 12460
Services 417,420 220.459 110,997
Wholesale and Retail Trade 22083 139,919 76,912
Areamndation and Gining 1122485 1%.436 19.712
Transportation and Telecommunication 7748 16,355 6.078
Financial Institutions 48 74 16
Real Estate and Rental Services HhB1E 12.077 07
Self-Employment Services 4.712 1.567 1667
Educational Services B.018 4,348 677
Health and Social Services 23.112 14,483 1.518
Others s 96.214 61.796 29.444
Total ) 920.328 5118 149.214
Prior Period Non-performing loans Spacific Provisions Write-offs
Agriculture 28.954 15,723 16.735
Farming and Stackbreeding 20.20% 9.09% 9.585
Forestry 8419 5.474 6,091
Fishery 326 250 1.059
Manufactyring 132.476 65,851 176,869
Mining and Quarrying 51.428 15,700 122.057
Froduction 80.439 42,875 53.626
Electricity, Gas and Water 609 76 1.186
Construction 87.393 46,234 64,340
Services 305.22% 121960 126,195
Wholesale and Retail Trade 132174 9.5 104,128
Acramadation and Dining 109.878 ).697 2.285
Transportation and Telecommunication 13.042 8,677 6.795
Fitancial institutions 54 k)] 761
Reai Estate and Rental Servives 41.351 8.943 kL
Sell-Employment Services 2.348 1.878 173
Educational Senvices 1.132 781 4,564
Health and Social Services 3,250 1.730 6.998
Others . 67.811 46,067 57.921
Total C 621.863 295,835 442,120
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Auing analysis:

Current Period Pricr Pariod
Days past due Amount Armount
0-30 15.307.058 13_A30. 206
21-60 82_355 415 . BEG
6 -90 118. 77 218.548
a0+ 920_338 621 863
Total 16.428.520 14.6%1.197

Breakdown of restructured receivables based on whether or not provisions are allocated:

Current Period Performing Loans under Mon-performing

loans follow-up loans
Provisioned -- -- 24,322
Not provisaned (*) 56505 1.100.594 --
Total 56.505 1.100.5%4 24,322

{*} The Bank calculates 5tage 1 provisions for performing loans and Stage 2 provisions for leans under follow-up.

X i Performing Leoans under Non-performing
Prior Period

loans fallow-up loans

Provisioned -- -- 4.411

Not provisoned (%) 57.7%6 412.242 --

Tatal 57.796 412.243 4.411

{*) The Bank calculates Stage 1 provisions for performing loans and Stage 2 provisions for loans under follow-up.
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Credit risk mitigation techniques-Overview

Exposures Collateralized Callateralized Collateralized
unsecured: Expasures amount of Expasures amount of Exposures amount of
Current Period carrying  secured by  exposures secured by expasures  secured by SXposUres
financial secured by credit secured by
amelint as per cotiateral secured by guarantees financial derjvatives credit
s collateral guaranteas derhvatives
1 Loans 14.405.387 1.50B.M% 1,290 35904 315,964 -t
I 0ebt Securities 1.474.075 - - .- --
3 Total 15.879.462 1.508.¢415 1.132.051 315,964 315964
43f which defaulted 301507 103.713 103, 13 -- --
Exposures tollateraiized Collateralized Collateralized
unsecured: Expasures amount of Expastires amount of Exposures ameunt of
Prior Periad EAFTYIRg secured by SXPOSUres s,e:f.lred by erpasures sscured h.y Exposures
amaunt as per collateral secured by Finansial ﬁc.ur?d FY . crledn secured b_y
Tis allateral Euarantess financial derivatives _ credit
gUarantses derivatives
1 Laans 11,225,357 3470005 2,141 484 1027542 1.027.54 -
2 Debt Securlties 1,139,964 - - - .
3 Total 12.365.321 3.170.005 L1.141.964 1.0217.54 1.027.541 - -
4 0f which defaulted 208.740 117.288 117,268 - --
Credit risk exposure and credit risk mitigation technigues
Current Perod Exposures before CCF and CRM Exposures past-CCF and CRM RiA and KA density
Rlsk classes On-balance OFf-balance sheet On-balance sheet Off-balanca WA RWA density
sheet amount amount amaunt sheet ameunt
1 Exposuras to savergigns and heir central banks 1.274.025 - 3,589,989 - 554,500 15,45
2 Exposures ka regional and local governments - - . - - 0,0%
3 Fxpasures ta adm. bodies and non-commercial entlties - - - 0,0%
4 Exposures to multilateral devalopment banks - - - - 0,05
5 Exposures ko international arganizaticns - - - -- -- 0,a%
& Expasures ko banks and hrokerage houses 2,473,868 57992 2.471.B6B 34,34% £87 581 27,44
F Expasires to corporates 10.E75. 808 FTE.63 10,615,675 433.37% 10,838,666 54,38
B Retail exposlres 137470 1.020.153 3064049 278,751 2.506.365 T4,9%
9 Exposiees secured by residential property 271,085 1.851 267.539 T 179952 &7,1%
10 Expasures secured by commercial property 1.255,280 44 625 1.209.956 35.760 501,550 £4,3%
11 Past-duoz items 356,201 - 356,201 - 194,491 82, T%
12 E¥posures in high-risk categeries 49,506 $.431 49,504 4,714 33.380 &1,6%
13 Expesures in the form of bords secured by mortgages -- - - - - 0%
14 Short term exposures to banks, brekerage houses and corp. -- -- - - 0,0%
* 6 Exposures In the form of coll. investment undertakings!*i 91.02% - o1.02% - 91.029 100,0%
46 Other exposures WA &07 4.755.17 09,607 75.945 643,597 65, 4%
17 Equity sha-e investments - -- - - - 0,0%
18 Tatal 21.818.479 6.671.862 i1 B28.47% 864,213 16631112 T0,2%

|FIContent menagement methodology s wsed te ralrulate the nsk-weightad amount af invesimenls in the forim of collective imvestmant underakings, Lable aborve

usiteg the content methodoleay.

rontains Anal values that obtained

Prior Period Expusures bafore CCF and CRM Exposures post-CCF and CRM Rwh and Awh density
. On-balance OF-balance sheet On-halance sheet QOff-balance -

Risk clazses sheat amount amount amount  sheet amount R4, R density

1 Exposures to savareiens and their central banks 2105754 3.129.290 - 170,450 4%
2 Expasures to regioral and local gavemments - -- - -- Q.04
3 Exposlnes to adm, bodies and non-tommercial entities 0,0k
4 Expostes to maltilateral development banks - - - 0%
§ Exposunes ko inter pational ereganizations - - - .- - €,0%
& Exposures ta barks and brekerage houses 331115 40,442 5711158 21,506 50,540 29,4%
T Exposures to corporates 9,085,125 562,649 8950693 322068 8.795,135 55,65
# Retail exposures 3512410 BZ7.975 2,797,681 292732 2.286.640 5,05
4 Exposures secured by residential property 361124 2189 34%.714 T42 182877 52,2%
10 Expasures secured by commercial property 1,430,992 50.203 1.341.743 3030 B78.543 £3,5%
11 Past-due ftems 2BT.004 -- 2R7 004 - 251549 101,6%
12 Exposures in high-rig categories 33100 9.508 3%.400 475 FE.TEE 132,9%
13 Exposures in the farm af bonds secured by mortgages - -- - - - 0,03
14 Snort term expasurss ta banks, brokerage houses and com. - - -- 0,0%
15 Exposures in the form af coll, fnvestment undertakings() 40.613 - 40.61% - 41.619 00,65
15 Uther euaosures 549.40F 3.378.90M Bd%. 402 100,252 £45.417 &6, O
17 Equity share lrvestments - i - -- - 0,0%
18 Total 0928, 384 4,871,867 210928 384 730085 14,300.376 56, 0%

{*WCantent management methedalogy 15 Lsed ta caleulata the risk-weighted amaunt of iwestments ir the form of collective investment undertakings, table abave contains final values that obtalmed by

using the cantent melhodelogy.
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Exposures by asset classes and risk weights

Curreak Parind __
. ) u ) Takal risk

Risk Classes! Fisk Welght 0% 13 20% RN 50% X8 Ti% 1049% 153% riu ] -
1 Esposures te soderz’gn: and their certral barks 2480989 1125200 3069789
% Exposures te regonal and local goeerinents - - - - -- -
3 Ewposurcs to adm, badies and nan-camme roal entities - - - - - - - -
4 Exposares to multilateral develapment banks - -
5 Expasares ko nkernuticnal arganizations - - - - -
& Erpasiogs to banks and brokeraga houses TEIAST &34, 4% 1.900.463 10,531 - -
T Exposuces to corpeiates 410558 - - - - 11.858, 866 - - 4
A Peinl Pxposres .57 - - - - - 131,825 - o - 134800
9 Exposures secured by zsidential propersy - - - 126,021 - - - 132,345 - 68, Ik4
10 Esposures secured by comme zial progerty " - - - - 28, 151 357,375 - - 1,245,785
11 Past-dur itemt - - 194423 " a0.374 T5.202 - 3562
A% Ewposures in high-risk categories - - AT 154 - 1,59 5444 34173
13 Eposures ir the form of honds secured by mertgages - - - - - - " - -
14 Shart b2 expasures ta banks, browerage heuses and corp. o - - o - - - - -
15 Exzomurcs in she form af coll. investment undertasings - - " - - 1029 - ER
16 Equity shase ‘nvastments - " s m - .
17 Other Expasares ML - - - - - - (41,392 - - B4, 592
10 Tekal 3.955.009 - 434.042 136,011 1,434,259 Bag. 351 13825 TR AN 81674 s R L

[*1 Callaterdized by rea, olace morgages . )

{1 ihar CCF and CRM

™ Content management ni=Liodalagy s Lserd b calculata tha risk weighted amounl of invesLments 'n te form of callect e irrsrment wnderiakings, liral »alue abtaned by aring the captept melhadsogy.

Frlor Fericd . ;

Rk Clsste itk Walght 0% 1% 0% 5350} o8, X500 o ws s mes Tl
1 Fsposures to scw2raigns and their cemirag banks 2.T38.2% 40,535 1129.2%5
1 Esposures te reglonal ard loca, gesemments - - - - - -
3 Ewpasures to adm. hodies a1d Jon-commerslal enkTies . - - - - -
4 Bposures to me b laterzl develapment barks - - o - - -
% Espasures to intemnatiaral organizations - - - o - - -
& Expowres to hanis and bro<erage houses 95940 1 401.EM - 1.3RT - 5. v Er Rt
T Expasures to corparates 0762 - - - - - B atn %200, M
B PRebsil expowire 1.520 - - - 1.1, 553 - 1050058
4 Ezposures sacured by reskdar lial pogeity - - 7. 814 - - 97 .67 350,836
Il Expasures wkred by commerdial property - - - - . 1.0C4.27% - b3 " 1.380.77%
11 Past-cue iters - ELRGY - 8380 106,857 13104
11 Esprscres in high-nisk tegories 4,591 5,84 347 413
'] Ezposures in the term of heads secared by mectaages - - - - - " - - - -
‘4 Short term axposures ta katks, scherage hatses and cam. - - -
'S zposures in the furk of coll. irvestment wdertakires - A0.61% LBty
“h Equity shara investments " " - -
1T Crher Expasures 037 - - - " - B45.617 " LM
% Tetal 3.5%7.529 1.401. 604 I5T.R14 1,774,981 1.004.4T 3048 X6 10,039,943 142774 66T 465

It Codeterabzec by resl ‘Zitatn margages
1"} AMer CCF and CAM

1| Catent manzgement methada gy It used 1o calculate the rrkweeigited ameLne 3l testments I the farm of codeslve Invsstmenl urdertakings, fnal valle o3tared by using te canlent metkedslagy,
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Information on consolidated credit risk mitigation techniques

The Bank does not apply any netting on balance sheet and off-balance sheet. Guarantees and derivatives are
not used as credit mitigation technigue; only financial collaterals consisting of cash blockages are used.

Applications related to the valuation and management of collaterals are defined as follows: Appraisals for
the mortgages that are received as collaterals are only performed by the firms that have been approved by
the BRSA and licensed by the Capital Markets Board {“CMB"). Appraisal reports for the real estates that are
received as collaterals for commercial loans, are renewed each year as long as the risk continues. As a rule,
each year a different appraisal firm is preferred. Management of the appraisal process is carried out by
Appraisal & Real Estate Project Finance Unit. Vehicle pledges are followed through their insurance values.
Regular investigations are performed for the cheques and bills that are received as collaterals and in case of
any negative finding the Bank seeks to replace the collateral.

The Bank’s collaterals are mainly composed of cheques, notes, mortgages, guarantees, vehicle pledges and
deposit pledges. The Bank’s credit risk concentration mainly consists of corporate receivables and are
followed by receivables that are collateralized with mortgage, SME and retail receivables, respectively.

Exposure Categories * " " Fimancial Cther/Physical Guarantees and
maun

Current Period Collaterais Collaterals = Cradit Derivatives

Recaivables from Central Governments 3.589.9E9 - - 315,964

Fecejvables, Cains, Purchased Cheques fram Regicnal or

Leca: Sovernments and CBT Banks

Beceivables Fram Adminiztrative Linits and Mon-Commerrial Snterprises

Receivables from hultilateral Develaoment Banks

Recevables from International Qreanisations . ..
Receivables from Banks and Brukerage Houses 2.506.213 T&3.157

Corporate Receivables 11,249,554 415,388 - -
Fetail Receivables 3,344,200 3.080 -

Receivables that are Collateralized by Residential Property 1,514,082 -- 1,024,372

Fast due Receivables 356,201 - T 268

Receivables Dofined In High Risk Category by BREA 54322 --

4ecurities Collateralised by Martgages - - -
Shert-term Reccivables from Banks,

Brokeraee Houses and Corparates - -
Investrnents Similar to Collective Investment Funds 91.079

Cther Receivabdes FE4.592 - -- --
Total 23.09L, 693 1.177.125 1.096.640 315,964

|*; Mon-cash rsks presented abave alter credIt {dnversian.
\"*}ikher # Physica, Collaterats are shown with full amaunts which zre posible b be used, in Line with Us fagulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks and Credit Risk mitigation
Technigues,

Exposlre Categories * A ¢ Financial ather/Physical firarantees and
maoul

Priar Period " Collaterals Collatrals Credit Derivatives

Receivables fram Contral Gavernments 1123355 - -- 1027 541

kecewatles, Coins, Puithased Chegues from Regional or

Local Gowernments and CBT Banks

Receivables from Administrative Units and Hen-Commencial Enterprises

Receivables fram Multilateral Deve'opment Banks

Receivables fram [nternationak Oraanlsaticns -- --
Receivables from Banks and Brokerages Fouses LEFLE64 495940

Carporate Receivables 9202, 761 AR 625

Fetail Recoivables 3.050.342 2.5332 -

Recrivables that are Coljateralized by Resldential Property 1.731.235 - 1055285

Past due Receivables 257.004 - 75.736

Fecrivables Defined in High Risk Category by BRSA 43,854 --

tecurities Callateralised by Martgages --

Shurt-Lerm Receivabies frum Banks,

Brokerage Houses and Corporates -

Invesstments Similar te Collective Investment Funds 40.61% -

Cther Receivables G465 - - --
Total 21.667. 4489 S07.897 1.328.021 1.027.541

{*] Mon-cash risks presanted abave after credit canversion,
{™)thar ¢ Physical Collate rals are shown with full ameunts which are passible to se used, in Une with the Aegulation on Veawrement and Assesment of Capital Adequacy of Banks and Credit Risk Kitlgation
Technigues.,
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Counterparty credit risk (CCR) approach analysis

Current Period

Replacement
Cost

EEPE
{Effective
Expected
Positive

Potential Credit
Expasure

Alpha used for

camputing  EAD post-CRM

regulatory EAD

Standardised Approach - CCR (for derivatives)

Interral Model Metkod ifor derivative instrumants, repo
trahsactions, seourities or commaedity lending or borrowing
trangactions, long settlement transactions and securitles financre

SImple Approach far credit Ask mitigation {for repo transactions,
secUrities of commadity lending er barrawing transactions, lang
settlement transacticns and secdrities financing transactions]

Comprehensive Approach for credit rsk mitigation (fer repe
trassactiors, securities or commedity lending or horrowing
transactions, long settlement transactiors and securities financing
Lransactionsp

Value-at-Risk {aR) for repa transact'ens, securibies or commadity
lending ar barrowing transactions, long sectlement transactions 2nc
securities financing transactions

164,254

Exposure)
150562 -

| 45346

- 1,051,638

30013

89,823

121,621

23

Total

160.284

190,562 --

- 1.532.514

411.4567

Prior Perlod

Replacement

EERE
{Effective
Expected

Pasitive
Exposura}

Patential Credit
Exposure

Alpha used for

computing  EAD past-CRM

repulatory EAD

trandardised Approach - CCR [for derivativas)

Internal Model Methed (for cervative instruments, repa
transactions, securities or commedity lending or borrawing
transactlons, lo7g settlement transactions and securizies financing
transactions)

Simple Approach for credit rigk mitigatian (for repo transactions,
seeurities ar cammadity lending or borrowing transactions, 'ong
setilement transactions and securitics financing transacticns)

Comprehensive Approach for credit risk mitigation {for repo
transactjons, securities or commodity lending or borrawing
transactions, lang settlemert transactions and securities financing
transactions)

Value-at-Risk 'vaR) for reno transictions, securities ar commodity
lending or borrawing transactians, lang settlement transacticns and
securities financing transactlons

414.371

1.4 Ba0.53%

- Ty

568,885

93,804

Total

446 187

414,372 -

- 1.593.975

662,689

Capital requirement for credit valuation adjustment (CVA)

Current Period

Prior Pericd

EAD pust-CRM

R4,

ot P2

Total portfolios subject to the Advanced CWh capital obligation
(i} ¥aR campanent (including the 3smultiplier)

(i) Stressed YaR companent dincluding the J=multiplier)

All portfelios subject to the Standardised Cva capital obligation
Total subject ko the CVA capital obligation

EAD post-CRM

450845
450,846

Bad 559
860559

187.860
187.850
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CCR exposures by risk class and risk weights - standardised approach

Current Period

Risk Weights

0% 108 0% 50% Fit? 100%

150%

Other

Total credit
risk (%)

Exposures to soversigns and their central
banks

Exposures ta regional and local governments
Exposures tn adm. bodias and non-
commercial entities

[xposures to multilateral development,
banks

Exposures to intemnational organizations
Exposures to banks and brokerags houses
Exposurcs bo corporates

Retail exposures

Expusures secured by residential property
Past-due items

Exprosures in high-risk categories
Exposures in the form of bands secured by
martgades

Securitization positions

Short term exposures to banks, brokerage
houses and corp.

Exposures in the form of coll. investrment
undertakings

Equity share imvostments

Qther expoilres

COther assets

67
1405330

1.384.640
140,530
7344

Total

FE5.903 = 4.598 140.5%7

- 1.532.%14

Priar Perfod

Risk Weights

0% 10% 20% 7o% 100%

Other

Total credit
risk [}

Exprsures to soversigns and their central
barks

Exposures to reglonal and local governments
Exposures ko adm. bodies and non-
commercial entities

Exposures to multilateral development
banks

Exposures to international organizations
Exposures to banks and brokerage houses
Expnsuras to corporatas

Retail exposures

Exposures securad by recidential property
Past-due items

Exposures in high-risk categuries
Expusures in the farm of bonds secured by
MOrtEages

securitization positions

Short term exposures bo banks, brokersge
houses and corp.

Exposures in the form of coll. investment
undertakings

Equily share investments

{ther exposures

Other assets

3175 --

49% 940 - 135438

-- 5,542

1.273.632

-- 313945
-- 3857

Total

499.843 - 135.438  644.621 3129 310.945

1.593.976

Collaterals for CCR

Current Period

Collateral for derivative transactions

Collateral

for other

Fair value of coltateral

Fair value of collateral given
recelved

Segregated Unsegregated  Segregated Un'se_gregated

Fair value of
collateral
recefved

Fair value of
callateral
given

Cash-local currency
Cash-foreign currency
Domestic sovereian debts
Other sgvereign debts
Government, agency debts
Corparate debts

Equity securities

Other coltateral

2.746 - - -

733.257
19,894

10010

1.051.658

Total

2.746 -

763.151

1.081.668

Prior Period

Collareral for derivative transactiens

Collateral

for other

Fair value of collateral

. Fair value of collateral given
received

Fair value of
cellateral
received

Fair value of
colizteral
given

Cash-local currency
Cash-foreign currency
Daomestic savereian debts
Other sovergian debts
Government. agency debts
Carporate debts

Equity securities

Other callateral

Segregated Unsedregated

Segregated Unsegregated

728 - - -

495.936

733.417

Total

495,936

733.417
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Explanations on consolidated market risk

Whether the Group within the financial risk management objectives hedges itself against market risk,
the precautions taken by the Board of Directors for market risk, the methods used for measuring market
risk and time intervals for measurement of market risk

In order ta hedge against the market risk within the context of the risk management chjectives, the Group
sets its activities related with market risk management in accordance with “Regutations on Banks’ Internal
Control and Risk Management Systems” published in the Official Gazette no. 29057 dated 11 July 2014 and
“Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of Banks” published in the Official
Gazette no. 29511 dated 23 October 2015,

Being exposed to market risk, Bank’s Board of Directors have defined risk management strategtes and policies
about risk managements in line with application and recommendation of group and have led to follow-up
strategies periodically. The limits of risks are identified and these limits are revised periodically. Board of
Directors ensures that risk management group and executive managers should identify, measure, cantrol and
manage the Bank's risl,

Market risk arising from trading transactions is limited through the risk appetite policy approved by Board of
Directors as “low” and measured by taking into consideration BRSA’s standard methodology. Additionally
Financial Control Depariment reports the market value and realized profit/toss of trading portfolio. The Risk
Management and Asset Liability Committee continuously monitor compliance of trading transactions with the
risk appetite policy. Market risk caused by mismatches of asset-liability maturities is also manitored through
GAP reports.

Stress tests and scenario analysis are also applied in order to reflect the effects of prospective severe market
fluctuations in the VaR calculations. Risk measurement methads such as cash flow projections and GAP
analysis are also applied.

Capital to be kept for general market risk and specific risk are calculated by using a standard methed in
accordance with “Measurement and Assessment of Bank Capital Adequacy Regulation” and are reported
manthly.

In the calculation of the value at credit risk for the derivative financial instruments, the receivables from
counterparties are multiplied by the rates stated in the Article 21 and Appendix-2 of “the Regulation on
Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks™, reduced as per the “Regulation on Credit Risk
Mitigation Techniques” following included in the relevant exposure category and weighted for a second time.
The risk amount related to the Bank's derivative financial instruments are calculated using the “Fair Value
Method”.
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Market risk under standardised approach

Market risk under standardised approach

Current Pericd

Priar Peried

EWaA R,
Outright Products
1 Interest rate risk {general and specific) 933.163 820.250
2 Equity risk {general and specific) ’ .- .
3 Foreign exchange risk 13.875 B80.313
4  Commodity risk . -
Cpticens
5 Simplified approach - -
6 Delta-plus method f.425 11.075
7 Scenario approach -- .-
& Securitisation ) - -
9 Total 552.463 911.638

Quantitative information en counterparty risk

The counterparty risk amount is calculated in accordance with fair vatue measurement methodology stated
in Appendix 2 and section 3 of "Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy Ratios of

Banks".

The replacement costs of the contracts with positive value are obtained by evaluating the contracts according
to their fair value. The potential credit risk amount is calculated by multiplying contract or transaction
amounts with certain ratios determined in accordance with days to maturity and contract type. The total of
replacement cost and potential credit risk make up counterparty risk amount. Counterparty credit risk

mitigation considers only cash collaterals.

Tish weights
Walue
L] Pk SO T5 100% Total Rwi
Current Period
Inzerest-Fabe Contracts (*] - - . .- - - .
Foreen-Exchange-Rabe Contracts [™) 290,582 2,746 18. B4 174,607 2112 RA.I5T 182811
Commadity Contracts - - - - - - -
Equity-Srares Related Contracts
Dther - - - - - -
Geoss Positive Fair Values 1£0.2E3 7 105,380 2486 S A4 105,910
Hetting Benefits -- - - . - .
Mol Cument Exposure Amount -
Lallaterals Recetred 2,746 - - - - - -
Meb Derlvative Pagition (***} 450845 2. 746 18.917 283.947 4.568 140,397 I3%.823
|1 Fepa transarhicas.
1" Inctudes cpeloe, cuency saap and forware sordracl.
11 Eorrals of furely) @ chanze fate ang Interest rate sondrarts svd gims vulues of posite *il viloe amannts.
Risk Weights
Yalue
% 205 S8 Foy 100% Total R0

Prigr Pariod
Interesi-Rate Contracts (*] - - - - - s -
Foreign-Exchange-Rate Contracts [ 414.373 3.503 49,849 pranp 1.755 137786 259,582
Commadity Contracts - - -- - - - .
Equity-Shares Felated Gontracts -
QOther - - - - . -
{3ross Positive Falr Yalues 446186 2405 w119 1.374 175,214 e 304
HeLting Benefits - - - - .- -
Het Cunent Exposune Amount - -
Collaterals Recetverd T - - - - - -
Net Darivative Pagitian (™} 460.55% %03 51.114 450.35% 129 310.944 SEB.BES

1°) Fieps brarescticre
1} Includes cpgian, curreiy bwal ard lerwaed rasirarts.
1*| Corssls al foreign machangs rale v [0tarass rate coviracts and grae alues af posiltfoe Tl valae gngunts,
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Explanations on consolidated operational risk

The value at aperational risk is calculated according to the “basic indicator approach”. Value at cperational
risk amount is calculated by using the last 3 years' (2018, 2017, 2016) gross income, in accordance with the
Communiqué on “Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks” issued on Official Gazette
dated September 6, 2014 numbered 29111, “Calculation of Operational Risk”. 15% of grass income which is
TL 118.842 (31 December 2018: TL 89.171) represents also the minimurn capital requirement to recover the
risk amount.

Toral/ No. of

Current Peried MATA016  3V1Z201F 3MZFIME  Years of Positive Gross Rate {3) Total
Income

aross Incoma £22.798 T16.364 1.038.186 792.281 15 118.842

Yalue at Operational Risk (Totaf*12,5) 1.485.530
Totalf No, of

Frior Periad FIAZI05  31ALI016  31/1272017  Years of Positive Gress Rate (%} Total
Incame

Gross Income 444.750 622.298 716.354 B34 474 13 89.171

Value at Qperational Risk (Total*12,5) 1.114.639
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FIFTH SECTION

EXPLANATIONS AND NOTES ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Explanations and disclosure related to the conscolidated assets

Information on cash and balances with the Central Bank of Turkey

Current Period Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Cash in TL /Foreign Currency 48,386 211.408 3734 100.990
Balances with the Central Bank of Turkey 152.600 2.295.481 366,313 1.259.918
Cther -- -- -- --
Total 200.986 2,506.889 403,654 1.360.908
Information related to the account of the Central Bank of Turkey
— Current_Period Prior Peried

TL FC TL FC
Unrestricted Demand Deposits 152.527 659.002 80.939 911.053
Unrestricted Time Deposits 73 498.795 285.354 -
Restricted Time Deposits 1,137,684 - 743.865
Total 152,600 2.295.481 366.313 1.259.918

According to the communiqué No: Z005/1 on “Reserve Deposits” of CBRT, banks operating in Turkey are
required to keep reserve deposit at the rates varying from 1% - 7% (31 December 2018: 1,5%-8%) for TL
liabilities and at the rates 5% - 21% (31 December 2018: 4%-20%) for FC liabilities depending on maturities of
liabilities.

Information on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Information on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss given as collateral or blocked

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC _TL FC
Share Certificates .- - . ..
Bondsl, Treasury Bills and Similar Marketable 74,580 21934
Securities
Total 24.580 -- 21.934

Trading securities given as collateral represent those collaterals given to the Central Bank of Turkey, and
Istanbul Clearing and Custody Bank (Takasbank} for interbank money market, fareign exchange market and
other transactions, as of balance sheets dates,

As of 31 December 2019, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss not given as collateral or not
blocked is TL 73.157 ({31 December 2018: TL 48.868).

Loans recognised at fair value through profit or loss

As of 31 December 2019, loans recognised at fair value at through profit or loss 75 1.948.020 (31 December
2018: TL 1.5316.819).

When fair value hedge accounting terminated, the fair value amaount on the hedged financial instruments are
reflected into the statement of profit or loss by amortization during the life time of the hedged financial
instruments.
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{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL} unless otherwise stated)

information on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss subject to repurchase agreements

None.

Positive differences relating to derivative financial assets

Current Perjod

Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Forward Transactions 59,591 -- 98.585 --
Swap Transactions 168,713 1.015.077
Futures Transactions - - -- --
Options 195,923 27.136 341,061 26.033
Other _ - -- - -
Tatal 624,227 27.136 1.454,723 26,033
{*} Except. the derivative financial Uabilities for hedging purposes.
Information on Banks
Information on banks
Current Period Prior Period
TL FC TL . FC
Banks
Domestic 400.573 740 731.428 339
Foreign 2.058 87.455 281 233.756
Foreign head-offices and branches -- - -- -
Total 402.611 88.165 731.709 234105
Duye from foreign banks
Current Period Prior Period
Unrestricted Restricted Unrestricted Restricted
Balances Balances Balances Balances
EU Countries 18.008 28.352 2.578 199.352
UsA and Canada 29.818 -- 18.664 -
OECD Countries {*} 1.433 3.624 649 210
Off-Shore Banking Regions - .- - -
(ther 8.278 .- 5.594 e
Total 57.537 31.976 34,485 199,562

{*) OECD countries other than the EU countries, USA and Canada.

Information on Financial Assets Valued at Fair Yalue Through Other Comprehensive Income

Finagncial assets valued at fair vailue through other comprehensive income subject to repurchase

agreements and provided as collateral / blocked

Current Period

Prior Peried

S I FC TL FC
Share Certificates -- - N -
Bondsl, Treasury Bills and Similar Marketable 10.904 776.085 — 642 47
Securities
Other - - - -
Total 10.904 F76.085 7.3%9 642,487

As of 31 December 2019, financial assets vaiued at fair value through other comprehensive income not given

as collateral or not blocked is TL 20.579 (31 December 2018: TL 54.452).
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Details of financial assets valued at fair value through other comprehensive income

Current Period Frior Period

Debt instruments

B803.864 729.908

Quoted on Stock Exchange 803.864 729,908
Unguoted on Stock Exchange - -
Share certificates 3.800 2.713
Quoted on Stock Exchange 3.800 2.713
Unguoted on Stock Exchange - --
Impairment provision (-) 36 28.283
Total 807.568 704.338

Information on Loans

information on all types of loans and advances given to shareholders and employees of the Bank

Current Period

Prior Pe'riod

TL FC TL FC
Direct Loans to Shareholders -- 20 - 20

Corporate Shareholders - - --

Individual Sharehalders - 20 - 20
Indirect Loans to Shareholders - - - --
Loans to Employees 4,653 -- 4.655 --
Total 4,653 20 4.695 20

information on Loans under Close Monitoring that are restructured with Standard Loens and Close

Monitoring Loans

Loans Under Close Monitoring

Standard
Cash Loans Loans Restructured
| Mon-restructured Re“s‘?ri ri_?sntraa refinanced
Loans 13.684.448 723.140 785.792 314,802
Working Capital Loans 5.830.163 228.950 300,679 281.359
Export Loans -- - -- 713
Impart Loans == -- -- --
Leans to Financial Sector 183,697 77 84 --
Consumer Loans 1.551.52% 57774 4.549 958
Credit Cards 21.148 5.902 .- .-
Others 6.097.920 429787 4E0.480 31.772
specialization Loans - - - -
Other Recelvables - - - -
Total (*) 13,684,448 723.140 785.792 314.802

[*} Amouaking to TL 3.092 factoring receivables and TL 1.948.020 financial loans at fair valee through profit or loss are also included.

Cyrrent Period

Prior Period

Standard Loans Under Standard Loans Under

Loans Close Monitoring Loans Close Monitoring

12-month Expected Credit Lossas 117.274 104,447 -
Significant Increase in Credit Risk - 171,618 ) -- 16%.498
Total 117.374 171.618 104,447 169.498
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The overdue analysis of close monitoring loans

Current Period Commercial Loans Consumer Loans Total
1-30 days 251,024 4,03% 255,559
31-60 days SB.987 23368 82.355
61-90 days 99,5330 19,240 118.770
Total 409,541 47.143 456684
Priar Periad Commercial Loansz Consumer Loans Total
1-30 days 386,041 1,253 396.294
31-60 days IES. 118 30760 419.878
61-90 days 194,827 23.645 118.472
Tatal §969.9846 64.658 1.034.644

Maturity analysis of cash loans

Standard Loans and Other
Receivables

Loans and Cther Receivables under
Close Manitoring

Laans and

X k ther -
Loons ond Qther Receivapies

Loans and

5 Bl
Leoverris ancd Qfther Receivables

Recefvahles with Revised Receivabies With Revised
Contract Terms Contract Terms
Short-term Loans and Other Receivables 5.541.985 -- 93641 52.83a8
Loans 5.541.985 -- 93.4641 5Z2.828
Specialized Loans
Qther Loans
Meditm and Lang-term Loans and Other 8.085.958 56.505 6©29.499 1.047.756
Receivables
Loans 8.085.358 56.505 62F . 439 1.047.756

Specialized Loans
Other Loans

7%
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Information on consumer loans, individual credit cards and credit cards given to personnel

Short-Term Medium or Long Term Tatal

Consumer Loans-TL 736,548 831.310 1.567.858
Real Estate Loans - 314.057 314.087
Vehicle Loans 46 ENE]] 3777
General Purpose Loans 736.502 513,522 1.250.024
Other - --
Consumer Loans-Indexed to FC - 11.971 11,971
Real Estate Loans - 11.524 11.524
Yehicle Loans - -
General Purposc Loans - 447 447
Other - - -
Consumer Loans-FC -- 583 583
Real Estate Loans - 583 543
WYehicle Loans -
General Purpose Loans
Other
Individual Credit Cards-TL 6.875 - 6,875
With Installment 913 - 913
Without Installment 5.942 - 5.962
Individual Credit Cards-FC 109 - 109
With Instatlment - -
Without Installment 109 - 109
Loans Given to Employees-TL be1 3.138 3799
Real Estate Loans - 545 545
Vehicle Loans - -
General Purpose Loans 661 2.553 3.254
Dther -
Loans Given to Employees - Indexed to FC - - -
Real Estate Loans - -
Vehicle Loans -- -
General Purpuse Loans - -
Other - -
Loans Given to Employees - FC -- - -
Real Estate Leans -- -
Vehicle Loans -

" General Purpose Loans - -
Other - -
Personnel Credit Cards - TL 851 - 851
with Installment 131 - 181
Without installment 670 - 670
Persannel Credit Cards - FC 3 - k|
With Installment -- .-
Without Instatiment 3 - 3
Overdraft Loans-TL (Real Persons) 30.593 - 30.595
Overdraft Loans-FC {Real Persons) - - -
Total ' 775.641 847.002 1.622.644
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information on commercial loans with installiments and corporate credit cards

Shart-Term  Medium or Long Term Tatal
Installment Commercial Loans - TL 541.387 2.751.409 31.293.7%4
Real Estate Loang - 1.01B 1.018
Vehicle Laans 9.007 62.765 71.772
General Purpase Loans 933.380 2.687.625 3.221.006
Other - - =
Installment Commercial Loans - Indexed to FC - 94,477 94.477
Real Estate Loans - .
wehicle Loans 12.425 12.425
General Purpose Loans - §2.052 A2.052
Other -
Installment Commerciai Loans - FC - -
Real Estate Loans - -
Wehicle Loans - -
General Purpose Loans - -
Other -- - -
Cerporate Credit Cards - TL 19.212 - 19.212
With Installment 2.234 2.134
wWithaut Installment 16.978 - 16.978
Corparate Credit Cards - FC - - -
With Installment - - -
Without Installment .- - -
Overdraft Leans-TL {Legal Entities) 49.359 - 49,359
Overdraft Loans-FC (Legal Entities) -
Tetal 510,958 2.345 886 3.456.844

Allocation of loans by customers

Current Period

Priar Period

Public Sector
Private Sector

15.5(08.182

14.069.334

Total (%)

15.508.182

14.069.334

{*3 Amounting te TL 3.092 factoring recefvables {31 December 2018: Tk 14,311} and TL 1,948 024} firancial loans ak fair value through profit or
lass are also incluoded (31 December 2015: TL 1.516.81%).

Allocation of Domestic and Foreign Loans

current Period

Prior Pericd

‘Domestic Loans 14.737.586 13.663.328
Foreign Loans 770596 406,006
Total () 15.508. 182 14.069.334

{*} Amounting to TL 3.092 factaring receivables (31 December 2018: TL 14,311y and TL 1.948.020 financial loans at fair value through profit or
loss are also Included {31 December 2018: TL 1.514.819).
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{Amounis expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {TL} unless otherwise stated)

Loans granted to subsidiaries and associates

The Bank does not have any loans granted to subsidiaries and associates as of 31 December 2019 (31 December

2018: None),

Provisions provided against {oans (Ehird stage}

Current Perfad .

Prior Pericd

Loans and Receivables with Limited Collectability 165.920 107,976
Loars and Receivables with Doubtful Collectalbility 133.848 66,127
Uncallectible Loans and Receivables 215,350 121.732
Total 515.118 295,835

Information on non-performing (ogns (Net)

Information on foans and other receivables included in non-performing loans which are restructured or

rescheduled
_ Il Group Y. Group ¥. Graup
Loans and Laans and receivables
receivablas with . Uncollectible loans
imited with dURtLL -0 e eivables
collectability collectability -
Current Period 453 21.568 2,301
Gross Amounts before Provisions .- -- --
Restructured Loans and Other Receivables 453 21,568 1.3
Prior Pericd 33 4.308 14
Gross Amounts before Specific Provisions .- -- --
Restructured Loans and Qther Recehvables 8% 4.308 14
Movement on non-performing foans
I, Group I¥. Group V. Group
Loans and )
recefvables with Loans and_recewabies Uncallectible loans
lirmited with doubitiul and receivahles
collectability collectability
Balances at the End of Prior Peried 203821 167.547 250,495
Additions {+) 632,046 5,342 20.940
Transfers fram Other Categories of Mon-
Porforming Loans (+) 91 329.029 370,583
Transfers ta Other Categaries of Mon-Performing
Loans {-} 530.390 363,905 6,239
Collections (-} 49,880 36,048 £4.710
Write-offs {-} -- .- 13.022
Sald {-) (%) 48,436 85.914 101.842
Carparate and Commercial Loans 43.217 84.619 B3.786
Retail Loans 41 37 &.030
Credit Cards 178 973 9.024
Other - - --
Balances at End of the Period 268.082 216.051 436,205
Provisions {-) (*} 165.920 133,848 215.350
Wet Balance on Balance Sheet 102.162 §2.203 220.855

t*} The lpan amaunting to TL 236,192 in 2019 has been written off from assets by transferring o asset management campanty.
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Information on expected credit losses

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Beginning of period {1 January 2019} 104,447 169.498 295,435
Loans and maovements added during the peried 35.809 2.886 i1.693
Loans and movements maved out during the period [16.360) [(21.297) [AB.163)
Movements of Stage 1 and Stage 2
Stage 1 Loans in twe periods 12.870 -
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 2 {21.192) 66.417 -
Stage 2 Leans in two periods 11.638 -
Transfers from Stage 2 to Stage 1 1.064 2.712) -
Movements of Stage 3
Transfers from Stage 1 to Stage 3 {*) {3.265%) - 93.043
Transfers from Stage 2 Lo Stage 3 -- 47.812) 13321
Stage 3 Loans in two periods (amaount and parameter change) - - 42,698
Write-affs - - -
Sold - - (95.158)
Period end (31 December 2019) 117.374 171.618 515.118
{*}The mentioned customers are in Stage 1 at the end of 2018 and they have passed Lo Stage 3 during the year.
Information on non-performing loans and other receivables in foreign currencies
NN, Group I¥. Group Y. Group
Loans and .
. . Loans and receivables ,
receivables with . Urzollectible loans
i with doubtful ;
limited callectabilic and receivables
callectability i
Current Period
Balance as of Periad End 15.936 33.897 B5.845
Provisions {-] 9.818 17.768 31.520
Mot Balance on Balance Shaet 6.118 16.129 54,325
Priar Period
Balance as of Period End 50,101 46.335 40.260
Provisions () 12.756 5.326 9.989
Net Balance on Balance Sheet 37.345 40.809 30.271

Information regarding gross and net amounts of non-performing loans with respect to debtor groups

Il. Group |V, Group V. Group
Loans and Loans and receivables
receivables with ; Uncollectible loans
limited with dOUD_tf_Ul and receivables
collectability collectability
Current Perigd (Net) 102.162 82.202 220 RE5
Leans Granted o Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) 266.082 216,031 436,207
Provisions (-} 165924 133.848 215.350
Loans Granted ko Real Persons and Legal Entities [Met) 102.162 82.203 220.855
Banks {Gross) -- -- -
Privisions {-) -
Banks {Met) -
Mher Loan and Receivahles [Gross) -- -
Fravisions {-] - -
GOther Loan and Receivables (Net) -- - -
Prior Pericd {Net) 95.845 101.420 128.763
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Gross) 203.821 167,347 250,493
Prowisians {-) 107.976 66,127 121.732
Loans Granted to Real Persons and Legal Entities (Net) 95,845 128.763

Banks {Gross)
Provisiens ()

Banks (Net)

Other Loan and Recetvables (Gross}
Prevvisions {-}

Other Loan and Recefvables (Net]

101,420
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Information on interest accruals, valuation differences and related provisions calculated for non-

performing leans by the banks which reserves provision according to TFRS ¢

The Bank does net calculate interest accruals for non-performing loans.

Explanations about policy of cancelling from Credit

In the event that the conditions stated in the law related to the unworthiness of the receivable arise,
whale provisions are set aside for all of these leans and the loans are written off from the assets by

the board decision.

Information on financial assets measured at amortized cost

Information on securities subject to repurchase agreement and given as collateral or blocked

Current Period Pricr Period
TL FC TL FC
Share Certificates . -- _
Bonds, Treasury Bills and Similar Marketable
Securities 188,506 386.552 188.864 50.518
_Q!her - - - .
Total 188.506 386.592 188,864 90.518
Information on government securities in financial assets measured at amortized cost
Current Peried Prior Period
J TL FC TL FC
Government Bond 188.506 386.592 188,864 174.168
Treasury Bill -- -- - --
Other Detit Securities -- -- . .-
Total 188.506 386.592 188,864 174.168

Information on financial assets measured at amortized cost

Current Perfod

Prior Peried

Debt instruments 575.098 363.032
Quoted on Stock Exchange 575.098 263.032
Unguoted on Stock Exchange -- --

Share certificates -- -
Quoted on Stock Exchange --

Unguoted on Stack Exchange -

Impairment provision (-] - -

Total 575.098 3632.032

Information on the movement of financial assets measured at amortized cost during the period

Current Period Prior Period

Balance at the heginning of period 363.092 -

Fareigh Exchange Difference in Monetary Assets -- -

Purchases during the year (") 212,066 363.032

Disposals through Sales and Redemptions .

Impairment provision §-) -- -

Total 575.098 363.032

{*] According to TFRS 9 transaction, the related amount classified as “"Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive ncome” to

Measured at Amortized Cost”.
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FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira {TL} unless otherwise stated)

Information on associates
The Group has an investment amounting to TL 4.897 as of 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: TL 4.897).

Bank's Share- Bank’s Risk
Address (City /  If different voting Group Share (%)

Company Name Country) rights (%)

Kredi Garanti Fonu A.5. ' Ankara 1,54% 1,54%

Information on consolidated subsidiaries
The Group has TL 36,945 investment in subsidiaries as of 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: TL 26,945).

Non-financial subsidiaries

The Bank has TL 31.500 investment in a non-financial subsidiary as of 31 December 2019 {31 December 2018:
TL 21.500).

Bank's Share-
Address (City 7/ If different veting
Country) rights (%)

Bank's Risk

Company Name Group Share {%)

Finberg Arastirma Gelistirme Damsmanbik Yatinm Hizmetler A.5. Istanbul . 100, 00% 100,00%

Finberg Arastirma Gelistirme Damsmanlk Yatinm Hizmetleri A.5., was established with the purpecse of
providing entrepreneurship, creation of new business fields and technologies, investment in financial
technology companies, mobile payment, income expenditure follow-up and money transfer consultancy
services.

Financial subsidiaries

The Bank has TL 5.445 investment in a financial subsidiary as of 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: TL
5.445).

Bank’s Share-

Company Narme Address (City / If different Grgﬂ"';;::k{%} Consalidation
pany Country) voting rights (%) P Type
Fiba Portfoy Yonetimi A.5. istanhul 99,00% 99,00% Full Consolidation

Fiba Portfiy Yénetimi A.S. has been established as of 26 September 2013 with 99% share of Fibabanka A.5.

The financial information about Fiba Portfdy Yonetimi A.S.as of 31 December 2019 is given below:

Income on

Shareholders’  Total Fixed Interest .. Current Period  Prior Pariod Company's
Total Assets . . Securities . . \
Equity Assets (*) lncome . Profit/Loss Prafit/Loss Fair Yalue
Portfolio
9.902 8.734 458 &1 - 7912 155 T

{*3 Total fixed assets consist tangible and intangible assets.
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{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Information on subsidiaries (continued)

Informationon capital adequacy of major subsidiary

Current Period Fika Portféy Yanetimi A.5.
Core Capital 8.742
Paid-in Capital 5.500

Inflation Adjustments to Faid-in Capital -
Share Premium -
Reserves -
Current Period’s Profit and Prior Periods’ Profit 1242
Current Period’s Losses and Prior Periods’ Losses -
Leasehold Improverments on Cperational Leases {-) --
Intangible Assets (-}

Goodwill {Net} {-} -
Supplementary Capital -

Capital 8.742
Deductions From Capital
Net Available Equity 8.742

The Parent Bank does not have any needs for its subsidiaty included in the calculation of 115 consolidated capital adequacy standard ratic.

Movement of consolidated investment in subsidiaries

Current Period Prior Peried
Balance at Beginning of Period 5.445 5,445
Movements during the Period - -
Additiens and Capital Increases - -
Bonus Shares Received - -
Dvidends from the Current Year Profit - -
Sales/Liquidations - -
Reclassification of shares - -
Increase / {Decrease} in Market Yalues - -
Currency Differences an Foreign - -
Reversal of Impairmant Loses/
Impairment Losses (-] -
Balance at the End of Period 5.445 5.445
Capital Commitments o ) o 5.445 5.445
Share of Percentage at the end of Period (%} 99 99
Fiba Portfoy Yénetimi 4.5, was established on26 September 2013 with %99 participation of Fibabanka 4.5,

Current Period  Prior Period
Banks - -
Insurance Companies
Factoring Companies
Leasing Companies
finance Companies - .-
Other Subsidiaries 5.445 5.445

Quoted consoclidated investments insubsidiaries

None.

Information on entities under common control

The Group daes not have investments in entities under commen control as of 31 December 2019.
Information on lease receivables

The Group does not have lease receivables as of 31 December 2019.
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11. Information on derivative financial assets held for hedging purposes

As of 31 December 2019, derivative financial assets held for hedging purposes amounting to TL 87.539 {31
December 2018: TL 201.839 financial liabilities).

The Bank’s Asset Liability Committee aims to hedge the interest risk through hedging its TL denominated
fixed rate credit partfolio with cross currency swaps by linking the high correlated part of the fair value
changes of hedging instruments after prospective tests.

12. Information on tangible assets
Current Feriod Real Estate Cars Other Tangible Tatal
Assets*
Cost ) '
Beginning Balance, 1 January 2019 223057 73 58.598 I1.774
Additions 72.27% 12.721 24.280 109.280
sposals .- -- 6,11 & 1
Ending Balance, 31 December 2019 295.376 12.800 106,776 414,552
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning Balance, 1 fanuary 2019 {6.541) {99 {48.065) (54.705)
Depreciation {22,404} (798} {18.972) {42.174)
Disposaks (111} - 6.146 6.036
Ending Balance, 31 December 2019 {29.056) [897) {60.890) {50,841)
Net Book Value, 31 December 2019 266.320 11.503 4% .BB6 324.109
* Other tangible floed assets consist of leasehald improvements, safe boxes, office machinery, furniture and other mavables.
Prior Period Gayrimenkul Araclar Diger MDV* Toplam
El-:nst B
Beginning Balance, 1 January 2018 171.963 79 75.738 247.400
Additions 51.534 - 26.567 78101
Disposals -- .- 13.728 13.728
Ending Balance, 31 December Z018 223,047 79 88.598 1774
Accurnutated Depreciation -- - - -
Beginning Balance, 1 January 2018 (4.683) (318) (530.718) {55.439)
Depreciaticn {1.813) (61) (10.893) {12.769}
Disposals [45) - 13.548 13.503
Ending Balance, 31 December 2018 (6.541) {9%) {48.065} {54.705)
Wet Book Value, 31 December 2018 216.556 (20) 40.533 257.069

* Other tangible fixed assets consist of leasehold improvements, safe boxes, office machinery, furniture and ather movables,
12.1 Disclosure for impairment losses or releases individually material for financial statement

12.1.1 Conditions for allocating/releasing any impairment

None.

12.1.2 Amount of impairment losses provided or released in financial statements during current period

None.

12.2  Other impairment losses provided or released in current period that are immaterial for the financial
statement individually

None.
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Information on intangible assets
Useful lives and depreciation rates

The useful life of an asset is determined by taking the asset’s expected economic life, technical, technological
or other kinds of obsolescence, and maintenance costs into account. The amortization rates used are in
accordance with the useful lives of the underlying assets. The useful lives are determined as defined by TAS
38 “Intangible Assets”.

The Group’s intangible assets consist of seftware programs and rights, and their useful lives range between 3
to 10 years
Depreciation methods

Depreciation for assets which are in balance sheet for less than one year is calculated by the straight line
method by proportioning the duration of asset in the balance sheet to the predicted yearly depreciation
amount.

Movements of intangible assets for the current period

Lurrent Periad Prior Period
Cost
Beginning Balance, 1 January 90.570 55.343
Additions 50.298 35.334
Disposal 2.616 107
Ending Balance, 31 December 138,252 90.570
Accumulated Depreciation
Beginning Balance, 1 January {55.369) (49.395}
Amortisation Expense for Current Perind (-} {24) {107}
Disposal {12.812) {6.281)
Ending Balance, 31 December {68.358) (55.569)
Net Book Value, 31 December 69.894 35,001

Details for any individually materia! intangible assets

None

Intangible assets capitalised under government incentives at fair values
None.

Revaluation method of intangible assets capitalised under government incentives and valued at fair
values at capitalisation dates

None

Net book value of intangible asset that are restricted in usage or pledged
None

Commitments to acquire intangible assets

MNone.

Disclosure on revalued intangible assets

Nene,

Research and development costs expensed during current period

None,

Goodwill
None,

Information on investment properties

None.
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Infarmation on deferred tax asset

Amount of deferred tax asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of deductible temporary

differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits

As of 31 December 2019, the deferred tax assets amounting to TL 54.503 is calculated by netting of deductible
temporary differences and taxable temporary differences {31 December 2018: TL 79.351 deferred tax asset).

Deferred tax asset consists of deferred tax asset and liability items recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
hases which is used in the computation of taxable profit. The deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented

as net in the accompanying financial statements.

Current Period

Deferrad Tax
Deferred Tax Base hsset/
{Liability)
Financial Assets Valuation (124.029) {24671}
Urearned Commission Incamne/Prepaid Commission 13,823 3041
Retirement Pay and Unused Vacation Provision 29.953 6.287
Tangible Assets Base Differences {29.545} {5.509)
Provisions 345119 73.408
Gther 10.852 1347
Deferred Tax Asset/{Liability) 246,183 54.503
Prior Period
- Deferred Tax
Deferred Tax Base Asset/
L . {Liability)
Financial Loss 105.405 23190
Financial Assets Valuation {108,312) [26.047)
Unearned Comamissian Income/Prepaid Commissian W.772 4,570
Retirement Pay and Unused Yacation Provision 23,498 4,944
Tangible Assets Base Differences {17.85%) [3.572}
Pravisians 35311 75.366
Qther 4.182 500
Deferred Tax Asset/{Liability) i 380.817 79.351
The movement of the current year and prior year deferred tax assets is shown below:
1 January - 3 1 fanuary - 31
- December 2019 December 2018
Deferred Tax Asset, 1 January 79.351 9.504
Deferred Tax Income / (Expense) {153.30%) {41.147]
Deferred Tax Recoenized Directly Under Equity {9.539) 110.5994
Deferred Tax_Asset/{Liability) , Period End Balance 54,503 79.351
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Amount and expiry date of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, unused tax credits for
which no deferred tax asset is recognized in prior periods in the balance sheet

Mone. (31 December 2018: None)

Deferred tax asset resulting from the cancellation of the provision for impairment losses related to the
deferred taxes

None,

Information on assets held for sale and non-current assets related to discontinued operations

As of 31 December 2019, the Group has TL 63.247 assets held for sale {31 December 2018: TL 215.235).

Information on other assets

Other assets do not exceed 10% of total assets excluding the off-balance sheet items.

Information on prepaid expenses, tax and similar items

As of 31 December 2019, total prepaid expenses are TL 42.018 (31 December 2018: TL 30.557).
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Il Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated liabilities
1.  Information on deposits

1.7 Information on maturity structure of deposits

Current Period
£ Moniths - Cumulative
Demand 7 Days Notice  Upto 1 Month Up to 1 Nonths 3-6 Months 1 Year 1 Year and Over Depasit Tatal

Saving Deposits 217.255 - 3423787 1.503.762 53,737 181.346 110.105 5.491.992
Foreign Currency Deposits 624,521 - 2.3318713 1.869.532 539,707 446.008 28.506 6.847.007

Residents in Turkey 569.703 - 1326177 2.861.047 539.138 445.553 8418 6. 771237

Residents Abrgad 54,818 - 12.556 7.485 189 455 B7 7510
Public Sector Deposits 39.891 - - - - - 39,892
Commercial Beposits 129418 - 169,359 536.319 4,518 94 1.664 1.064.240
Gther Ins. Deposits 1.348 - 3959 21.696 - 40 42 13.285
Precious Metal Deposits 5,146 - - - - 25.146
Interbank Depusits L1159 - 12.262 14,705 49,126

Central Bank of Turkey - - - - -

Bomestic Banks 2 - - 4914 4,984

Foreign Banks 11,605 - 12,262 7.789 31,656

Special Finan.Inst, 10,486 13,486
Other - - - - - -
Total 1.280.73% - 5.948.100 4.908.014 599,940 £18.358 140.517 13.565.488
Prier Feriad

6 fonths - Cumulative
Demand 7 Days Notice  Up to 1 honth  Up to 3 Months 36 Menths 1 Year 1 Year and Over Deposit Total

Saving Deposits 9.239 - 738,810 1.592.139 1.257.130 478,607 321611 - 4,484,545
Foreign Currency Deposits 395655 - BE3.617 1.656.753 116,034 12331 197.448 4471.838

Residents in Turkey 370.154 - §75.647 2.648,053 15.738 112674 M 4,305,575

Residents Abvoad 15.501 - 7970 8,700 pi i 857 124136 167,263
Fublic Sector Depesits 45 - v 293 - - - 752
Commercial Depasits 197.420 - 341.316 £90.084 169.870 90.08% 124.025 1.612.804
(Other Ins. Deposits 1.087 - 4,354 29.074 16.278 95 38.14 90,079
Precious Metal Depasits 12368 11368
Interbank Deposits 88.410 - 465589 82.830 1926 439,755

Central Bank of Turkey - 73793 PERRLES

Domestic Banks 14,938 - 157,837 - 1.9 175,71

Foreign Banks 7903 - 33999 B2.830 154.692

Special Finan.Inst. 35.569 35.569
Othar - - - - - .-
Total 792.608 - 2.433.686 500173 1,662,247 892122 631.30% 11.313.141
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Information on saving deposits under the guarantee of saving deposit insurance and exceeding the [imit
of saving deposit insurance

. Exceedin
Under the Guarantge of Deposit the Limit if
Insurance Deposit |

Current Period Prier Period__ Current Period Prior Period
Saving Depasits 2.739.61 1.208.164 2736619 1.253.366
Fareign Currency Saving Deposits 1.025.1G6 391,384 4,415,973 2.840.835
Other Deposits in the Form of Saving Deposits - - - --
Forefgn Branches' Deposits Under insurance of Fareign  Authorities
Off-share Banking Regions’ Deposits Under Foreign Authorities Insurance - - e -
Total . 3764797 1.599.3486 7152592 6,094,201

Saving deposits in Turkey are not covered by any insurance in any other countries since the Bank’s
headquarter is not located abroad

Saving deposits that are not under the guarantee of deposit insurance fund

o Current Period Priar Period
- Deposits and Accounts in Branches Abroad - -
- Deposits of Ultimate Shareholders and Their Close Families 23.907 37.448
- Deposits of Chairman and Members of the Board of Directors and their Close
Families 21.646 21.379

- Deposits Obtained through Illegal Acts Defined in the 282nd Article of the
5237 Numbered Turkish Criminal Code dated 26 September 2004,

- Saving Deposits in Banks Estabtished in Turkey Exclusively for Off Shore
Bankina Activities

Information on derivative financial liabilities heid for trading

Information on negative differences relating o derivative financial {iabilities held for trading

Current Period Prior Period

I FC TL FC
Forward Transactions 6504 - 101.503
Swap Transactions 386.379 - 846,126
Futures Transactions - - - -
Options 195.948 27.093 340,718 26,067
(ther - - - -
Total 647,668 27.0%3 1.188.347 26,067

{*) Derivatives for hedging purpose are excluded.

Infermation on banks and other financial institutions

information on banks and other financial institutions

Current Period Prior Period
_ TL FC TL FC
Loans from Central Bank of Turkey - - - -
From Domestic Banks and Institutions 16,773 391.415 10.293 255.075
From Foreign Banks, Institutions and Funds - 451,193 - 1.073.839
Total 16.773 842.608 10,298 1.328.914
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Maturity analysis of borrowing

Current Period Prior Period
TL FC L FC
Short Term 16.7713 12.037 10.298 66.671
Medium and Long Term - 730.571 -- 1.262.243
Total 16.773 842,608 10.298 1.328.914

Additional explanation related to the concentrations of the Group’s major liabilities

In the scope of normal banking operations, the Group funds itself through the funds provided in the form of
deposits, bank borrowings and bond issuance.

Information related with issued instreuments

Current Period TL FC
Short Term Medium and Lang Short Term Medium and Long
) Term Term
Hominal 383.867 - - 1.300.613
Book Value _ 383.937 - -- 1.334.395
Prior period B ) TL FC
Short Term Medium and Long Short Term Medium and Long
Term Term
Nominal 519481 - - 1.304.630
Baok Value 503.72% - - 1.338.85%

Other Liabilities

Other liabilities of balance sheet do not exceed 10% of the balance sheet total.

Obligations under financial lease

With the "TFRS 16 Leases” standard valid from 1 January 2019, the difference between operating leases and
finance leases has heen eliminated and the lease transactions have been expressed under the “lLease
Payables” as liability by ieases. Implementaticn and impacts on transition of TFRS 16 are presented in Note
XXV of Section Three.

Current Period Prior Period

Gross Net Gross Net

Less than 1 Year 31.985 37.899 194 17
Between 1-4 Years 54.263 29917 313 292
More than 4 Years 3.429 820 - -
Total _ 89.677 68,636 507 463

Additional explanations related to the changes in agreements and the additional liabilities brought by
these changes

None
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Explanations and disclosures related to liabilities {continued)

Information on derivative financial liabilities for hedging purposes

As of 31 December 2019, derivative financial liabilities for hedging purposes is TL 113.444 {31 December 2018:
TL 201.839}).

Information on provisions

Foreign exchange losses on the foreign currency indexed loans

The foreign exchange losses on forefgn currency indexed loans are netted off from the loans on the balance
sheet. As of 31 December 2019, there is no provision of foreign exchange loss on the foreign currency indexed
loans. {31 December 2018: None).

The specific provisions provided for unindemnified non cash loans

As of 31 December 2019, the specific provision provided for unindemnified non cash loans is TL 11.44% (31
December 2018: TL 5.215).

Explanation on other provisions

Provisions for possible losses

Current Period Prior Period
Pravisions for Possible Losses . 44.500 £5.600

The breakdown of the subsidiary accounts if other provisions exceed 10% of the grand total provisions

None.

Explanations on reserves for employee benefits

As of 31 December 2019, reserves for employee benefits amounting te TL 29.953 (31 December 2018: TL
23.499) comprise of TL 15.083 reserve for employee termination benefits {31 December 2018: TL 11.187), TL
4,965 unused vacation pay liability (31 December 2018: TL 3.407) and TL 9.905 personnel premium accrual
{31 December 2018: TL 8.904).

The table below shows the predicted total net cost from employee termination benefits,

_ ) Current Period Prior Peried

fialance at the Beginning 11.187 11.497
Change in the period 6.338 1.578
Aktuerial Lass/Profit Transferred to Equity 2.542 1.384
Paid in the Period {4.984) (5.272}
Balance at the End 15,083 11.187

94



8.1
9.1.1

9.1.2

9.1.3

9.2

10.

11.

FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanations on Tax Liability
Explanations on current tax tiability

Explanations on tax provision

As of 31 Decermber 2019, the Group’s current tax liability is TL 41.045 {31 December 2018: TL 39.477)

Information on taxes payable

Current Peried

Prior Period

Corporate taxes payable

14.434

Taxation on securities 17.703

Praperty tax 57 366
Banking and Insurance Transaction Tax (BITT) 10.555 15.284
Taxes on foreign exchange transactions 534 -
Value added taxes payable 1.364 g15
Income tax ceased from wages 4755 3.800
Other 787 661
Total 36.105 35.359

Information on premium

Current Period

Prior Period

Social Securty Premiums- Employes 2,089 174
Social Security Premiums- Employer 2.415 2.010
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium- Employee - -
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium- Employer

Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions- Employee

Pension Fund Membership Fees and Frovisions- Employer - -
Unemployment Insurance- Employee 146 121
Unemployment Insurance- Employer 90 246
Other -- --
Total 4.940 4.118

Explanations on deferred tax liabilities

None {31 December 2018: None).

Information on liabilities regarding assets held for sale and discounted operations

None (31 December 2018: None).

Explanations on subordinated loans

Current Period

Prior Period

TL FC TL FC
Deb_t instruments subject to common 100.000 178263 ] ]
equity
Subordinated loans - - - -
Subordinated debt instruments® {*} 100000 178.263 -
DebF instruments subject to Tier 2 1.610.755 ) 1.566.143
equity
Subordinated loans - -- - --
Subardinated debt instruments -- 1.610.755 -- 1.596.143
Total 100.000 1.789.018 -- 1.596.143

[*1 Related debt instrument is shown in “COther Capital Reserves™ account.
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12. Informatien on shareholders’ equity

i2.1 Paid-in capital

Current Perféd _Prior Period
Common Stack 941,161 241,161
Preferred Stock ) . -- --

12.2 Paid-in capital amount, explanation as to whether the registered share capital system is applied at the
bank; if so the amount of registered share capital ceiling:

Registered share capital system is not applied.

12.3 Information on share capital increases and their sources; other information on increased capital shares
in current period

None.

12.4 Information on share capital increases from revafuation funds:

None,

12.5 Information on capital commitments the purpose and the sources until the end of the fiscal year and
the subsequent interim period:

The capital is totally paid in and there are no capital commitments.

12.6 Indicators of the Group's income, profitability and liquidity for the prior periods and possible effects
of these future assumptions due to the uncertainty of these indicators on the Group’s equity:

None.

12.7 Information on privileges given to stocks representing the capital

The Group does not have any preferred shares.

12.8 Common stock issue premiums, shares and equity instruments

Number of shares issued with premiums and the related share premiums are presented below:

Current Period Prier Period
Number of Shares {Thousand) 26.230.098 26.230.098
Number of Priviliged Shares - ”
Share Premium 128.678 128.678
Share Cancellation Profits - -
Other Equity Instruments
12.9 Information on marketable securities value increase fund
' Current Period Priar Period
T FC Tl FC

From Subsidiaries, Associates, and Entities Under . B
Commen Control {Joint Venturesy
Security Yaluation Difference 3.033 12,741 [363) {26.209)
Exchange Difference - - -
Total } 3.033 12.741 [363) {26.20%)
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12. Information on shareholders’ equity (continued)

12.10 Information on other capital reserves

The Parent Bank has issued a TL-denominated debt instrument on 20 March 2019 with nominal amount of TL
100.000 with a floating interest rate, which fulfills the conditions of 7th section-2nd paragraph of BRSA's
"Regulation on Equities of Banks", has equity characteristics and will be added to Tier | capital calculations.
It is recognised under “Other Capital Reserves” account.

12.11 information on revaluation reserve
MNone.

12.12 Bonus shares of subsidiaries, associates and joint

None,

12.13 Information on legal reserves

ventures

Current Period Prior Pericd
Legal Reserves 31.71% 21.886
Special Reserves -- -
12.14 Information en extraordinary reserves
Current Period Prior Period
Reserves allocated by the General Assembly

Retained Eamings
Accumulated Losses
Foreign Currency Capital Exchange Differences

252,630

388.400

In the Ordinary General Assembly Meeting of the Bank, which was held on 27 March 219, it was decided to
set off the accumulated loss to extraordinary legal reserve.

13. Information an minority shares:

Current Period

Prior Period

Qpening Balance h8 54
Minerity Shares in Net Profit of Subsidiaries 29 4
Dividend Payment in Prior Pericd - -
Increase /{Decrease) in Minority Shares due to 5ale - -
Qthers - --
Period-end Balance 87 58

97



FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

{Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Explanations and disclosures related to consolidated off-balance sheet contingencies and commitments
1. |Information on consolidated off-balance sheet commitments

1.1 Nature and amount of irrevocable loan commitments

Current Period Prior Period
Asset Sale and Purchase Commitments 4.527.252 3.077.634
Credit Card Limit Commitments 32.901 85.881
Credit Card and Bank Trans. Promo. Guarantce 1 1
Commitments for Credit Allocation with the Guarantee of Usage 876.316 615.901
Export Commitments 5.940 6,502
Commitment for Cheques 187 578 199,635
Other Irrevocable Commitments 15.152 13.65%
Total 5.645.140 3.999.213

1.2 Possible losses and commitments related to off-balance sheet items, including the ones listed below

1.2.1 Non-cash loans including guarantees, acceptances, financial guarantee and other letters of credits

Current Periad Prior Period
Letters of Guarantee TL 432.859 419.207
Letters of Guarantee FC 317.754 266.723
Lettars of Credit 168.208 56.195
Bills of Exchange and Acceptances 105.847 120.425
Total 1.024.668 871.550

The Bank has set aside TL 13.331 of expected credit loss allowance for non-cash loans (December 2018 TL
13.161).

1.2.2 Revocable, irrevocable guarantees and other similar commitments and contingencies

Current Period Prior Period
Revocable Letters of Guarantee 37.188 1.811
Irrevocable Letters of Guarantee 659,784 623,944
Letters of Guarantes Given in Advance 28.699 36,898
Letters of Guarantee Given to Customs 5.423 2.209
Other Letters of Guarantee 19.519 21.068
Total 750,613 &£85.930
2. Total amount of non-cash loans
Current Perjod Prior Period
Non-Cash Loans Given against Cash Loans 7.898 14.403
With QOriginal Maturity of 1 Year or Less Than 1 Year “. -
With Original mMaturity of More Than 1 Year 7.898 14,403
Other Non-Cash Loans 1.016.770 B57.147
Total 1.024.668 871.550
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Information on sectorial risk concentrations of non-cash foans

" Current Period

Prior Period

TL [ FC {%) TL (%) FC %

Agricultural 2.050 0.5% 27.275 4,6% 5.776 1,4% 5.960 1,31%
Farming and raising livestock -- 0,0% -- 0,0% 487 1% a,0%
Forestry 2.050 0,5% 27.275 4,6% 5.28% 1,3% 5.960 1,1%
Fishing - 0,0% - 0,04 0,0% 0,00

Manufacturing 28.713 6,6% 180.630 30,5% 47.787 11,4% 234.B02 52,0%
Mining 2.406 0,6% 1.496 0,3% 4,758 1,1% 3109 0,7%
Praduction 20.674 4,8% 179134 30,3% 2. 7.8% 231.6%3 51,3%
Elactric, gas and water 5.633 1,3% - 0,0% 10.298 2,5% - 0,0%

Construction B6.747 20,0% 39.551 6,75 112.749 26,9% 83.024 18,4%

Services 148,571 34,3% 186.821 31,65 203.698 48,5% 121.142 26 8%
Wholesale and retail trade 57757 13,3% 93.435 15,8% 47 .848 11 ,4% 49.310 11,0%
Hotel, food and beyerage services 4.312 1,0% 36.930 h,2% 15210 3.6% 13,117 8, 7%
Transportation and telecommunication 15.030 3,5% 9.014 1,5% 16.070 3,8% 6.916 1,5%
Financial Institutions 41.370 9,6% 37,608 6, 4% 11744 24.2% 19230 4,3%
Real estate and renting services 14.626 34% 655 0,1% 1.042 0,2% .- Q,0%
self-employement services 10,986 2,5% 7.482 1,3% 5.0RE 1,4% &9 Q,0%
Education services 1.687 0,4% - 0,0% 2.918 Q,7% 341 01%
Health and social services 1.801 0,6% 1.697 0,3% 12.977 3.1% 5.959 1,3%

Other 166.778 3B,5% 157.%32 26,6% 49.626 11,8% 6.986 1,5%

Tatal 437.859 100,0%  591.80% 100,0%  419.636 100,0% 451.914 100,0%

Information on the first and second group of non-cash leans

. Stage | Stage I

Currant Pariod TL FC TL FC

Letters of Guarantee 406,915 312.347 25,944 5.407

Bills of Exchange and Bank Acceptances 105845 - -

Lettets of Credit -- 168,208 - -

Endorsements - -

Underwriting Carmmitments - -- -

Factoring Related Guarantees -

Other Guarantees and Sureties ) - --

Nen-Cash Loans 40&.915 586.402 25.944 5.407

Stage | _ Stage Il

Priar Period TL FC TL FC

Letters of Guarantes= 401.%58 255,419 17.24% 11.274

Bills of Exchange and Bank Acceptances 429 128.994 -

Letters of Credit 56,195 -

Endarsements

Underwriting Commitments

Factoring Related Guarantees -

Other Guarantees and Sureties - T

ﬂon-l:ash Loans 402,387 440, 640 17.24% 11.274
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Information related to derivative financial instruments

Current Period Prior Period

Types of trading transactions
Foreign Currency Related Derivative Transactions {l} 28.917.977 35.863.444
Forward Transactions 4.459.648 5.362.018
Swap Transactions 18.98%.037 24.249.617
Futures Transactions -- 5.484
Option Transactions 5.469.292 6,246,325
Interest Related Derivative Transactions (1) 644.020 576,090
Forward Rate Transactions -- -
Interest Rate Swap Transactions 644,020 576.090
Interest Option Transactions - -
Futures Interest Transactions -- --
Other Trading Derivative Transactions {lll} 1.157.032 703.51%
A. Total Derivative Transactions Held for Trading (1+11+111)) 30.719.029 37.143,053

Types of hedging transactons
Fair vValue Hedges 2.197.51% 930,574
Cash Flow Hedges - -
Net [nvestment Hedges -- n-
B. Total Derivative Transactions Held for Hedging Purposes ] 2.1%7.519 930.574
Total Derivative Transactions {A+B) ) 32.916,548 38,073.617

Credit derivatives and risk exposures on credit derivatives

None.

Explanations on contingent liabilities and assets

The Group provided provision of TL 2,107 fer the legal cases pending against the Group where the cash out
flows are probable (31 December 20182 TL 2.156).

Custodian and intermediary services

The Group provides trading and safe keeping services in the name and account of third parties. Such
transactions are presented in off-balance statements.
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Explanations and disclosures related to the statement of profit or loss

Interest income

Information on interest on loans

current Pericd

Prior Period

TP YP TP YP
{nterest on Loans(*) 1,815.576 406,944 2.003.549 T 370.981
short Term Loans 1.039.354 BH.B11 1.218.986 47 464
Medium and Lang Tertn Loans 776.222 318,133 784.563 323.517
|Interest on Mon-Performing Leans 9.776 - =, 80(} -
Premiums received from Ressurce Utilization B B :
Suppert Fund i
Total 1.825.352 406.944 2.008.34% 370.981
2} Includes fees and commissione obtained from cash loans as well,
Information on interest income received from banks
) Current Period Frior Period
TP YP TP YP
The Central Bank of Turkey 5,83t - 62.012 -
Oomestic Banks 109.615 75 £1.220 854
Foreign Banks -- 1.414 - 765
Branches and Head Office Abroad -- - - .
Total 115.446 1.789 143,232 1.619
Interest received from marketable securities portfolio
Current Period Pricr Periogd
- TP YP TP YP
Financial Assets at Fair Yalue Through Profit or Loss 17.736 &7 2,798 265
Financial Asslets at Fair Value Throush Other 903 41.926 1 027 37.392
Comprehensive Income
Financial Assets Measured at Amortized Cost 10.220 18.376 15.618 903
Tatal 28,859 60.36% 20.443 34,560

information on interest income received from associates and subsidiaries

None (31 December 2018: None).
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Interest expense

Infermation on interest on funds borrowed

Current Period Prior Period
TP YFP TP YF
Banks 1.548 35.922 1.281 63.407
The Central Bank of Turkey - - --
Damestic Banks 1.548 22.468 1.273 11,140
Fareign Banks -- 13.454 a8 52.267
Branches and Head Office Abroad -- -- -- --
Other Institutions -- 146.966 -- 153.000
Total 1.548 132,888 1.181 216,407
{*Mncludes fees and commission expenses on borrowings, as watl
Information on interest expenses to associates and subsidiaries
Total interest expense given to subsidiaries is TL 408 {1 January - 31 December 2018: 492).
Information on interest expenses to marketable securities
Current Period Prior Periad
B TP YP TP YP
Interest Paid to Marketable Securities 100.69% 79.1&5 151,288 76,101
Information maturity structure of deposits
Time Deposits
R Demand ;
Account Description o e Up to 1 Up ta 3 Upto 6 Up to & 1 Year Cumulative Total
Epost mManth Manth Month Year and Over Depasits
Turkish Lira
Bank Deposits -- 13.760 - -- = - -- 15.760
Saving Deposits - 34B.307 280,053  71.971 85.735  71.604 -- £38.170
Public Sector Deposits - 10t 24 - -- -- 125
Carnmercial Deposits - 36.178 161.878 13.033 .41 15.810 -- 236.300
Other -- 653 8.037 598 45 805 -- 10,141
7 Days Notice - - s " - - -
Tatal - 401.499 44%.992 85 602 75.184 88.219 - 1.100.496
Forefgn Currency T - - o =" -
Foreign Currency Deposits - 44,487 95.008 8.0z28 11.319 &.076 -- 164,918
Bank Deposits -- 11.265 - - - .- -- 11.265
7 Days Notice - - -- e - -- - -
Precinus Metal Deposits - 21 - - -- - 21
Tatal -- 55.773 95,008 8.028 11.31% 6.076 - 176,204
Grand Total -- 457,272 545,000 $3.630 86.503 94,295 - 1.276.700

Information on dividend income

WNone (31 December 2018: Mone).

102



FIBABANKA A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE PERIOD BETWEEN 1 JANUARY- 31 DECEMBER 2019

(Amounts expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL) unless otherwise stated)

Information on net trading income / loss

Current Period

Prior Period

Income 1.803.517 3.803.792
Gains on Capital Market Operations 66.313 67.448
Gains on Derivative Financial Instruments BO7.204 2.021.638
Foreign Exchange Gains 930.010 1.714. 704
Loss {-) 1.730.412 3.796.261
Losses an Capital Market Operations 3.973 2.862
Losses an Dervative Financial Instruments BO7.645 2.151.993
Forgign Exchangs Losses 918.794 1.641.506
et Trading (ncome / ( Loss ) ’ 73.115 7.431

Information on other operating income

Other operating income mainly consists of provision reversals, profit from sale of assets, commissions on

cheques and notes and costs recharged.

Provisions for Expected Losses

Current Period

Prior Period

Expected Credit Losses 489,872 470.830
12 Month Expected Credit Losses {Stage 1) 16.442 11.960
Significant Increase In Credit Risk {Stage 2} 2.502 86.086
Impaired Cradits (Stage 3) 470.528 372.784

Impairment Losses on Marketable Securities -- -
Financial Assets Valued at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss -

Financial Assets Valued at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income --

Impairment Losses on Associates, Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures -- --
Associates --

Subsidiaries -- --
Joint-¥entures - -
Other {*) 98 16.074

Total 489,970 486.904

{*] Mo provisions for possible lesses in the current peried, (31 Decerber 2018; TL 9.500})

Information related to other operational expenses

Current Period

Prior Period

Provision for Employee Termination Benefits 1.354 12
Provision far Bank's Social Aid Fund Deficit -- -
Impairment Losses on Tangible Assets -- -
Depreciation Charges of Tangf ble Assets 14,361 12.735
Impairment Losses on Intangible Assets -- -
Depreciation Charges of Intangible Assets 12.886 6.315
Impairment Losses on Investment Accounted for under Equity Methad -- --
Impairment of Assets ta be Disposed -
Depreciation of Assets to be Disposed -- m
Impairment of Assets Held for Sale 27.766 -
Qther Operating Expenses 120.856 131.686

Operational leases expenses related with TFRS 16 exceptions("} 1.073 39,841

Repair and Maintenance Expenses 3.520 3.091

Advertisement Expenses 13.392 15.000

Other Expenses 102.5871 71.754
Lgsses on Sale of Assets 2.283 979
Other _ 82,596 70.064
Total 262.102 221.992

{*} 31 December 2018 amounts include all aperational leases expenses.
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Information on profit/loss before tax from continued and discontinued operations

The Group's profit/loss before tax is from its continued operations. The Group has no discontinued
operations.

Current Period Prior Periad
Interest Income ) | 2.496.641 2,620,901
Interest Expenses {-) 1.680.573 1.747.535
Met Fee and Commission income 206.746 81.247
Dividend income - --
Trading Profit/Loss {Net) 73.115 7.4
Othar Operating Income(*} 171.485 2M7.7R3
Provision for Impairment in Loans and Other Receivables 489.872 470.830
Other Provision Expenses (-} I8 16074
Personnel Expenses {-) 261.476 232,653
Other Qperating Expenses (-} 262,102 221.992
Profitf{loss) Before Tax 253.B66 238278

Explanations on tax provision for resumed operations and discontinued operations

Current period taxation income or expense and deferred tax income or expense

The current tax expense of the Group is TL 23.601 expense as of 31 December 2619 (1 January - 31
December 2018; TL 117 expense). The deferred tax expense of the Group is TL 15.309 (1 January - 31
December 2018: TL 41.147 deferred tax expense}.

Information on profit/loss from continued and discontinued operations

) Current Period Prior Period
Proflt!ELass) Before Tax from Continuing 253866 238,278
Operaticns
Tax Benefit/{Charge) on Continuing Operationg {38.910) {41.264)

Net Profit/(Loss) from Continulng Operations 214,956 197.094

Information on net profit/loss for the period

The nature and amount of certain income and expense items from ordinary operations is disclosed if
the disclosure for nature, amount and repetition rate of such items is required for the complete
understanding of the Group ‘s performance for the period

In the current and prior periods, the Group's income from ordinary banking transactions is interest income
from loans and marketable securities and other banking service income. Main expenses are interest expense
on deposits and similar debt items which are funding resources of loans and marketable securities.

Changes in estimations made by the Group with respect to the financial statement items do not have a
material effect on profit/loss

Consolidated profit in current period from minority shares

Consolidated profit in current period from minarity shares is TL 29 {2018: TL 4)

If “other” lines of the statement of profit or loss exceeds 10% of the period profit/loss, information on
components making up at least 20% of “other” items

In the current period, “other” items recognised in “fees and commissions received” majorly comprised of
commissions such as limit allocation and revision commissions, valuation commissions, insurance commissions,
contracted merchant commissions, credit card commissions and account maintenance fees.

In the current period, “other” items recognised in “fees and commissions paid” majorly comprised of
commissions to correspondent banks, credit card commissions and commissions on issuance of securities.
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Explanations and disclosures related to statements of changes in consolidated shareholders’ equity

Information en inflation adjustment difference of sharehelders' equity

As per the circular issued by the BRSA on 28 April 2005 and the decision of BRSA No: 1623 on 21 April 2005,
the inflation accounting applied in banking system has been decided to be ceased as at 1 January 2005.

In accordance with the circular, TL 17.416 inflation adjustments to paid-in-capital until 31 December 2005
have been iransferred to “Other Capital Reserves” account which was formerly recognized in “Inflation
Adjustment to Paid-in-Capital” account. Mentioned inflation adjustment was used in the capital increase
fram TL 426,650 to TL 550.000 together with TL 9.502 profit from the disposal of real estate and TL 96.432
cash contribution of Fiba Holding A.5. in accordance with the Board of Directors decision dated 25 February
2013, Legal procedures were completed on 29 May 2013 and capital increase was accounted for in the
financial statements.

Information on profit distribution

The decision refating to distribution of 2019 profit will be made at the General Assembly.

At the General Assembly meeting held on 27 March 2019, 2018 profit of the Parent Bank was decided
to be distributed as follows:

Profit or Loss 196,659
A-  Legal Reserves 9.833
B- Extraordinary Reserves 186.826

Information on foreign exchange difference

HNaone.

Information an financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Mark to market gains and losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
securities are not reflected to profit and loss but recognized in equity under “Securities Valuation Reserve”
account until such securities are sold, redeemed, disposed of or impaired; recognised as “Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income or Loss Not Reclassified Through Profit or Loss” under equity.
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Explanations and disclosures related to the consclidated statement of cash flows

Information on cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compenents and accounting policies defining these components:

Cash, foreign currency, money in transfer, purchased bank cheques and deposits in all banks including
Central Bank of Turkey are defined as "Cash”, interbank money market placements with original

maturity less than 3 months and investments on
marketable securities are defined as "Cash equivalents”.

a. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period:

1 January 2019 1 January 20138
Cash 138.331 118.112
Banks and Other Finangial Institutions 1.643.619 801.876
Money Market Placements 306.208 376.134
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets 2.088.158 1.296.272

b. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period:

31 December 2019 31 December 1018

259.794 .
Cash 138.31
Banks and Other Financial Institutions 1.833.199 1,643.619
Money Market Placemeants 30.010 306.208
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets 2.123.003 2.088.158

Information on cash and cash equivalent assets of the Bank that i3 not available for free use due
to legal restrictions or other reasons

in the current period, demand deposits of TL 31.976 which is blocked at foreign banks as the guarantee
of derivative transactions and required reserves at the Central Bank of Turkish Republic are not
included in cash and cash equivalents {31 December 2018: TL 199.562).

Information on other item in cash flow statement and the effect of the exchange rate change on
cash and cash equivalents

“Other items" amounting to TL (256,217} in “operating profit before changes in operating assets and
liabilities” consists of other operating expenses and realized derivative losses {31 December 2018 TL
(574.209)).

“Net increase/decrease in other liabilities” amounting to TL {26.753} in “Changes in operating assets
and liabilities” consists of changes in sundry creditors, taxes and due payables, other liabilities (31
December 2018: TL 570.938).

“Net increase/decrease in other assets” amounting to TL {101.962) in “Changes in operating assets
and liabilities” consists of changes in sundry receivables, other receivables {31 December 2018:
TL {154.303).

“Other” amounting to TL (47.682) in “Net cash flows from investment activities” consists of purchases
of intangible asset (31 December 2018: TL (35.333)).

“The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents” is the amount arising from
conversion aof the cash and cash equivalents dencminated in foreign currencies with the average of
the exchange rates effective at the beginning and at the end of the related perieds and is TL (75.065)
the current period (1 January- 31 December 2018: TL 233.413),
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¥l Explanations and disclosures on the risk group of the Parent Bank

1. Information on the volume of transactions with the Group’s risk group, lending and deposits
outstanding at peried end and income and expenses in the current period

1.1 Current period

Associates, Subsidiaries
Other Real Persons and

and Bank's Direct and Legal Entities in Risk
Bank's Risk Group (*) Joint-Yentures [ndirect Shareholder
Group
Cash Non-Cash Cash Hon-Cash Cash Won-Cash
Loans and Other Receivables - - - - - B
Balance at the Beginning of the Period - - - 0 402.272 53,468
Balance at the End of the Period - - - il 331.014 51.073
Interest and Commission Income Received - -- - -- 39.078 103

{*1 Described in articie 49 of the Banking act Me: 5417,
**1 Ineludes all transactions described as loans in article 48 of the Banking Act Mo 5411,

Prior period

Associates, Subsidiaries
and Bank's Direct and
Bank’s Risk Group (*} Joint-Yentures Indirect Shareholder

Other Real Persons and
Legal Entities in Risk
Gioup

Cash Han-Lash Cash Nan-Cash Cash Hon-Cash

Loans and Other Recaivabies - . -
Batance at the Beginning of the Perimd - - - i $1.956 48.284

Balance at the End of the Period - - - 0 402.172 55.468
Interest and Commission Income Received - - - - 51.949 7

{*] Deseribed in orticle 49 of the Banking Ack Me: 5417,
1" Includes 3ll transactions described as loars in article 4§ of the Banking Act Ma: 3411

1.2 Information on deposits of the Bank’s risk group

“associates, Subsidiaries
(Other Real Persons and

Bank’s Dir nd
Joint:"];itures Indairneci Shaer;;:lder Legal Entities in Risk

Bankamn Dahil Oldudu Risk Grubu* Group

Current  Prior  Curremt  Prior Current  Priar

Period Period Period Parind Periad Pariod
Deposits
Balance at the Beginning of the Period 1.774 -- 80.730 300,055 460,871 409.339
Balance at the End of the Perind 7.683 1.774 57.840 80.750 23437 460.8T1
Deposit Interest Expense 408 452 20.577 7.42% 49.554 53.501

{*) Deseribed inarticle 49 of the Bemking Act Na: 5411,

1.3 Information on funds obtained from the Bank’s risk group

As of 31 December 2019, there are no funds other than deposit obtained from Bank’s risk group (31 December
2018: TL 210.925; that fund amount other than deposit has obtained from IFC and EBRD in the form of
borrowings).
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Information on forward and option agreements and similar agreements made with Bank’s risk group

Associates, Subsidiari
& Other Real Persons and

and Bank's Direct and e
. . Lezal Entities in Risk
. Joint-Wentures Indirect Shareholder
Bank's Risk Group (") Group
Current Prior Current Priar Current Prior
Period Period Period Period Periad Period
Financiak Assets at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss: - - - --
Balance at the Beginning of the Feriod .- - - - 780,609 £99.553
Balance at the End of the Periad .- -- -- - M.74 780.609

Total Income/Lass -- -- - - (37,471 (43.510}
Transactions for Hedging Purpases: - - .
Balance at the Beginning of the Period
Balance at the End af the Period -- --
Total Income/Loss
{*} 45 described in the Article 49 of Banking dct no. 5417,

Information on transactions with the Bank'’s risk group

Relations with entities in the risk group of / or controlled by the Bank regardless of the nature of
relationship among the parties

The terms of related party transactions are equivalent te those that prevail in arm’s length transactions only
if such terms can be substantiated regarding the limits exposed by the Banking Act. Adopted Bank policy is
that assets and liabilities will not be dominated by the risk group and the balances with the risk group will
have a reasonable share in the total balance sheet.

in addition to the structure of the relationship, type of transaction, emount, and share in total
transaction volume, amount of significant items, and share in all items, pricing policy and other

As of 31 December 2019, the ratio of the loans and other receivables used by the entities of risk group to
total loans and receivables is 2,12% (31 December 2018: 2,68%) and the ratio of the deposits of entities of
risk group to total deposits is 2,19% ( 31 December 2018: 4,80%). There are no funds cbtained from entities
of risk group (31 December 2018:7,4%).

In current period benefits; such as salaries and bonuses; provided to the key management is TL 15.964 (1
January - 31 December 2018: TL 12.693).

Total of similar type of transactions together, unless a separate disclosure is required to present the
effect of the transactions on financial statements

MNone,

Transactions accounted for under equity method

None.

Explanations on purchase and sale of real estate and other assets, sales and purchases of services,
agency contracts, finance lease agreements, transfer of data obtained from research and development,
licensing agreements, financing (including loans and cash and in-kind capital support), guarantees and
promissory notes, and management contracts

None.
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Explanations on the Parent Bank’s domestic, foreign, off-shore branches or investments in associates
and foreign representative offices

Information related to the Parent Bank’s domestic and foreign branch and representatives

Damestic Branch -

i Nusnber of
¢ Number |
| Employees
6 1541
i Country aof
Incorparations

_F_Q[t_e_l'__g_r!_REg_rasanféﬁr;ﬁ Office

Total Assets Statutory Share Capital

3
ForeignBranch ; T
_— x

Cff-share
Banking Region Branches 1-
T 2
3_

Domestic Consolidated Subsidiaries

Number of Employees I Assets

Legal Capital

Fiba Portfdy Yonetimi A.S,

13 9.854

5.500

Events after balance sheet date

None.

SECTION SIX

Other disclosures on activities of the Parent Bank

Summary information of Parent Bank’s risk ratings by international rating agencies

Fitch Ratings

Long term FC and TL Rating
Short term FC and TL Rating
viability Rating

Viability Rating

Support Rating

L.ong term Mational 5cale Rating
Senior Unsecured Debt Rating
Subordinated Debt Rating

5

A- (tur)
B+

B-
MNegative
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SECTION SEVEN

DISCLOSURES ON INDEPENDENT AUDIT REPORT

Disclosures on auditors’ report

The conselidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiary as of 31 December 2019, have been
audited by KPMG Bagimsiz Denetim ve Serbest Muhasebeci Mali Misavirlik AS (the Turkish member of KPMG
International Cooperative} and an independent audit report is presented before the accompanying financial
statements

Disclosures and feotnotes prepared by independent auditors

Naone.
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